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 Secretariat 
 845 Sherbrooke St. West, room 313 
 Montreal, QC, H3A 0G4 
 Tel: (514) 398-3948 | Fax: (514) 398-4758 
 
The following items arise from the Audit Committee meeting of September 25, 2017. They are 
presented to the Board of Governors for its consideration. 
 
I.  FOR ACTION BY THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
 
1. Financial Report to the Board of Governors 2016-2017,  [AD17-06 & AD17-07] 
 Audited Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 
 

The Audit Committee received the 2016-17 Financial Report to the Board of Governors 
and an analysis of the financial statements prepared by management. The Committee 
received from the external auditors the external audit report concerning the audit of the 
financial statements for the year ended April 30, 2017. The external auditors confirmed 
their opinion that the financial statements present fairly and in all material respects the 
financial position of the University at April 30, 2017, and that this opinion is without 
qualification.   

 

Following presentation of this report, a private meeting was held with management in the 
absence of the auditors, and subsequently, a private meeting was held with the auditors in 
the absence of management. The external auditors confirmed that they have received good 
cooperation from management in the conduct of the audit. Management also conveyed that 
they had received good cooperation from the auditors.  

 

By resolution, the Committee recommended to the Board of Governors approval of the 
Auditor's Report and Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year ending April 30, 
2017. 

 
Be it resolved that the Board of Governors, on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee approve the 2016-2017 Annual Financial Report to the Board of 
Governors including the external auditor’s report and Audited Financial 
Statements of The Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning/McGill 
University for the year ended April 30, 2017. 

 

To assist in the review of these statements, the Financial Report to the Board of Governors 
has been distributed as Appendix A, which contains the Financial Report to the Board, and 
Appendix B, which contains the audited financial statements.  
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2. Appointment of External Auditors for Fiscal Year 2018 [AD17-08] 
 

At its meeting on October 6, 2016, the Board reappointed Deloitte as McGill’s auditors for 
the fiscal year ending in April 30, 2017. A public, two-stage call for tender (CFT) for 
external audit services for fiscal year 2018 was initiated by the University on April 25, 
2017, and an internal committee was formed to evaluate the results of the tender. After a 
thorough process, in accordance with legislation, Deloitte was determined to have the 
winning tender. 
 
The term of the contract is for a period of five years, subject to review on an annual basis. 
The annual value of the contract is $163,000, (taxes excluded), and is fixed for the 
five-year term, based on the current identified audit mandates. 
 
Board approval is sought for the appointment of Deloitte as McGill’s external Auditors for 
the fiscal year ending April 30, 2018. 
 

Be it resolved that the Board of Governors, on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, approve the appointment of Deloitte as external auditors of the 
University for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2018. 
 
Be it further resolved that the Board of Governors authorize the Vice-Principal 
(Administration and Finance) or the Associate Vice-Principal (Financial Services) 
to sign the contract and any related documents, subject to review by Legal Services. 

 
 
3. Proposed Policy on Approval of Contracts and Designation of  [AD17-09] 
 Signing Authority 
 

Following its review of the Policy on the Approval of Contracts and Designation of Signing 
Authority at meetings in January and May 2017, the Committee considered the Policy for 
approval.  
 
The proposed Policy is intended to replace the current Regulations Relating to the Approval 
of Contracts and Signing Authority (Regulations) that have been in place since 2004 and 
which have remained relatively unchanged. Based on an assessment of institutional needs 
and structures at peer institutions, a draft policy for the approval of contracts and signing 
authority has been established.  
 
The proposed Policy aims to support sound administration and stewardship of University 
resources and assets and to provide consistent accountability and reporting throughout the 
University. The model vests signing authority in designated signing officers and provides 
for a framework within which signing officers would be authorized to delegate their 
authority while remaining accountable for the exercise of the delegation. 
 

An overview of changes introduced by the new Policy is attached as Appendix C. The 
proposed Policy on the Approval of Contracts and Designation of Signing Authority (with 
five appendices, A-E) is attached as Appendix D. Also attached are the Implementation 
Plan as Appendix E, the current Regulations as Appendix F.  

 



Report of the Audit Committee  Page 3 

 

In considering the proposed policy model, the Audit Committee noted that controls in place 
to support the requirements of the new Policy will be subject to a review by Internal Audit 
one year following implementation. This will be followed by a review of the Policy by the 
Audit Committee, anticipated in May 2019.  

 

In order to implement activities that will be required to meet the Policy requirements (see 
Appendix E), it is recommended that the new Policy become effective in May 2018, at 
which time the current Regulations would be repealed.   
 

Be it resolved that the Board of Governors, on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, approve the Policy on the Approval of Contracts and Designation of 
Signing Authority, effective May 1, 2018. 
 
Be it further resolved that the Board of Governors repeal the Regulations Relating 
to the Approval of Contracts and Signing Authority, effective May 1, 2018. 

 
 
II. FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS  

 
1. Update on Tri-Agency Monitoring Review and Assessment Report  [AD17-04] 

 

As a follow-up to the May 12, 2017 meeting, the Committee was informed of ongoing 
progress following the 2016 Tri-Agency Financial Monitoring Report. The Tri-Agency 
will conduct a follow-up in 2018. The Committee received confirmation that all follow-up 
activities are on track.  

 
2. Internal Audit Recommendations with IT implications  [AD17-05] 

 

As a follow-up to the May 12, 2017 meeting, the Committee was appraised of a summary 
of internal audit recommendations with IT implications carried out in support of McGill’s 
mission and priorities.  

 
3.  Declaration of Compliance to August 31, 2017  [AD17-01] 
 

In accordance with the Committee’s Terms of Reference, the Committee received a 
Declaration of Compliance to August 31, 2017. Members were informed that the 
University was in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

 
4. Report from Internal Audit [AD17-10] 

 

The Committee received a progress report on internal audits which have been recently 
completed and those underway. Members were also briefed on the status of action items 
from previous audits carried out by Internal Audit. Audits that were conducted and for 
which reports have been recently issued include the report on Athletics & Recreation and 
Environmental Health and Safety. 
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 5. Report on Signing Authority over $4 million ended April 30, 2017 [AD17-02]  
 

In accordance with the terms of reference, the Committee received an annual report on 
signing authority over $4 million for the year 2016-2017. The Committee received 
confirmation that all contracts over $4 million have been approved by the Board or relevant 
Board Committee, in accordance with the University’s Regulations Relating to the 
Approval of Contracts and Signing Authority. 
 

6. Report on Quarterly Financial Results for Fiscal Period Ended 
 July 31, 2017 and Variance Report           [AD17-11] 

 
The Committee received a quarterly report on the financial results for the period ended on 
July 31, 2017 and variance reports.  

 

7. 2017-2018 Audit Committee Orientation Package [AD17-03] 

 

The Committee received an orientation package for the 2017-2018 governance year, 
containing updated reference documents for the Committee’s information. 

 

8. McGill University Revenue Forecasting Methodologies   [AD17-12] 

 

The Committee received a presentation outlining the University’s sources for operating 
revenue and the forecasting methodologies for estimating revenue from enrolment-based 
grants and tuition. 

 
 END  
 October 2017 
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The Mission of McGill University is the advancement of learning and the creation and dissemination of knowledge, by 
offering the best possible education, by carrying out research and scholarly activities judged to be excellent by the highest 
international standards, and by providing service to society.

This report provides a summary of the operational and financial activities of The Royal Institution for the Advancement of 
Learning/McGill University (“McGill”) for the year ended April 30, 2017 and includes the audited financial statements of the 
University as at April 30, 2017, prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Our auditors, 
Deloitte, have provided a clean opinion further to the Board approval. This Report includes a “Financial Highlights” section, 
providing more detailed information on the audited financial statements.

The financial activities which support McGill’s mission are accounted for internally in four distinct funds: Operating 
(Unrestricted), Restricted, Plant, and Endowment. The GAAP financials reflect the University’s operational results, which 
would include the operating excess of revenue over expenses, inter-fund transfers in the Operating Fund, and also include 
the net amortization expense associated with Capital Assets. The GAAP financials also present contributions for capital 
assets from operating or restricted revenues as inter-fund transfers, rather than expenses, and thus must be taken into 
account when determining the change in the “Operating Accumulated Deficit.” The adoption of the GAAP deferral method 
in the Restricted Fund results in this Fund no longer having an impact on the operating results for the year, since revenues 
not spent in the current year are deferred and are not included in the annual surplus or deficit from “research operations.” 
Also, under GAAP financials, the Endowment Fund no longer contains any revenues or expenses, as donations are reflected 
directly in the Statement of Net Assets, and direct endowment expenses are reflected in the Restricted Fund where the 
majority of Endowment earnings are reflected.

McGill’s overall balance sheet incorporates all assets, liabilities and Net Asset balances as previously reflected, and also 
includes the assets and liabilities held in trust. In addition, GAAP changes have resulted in recognition of amounts due 
from the Ministère de l’Éducation et de l’Enseignement supérieur (MEES; previously MESRS) with respect to capital assets 
which were previously not recorded as a receivable. The overall liabilities also reflect deferred revenue contributions (as 
described above) which are amortized into income in the future, and liabilities related to vacation, pension, and future 
employee benefits. The majority of the Long-Term Assets consists of buildings and equipment, and its Net Asset balance is 
represented as “Investments in Capital Assets.” The Endowment related Net Assets balance contains the total investments 
held in perpetuity for the purpose of earning income for spending, as designated by the respective donors and are considered 
externally restricted. 

This report includes highlights relating to our students and our professoriate.

OVERVIEW
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OVERALL PERFORMANCE

McGill continues to positively distinguish itself from peer institutions, as indicated by the following performance highlights 
from FY 2016-2017:

Rankings
•  QS World University Rankings: McGill placed #30 in the world, down from #24 last year but still the first among Canadian 

universities. McGill has been ranked as the top Canadian university for 11 of the last 13 years.
•  Maclean’s magazine: For the 12th consecutive year, McGill is the number-one Canadian medical-doctoral university. McGill 

maintained the top spot despite having a per-student operating budget in the bottom 25 per cent of the 49 universities 
considered by Maclean’s. 

•  QS named Montreal the world’s number-one student city. Montreal jumped from last year’s seventh place to overtake 
reigning champ Paris, now the world’s second-place student city after four years in the top spot. QS evaluated 125 cities 
to determine its Top 100 ranking.

•  Times Higher Education World University Rankings: McGill placed #42, down from #38 last year. McGill, the University of 
Toronto (#22) and UBC (#36) were the only Canadian universities in the global top 50.

•  Academic Rankings of World Universities (“Shanghai Rankings”): McGill placed #63, up from #64 last year. 

Finance
•  In March 2017, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services reaffirmed McGill’s credit rating as AA- (stable).
•  In December 2016, Moody’s Investor Service re-affirmed McGill’s credit rating as Aa2 (stable).

Sustainability
•  The Sustainability Projects Fund (SPF) won a prestigious award from the City of Montreal and the Conseil régional de 

l’environnement for its innovative and inspiring work in financing the transition to sustainability on McGill campuses. 
•  McGill was named Fair Trade Campus of the Year by Fairtrade Canada, making us No. 1 among the 21 designated fair trade 

campuses across Canada. 
•  McGill earned a Gold rating in Sustainability according to the Association for the Advancement of Sustainability in Higher 

Education.
•  An Advisory Council on Sustainability was created to provide strategic advice to position the University as a leading 

institution on sustainability in North America. 
•  More than 500 people participated in the consultation process that will lead to the 2017-2020 Climate and Sustainability 

Action Plan.
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Infrastructure
• McGill proceeding with several IT and deferred maintenance projects funded by the bond issue and SIF funding.
• Work began to replace HVAC systems the Education, Burnside, Lyman Duff and Ferrier buildings.
• Work began on the Desautels expansion into the former bookstore building on McTavish. It will be completed in Fall 2017.
• Work began on renovation to Leacock Terrace. To be completed in Fall 2017.
• Major building repairs began on Macdonald Engineering Building. 
•  Completion of Academic Vision and Development Plan for the possible redevelopment of the former Royal Victoria 

Hospital site. 

Operations
•  The “Workday” solution was retained as the new human resources and academic personnel management software. Workday 

will replace Banner HR and Payroll One-time Payment System (POPS) tools with a more efficient, integrated system. The 
launch act is scheduled for October 6.

•  In January 2017, the Association of McGill University Support Employees (AMUSE) voted 86 per cent in favour to ratify a 
new collective agreement with McGill. The union represents more than 1,500 casual employees on campus, including floor 
fellows and library staff.

•  The editors of Canada’s Top 100 Employers named McGill one of Montreal’s Top Employers for the eight consecutive 
year. Université de Montréal and Concordia University were also the list, as was the Jewish General Hospital. McGill was 
selected in part because of its generous vacation policy, pension plans, health and dental insurance coverage, in-house 
training initiatives, alternative work options (such as flexible work hours, telecommuting, etc.) and sports and fitness 
facilities. 

OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS:

•  Enrolment (Fall 2016) at 40,493 students; +1.26% over Fall 2015; + 7.02% over Fall 2011

•  Tenure Track Academics total approximately 1,673; net change of + 327 over the fiscal periods 2002 to 2017

•  Approximately 1,200 academic hires over the period 2003 to 2016 
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STUDENTS

Total student enrolment at McGill in Fall 2016 almost reached the 41,000 mark between its downtown and Macdonald 
campuses. The majority of the students (77%) are enrolled in full-time undergraduate and graduate programs, as highlighted 
in the chart below. 

Part-time undergraduate and graduate students represent 15%, while the remaining 8% of the population are students 
associated with post-doctoral studies, medical residents and fellows and other categories of students. Graduate students 
(full and part-time) accounted for 24% of the total. 

Overall, enrolment grew by 1.26% year-over-year (prior year: 1.24%), as highlighted below:

Fall 2013

Fall 2014

Fall 2015

Fall 2016

01 0,0002 0,0003 0,0004 0,000

Student Enrolment (Fall 2016)

Full-Time Undergraduate Part-Time Undergraduate

Full-Time Graduate Part-Time Graduate

Postdocs, Residents, Fellows & Other

40,493
(1.26%)

39,988
(1.24%)

39,497
(0.38%)

39,349 
(1.47%)

Source:  McGill Enrolment Services website
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The total student enrolment is distributed amongst our 11 Faculties and our School of Continuing Studies, as depicted in the 
table below outlining Fall 2016 enrolments.

Enrolment by Faculty (Full-time and Part-time) – Fall 2016

Source: McGill Enrolment Services website

(i)   Total enrolment in Medicine includes 899 undergraduate students registered in the Ingram School of Nursing and the School of Physical and Occupational 
Therapy (i.e. Bachelor of Nursing, BSC – Rehabilitation Science, and BSC – Nursing). The rest of the undergraduate class account for 738 students, those 
in the graduate program total 1,674 students, post-docs total 338 students, and residents and fellows make up the remaining 1,266 students.

This mix of student enrolments effectively translates into full-time equivalent units (FTEs) which are the root of government 
funding (grants), tuition and fees. The following chart highlights the billed (tuition) FTEs over the last four years, realizing 
that McGill’s overall student population is made up of students originating from Québec and the rest of Canada, as well as 
International students.

The MEES funding model funds students at various amounts based on their discipline of study. For example, in fiscal 2017, 
an undergraduate student in Arts (classified as Lettres by MEES) is currently funded at an annual amount of $5,104. On the 
other hand, an undergraduate student in Dentistry (classified as Médicine dentaire by MEES) is currently funded at $29,224 
per year. 

# of Students Percentage of 
Student Population

Agricultural & Environmental Sciences 2,156 5.4%

Arts 9,005 22.5%

Arts & Science (B.A. & B.Sc.) 596 1.5%

School of Continuing Studies 5,017 12.5%

Dentistry 263 0.7%

Education 2,676 6.7%

Engineering 4,702 11.7%

Interfaculty Studies 414 1.0%

Law 887 2.2%

Medicine(i) 5,229 13.0%

Desautels Faculty of Management 3,062 7.6%

Schulich School of Music 892 2.2%

Science 5,594 14.0%

40,079 100.0%
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Overall, the total numbers of full-time equivalent (FTE) students was below budget by approximately 0.2%. The overall 
number of international FTEs (excluding those exempt from the supplement) increased by 8.3% to 6,067 (compared to a 
budget of 5,611) from 5,580 in the prior year.

The tuition fee (regulated by MEES) for a full-time Québec student in 2016-17 was $2,328 ($77.60 per credit), an increase 
of 2.8% from 2015-2016. The fee for a full-time out-of-province Canadian student was $7,228 ($240.92 per credit including 
supplements), a 2.8% increase from 2015-16. The fee for an International student in 2016-17 ranged from $15,943 ($531.43 
per credit) to $39,750 (for the MBA) including supplements, depending on the program. Currently, MEES regulations require 
all Canadian Masters students to pay the out-of-province supplement, while Canadian Ph.D. students are exempt. 

Since 2013-14, fee increases for regulated tuition have been limited to a cost of living index based on the “change in 
household disposable income for Quebec residents” (1.5% increase in the base Quebec rate of tuition in 2016-17 based on 
the reference period for this index of 2012-2013). These tuition amounts include amounts required to be contributed to the 
Province’s financial aid regime.

In addition, McGill’s current practice continues to set aside 30% of net tuition increases to the institutional financial aid 
program.

 -  5,000  10,000 15,000  20,000 25,000  30,000 35,000

2016

2015

2014

2013

Billed Tuition - Student  FTEs

Québec Students Canadian Students
International Students Deregulated International Undergraduates
Self-Funded Programs

31,779
(+0.93%)

31,486     

(- 0.24%)

31,560 
(+1.16%)

31,197 
(+1.93%)

Tuition and Fees
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All tuition fee supplements paid to McGill University by Canadian and International students are deducted from the University’s 
operating grant. The total supplements deducted from our operating grants amounted to $80.6 million (2015: $75.6 million), 
representing 34.0% of all tuition collected. The government does provide a limited number of differential fee waivers for 
international students at the Graduate level which are administered through the Graduate & Postdoctoral Studies Office. 

Starting in Fall 2015, newly admitted students from France pay fees at the Canadian rate due to a signing of an entente 
between Quebec and France. All MBA, certain specialized Masters in Management programs and a small number of students 
registered in distance programs outside of Quebec pay a self-funded tuition rate. 

In fiscal 2008, the government permitted the deregulation of international tuition relating to specific undergraduate 
disciplines, including Management, Science, Engineering, Law, Mathematics and Computer Science. All other international 
tuition fees in excess of the Québec (regulated) basic tuition fee ($2,328) are effectively remitted in their entirety to the 
Québec government via a “claw-back” supplement in the annual operating grants. 

The deregulation of the afore-mentioned programs generated revenues of $61.3 million in 2016-2017 (2015-2016: $53.9 
million). The University is allowed to charge over and above the mandated “supplement” amount (which is expected to 
increase 3% next year) for these deregulated disciplines.

MEES has defined Frais Institutionnels Obligatoires (FIOs), which essentially represent those administrative fees charged by 
universities to students in addition to tuition. MEES’s objective was to limit the annual increase in these fees, based on the 
total of all these fees. In the past, McGill FIOs did not include “fees” charged to graduate students for additional sessions 
and at the same time, McGill considered these charges as tuition and not fees. However, MEES has dictated otherwise and 
required a change in how these students are charged. The annual increase for McGill in 2016-17 was limited to 1.5%, unless 
specific agreements are acknowledged by both McGill and the affected student groups/representatives. 

The total “FIO’s” revenue amounted to $35.3 million (2016: $33.3 million). In addition to FIOs, other student fees charged 
for non-credit courses, student services, Athletics, and other activities totaled $22.1 million (2015: $21.9 million). These 
fees, combined with tuition, totaled $294.3 million (2016: $274.3 million) and represent 35.8% (2016: 35.1%) of operating 
revenues. 
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Academic Program Developments

During the year, a number of teaching program developments were reviewed and approved by the University (this list does 
not include programs requiring approval by MEES):

New programs by Faculties

Agricultural and 
Environmental 
Sciences

B.Sc.
B.Sc.

Minor in Agribusiness Entrepreneurship  (18 cr.)
Minor in Agribusiness Entrepreneurship (18 cr.)

Arts B.A. Minor Concentration in Hispanic Studies (18 cr.)

School of 
Continuing 
Studies

Professional Development Certificate in Parliamentary Management (18 CEUs)
Professional Development Certificate in Parliamentary Governance (13 CEUs)
Graduate Certificate in CPA Professional Education (24 cr.)
Graduate Certificate in Legal Translation (15 cr.)
Graduate Certificate in Aviation Leadership (24 cr.)

Graduate and 
postdoctoral 
Studies

Ph.D.

M.A.
M.A.
M.A.

Ph.D.
M.M
M.Sc.
M.Sc.
M.Eng.
M.Eng.
M.Sc.
Ph.D.

M.Sc.

M.Sc.

Graduate Diploma in Surgical Innovation
Graduate Certificate in International Leadership in Educational and Administrative Development (15 cr.)
Quantitative Life Sciences (0 cr.)
Graduate Certificate in Translational Biomedical Engineering (15 cr.)
Education and Society; Non-Thesis - Coursework (45 cr.)
Education and Society; Non-Thesis - Coursework - Mathematics and Science Education (45 cr.)
Education and Society; Non-Thesis - Project - Mathematics and Science Education (45 cr.)
Kinesiology Sciences (0 cr.)
Analytics; Non-Thesis (45 cr.)
Experimental Surgery; Non-Thesis (45 cr.)
Oncology; Non-Thesis (45 cr.)
Materials Engineering; Non-Thesis (45 cr.)
Materials Engineering (45 cr.)
Materials Engineering (45 cr.)
Materials Engineering (45 cr.)
Graduate Certificate in Theory in Mental Health (15 cr.)
Graduate Diploma in Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (30 cr.)
Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (45 cr.)
Graduate Certificate in Theory in Pediatrics (15 cr.)
Graduate Diploma in Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (30 cr.)
Pediatrics Nurse Practitioner (45 cr.)



OPERATIONAL 
   HIGHLIGHTS

2016-2017 FINANCIAL REPORT TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 11

Dentistry M.B.A. Certificate in Craniofacial Orthodontics (70 cr.)

Engineering B.Eng. Major in Mining Engineering (144-145 cr.)

Management B.Com Major in General Management; Concentration in Business Analytics (15 cr.)

Music B.Mus.
B.Mus.

Minor in Jazz Arranging and Composition
Minor in Jazz Performance (18 cr.)

Science B.Sc.
B.Sc.
B.Sc.
B.Sc.

Major in Chemistry; Biophysical Chemistry (65-66 cr.)
Honours in Chemistry; Biophysical Chemistry (74-75 cr.)
Major in Physics;  Biological Physics (81-82 cr.)
Honours in Physics;  Biological Physics (81-82 cr.)
McGill Arctic Field Study Semester (15 cr.)

New programs by Faculties
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Program retirements by Faculties

Arts B.A.
B.A.
B.A.
B.A.
B.A.
B.A.
B.A.
B.A.
B.A.
B.A.
B.A.
B.A.

Minor Concentration in Political Science; Canada/Quebec (18 cr.)
Minor Concentration in Comparative Politics (18 cr.)
Minor Concentration in International Relations (18 cr.)
Minor Concentration in Political Economy (18 cr.)
Minor Concentration in Political Theory (18 cr.)
Minor Concentration in Politics, Law and Society
Minor Concentration in South Asia (18 cr.)
Faculty Program in Industrial Relations (54 cr.)
Concentration mineure en langue et littérature françaises - Langue française
Minor Concentration in Jewish Law (18 cr.)
Minor Concentration in Hispanic Languages (18 cr.)
Minor Concentration in Hispanic Literature and Culture (18 cr.)

Continuing 
Studies

B.Ed. Certified Teachers in Elementary Education: Native and Northern (90 cr.)

Engineering M.Eng.
M.Eng.
M.Sc.
Ph.D.
B.Eng.

Mining and Materials Engineering; Non-Thesis (45 cr.)
Mining and Materials Engineering (45 cr.)
Mining and Materials Engineering; Non-Thesis (45 cr.)
Mining and Materials Engineering; Non-Thesis (0 cr.)
General Engineering - Undeclared (30 cr.)

Medicine M.Sc.
M.Sc.

Nursing; Non-Thesis - Clinical Nurse Specialist (48 cr.)
Nursing; Non-Thesis - Global Health Clinical Nurse Specialist (50 cr.)

Graduate and 
postdoctoral 
Studies

M.Sc.
Ph.D.
M.Arch.

Pharmacology; Chemical Biology (47 cr.)
Pharmacology; Chemical Biology (0 cr.)
Post Professional; Non-Thesis - Cultural Mediations and Technology (45 cr.)

Science B.Sc.
B.Sc.

Major in Earth and Planetary Sciences (66 cr.)
Honours in Earth Sciences (75 cr.)

Source:  Office of the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning)
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Graduation

Degrees are awarded at two periods during the academic year: Fall and Spring Convocations. The following chart depicts the 
total number of degrees awarded for the two terms of the following academic years.

Source: McGill Enrolment Services website

Graduation

2015-2016 2014-2015

Undergraduate 5,889 6,003

Masters 1,829 1,715

Doctoral 541 564

Certificates & Diplomas (Grad) 459 538

CE Non-credit Certificates 304 314

9,022 9,134

 Degrees Awarded, by Faculty 

2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-2013

 Agricultural & Environmental Sciences  525  478  490  489 

 Arts  2,041  2,092  2,079  1,977 

 Arts & Science (B.A. & Sc.)  126  133  115  124 

School of Continuing Studies  1,010  1,082  1,165  1,089 

 Dentistry  80  77  71  72 

 Education  683  674  649  750 

 Engineering  953  951  862  858 

 Law  239  233  226  210 

 Medicine  1,050  1,075  999  970 

 Interfaculty Studies 67 - - -

 Desautels Faculty of Management   830  861  805  820 

 Schulich School of Music  224  228  205  206 

 Religious Studies  2  17  13  10 

 Science  1,192  1,233  1,251  1,269 

 9,022  9,134  8,930 8,844



OPERATIONAL 
   HIGHLIGHTS

2016-2017 FINANCIAL REPORT TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 14

International Students

In 2016, McGill welcomed over 10,900 International students from a variety of countries around the world, of whom 84% 
are from the countries listed below.

Source: McGill Enrolment Services website

International Students - 
Full-time and Part-time

Top 20 Countries Fall 2016

1. USA  2,381

2. China  1,931 

3. France  1,754 

4. India  574 

5. Saudi Arabia  334 

6. United Kingdom  255 

7. South Korea  240 

8. Iran  226 

9. Turkey  190 

10. Pakistan  189 

11. Japan  182 

12. Mexico  148 

13. Bangladesh  140 

14. Brazil  130 

15. Germany  107 

16. Australia  104 

17. Egypt  100 

18. Italy  96 

19. Lebanon  81 

20. Taiwan  73 

Sub-total:  9,235 
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Student Mobility and Student Exchange Programs

The student mobility and exchange programs, approved by Senate, include the following: 

New student exchange partnerships - faculty:

• École Nationale Supérieure d’Architecture de Paris-Belleville (School of Architecture)

• University of Malaya (Desautels Faculty of Management)

• Foreign Trade University (Desautels Faculty of Management)

• Zhejiang University (Desautels Faculty of Management)

• Humboldt University of Berlin (Desautels Faculty of Management)

Source:  Office of the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning)
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TENURE-TRACK ACADEMIC STAFF 

Our academic staff ranks have continued to grow to support the new programs and program offerings to students. The 
academic renewal program, which started in the early 2000s, has produced many new faculty members, coming from all 
over the world in various fields of study. Currently, the total number of tenure-track academics is approximately 1,673, 
as compared to approximately 1,271 (fiscal 2000) prior to the academic renewal program. Over the past three years, the 
progression of net new hires has continued, as depicted in the following graph.

Tenure-Track Academics - Hiring, Departures
Net Change since Implementation of Renewal Program in 2002: + 327

Source: McGill Academic Personnel Office/ Planning and Institutional Analysis
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During fiscal 2017, a total of 70 new tenure-track academics were appointed, ranging from assistant to full professors 
across the various faculties. One tenure-track librarian was also appointed, as outlined in the following table.

Source: McGill Office of Associate Provost (Budget & Resources)

Source: McGill Human Resources

TEACHING AWARDS

The Principal’s Prize for Excellence in Teaching, established to recognize excellence in teaching and its importance to the 
academic experience of students at McGill University, is traditionally awarded at Fall Convocation at the Faculty Lecturer, 
Assistant Professor, Associate Professor and Full Professor ranks.

New Tenure-Track by Faculty/Unit FY2017 FY2016

Agricultural & Environmental Sciences 3.0 4.0

Arts 14.0 13.0

Dentistry 1.0 1.0

Education 2.0 9.0

Engineering 7.0 5.0

Law 2.0 1.0

Desautels Faculty of Management 7.0 4.0

Medicine 19.0 13.0

Schulich School of Music 2.0 5.0

Science 13.0 12.0

Faculties 70.0 67.0

Librarians 1 6

71.0 73.0

* From FY16, Religious Studies counts are folded into Arts

Other Academic Staff (as at May 1st) 2017

Full-Time Part-Time Total

Research Associates & Assistants 356 99 455
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ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Our academic staff continue to perform at exceptional levels and are awarded many honours, including the following 
highlights from FY2016-2017:

Recipient Distinction

Ehab Abouheif (Biology)
• Guggenheim
•  Royal Society of Canada, College of New Scholars, Artists and 

Scientists

Cindy Blackstock (Social Work) RSC Honorary Fellow

Charles Bourque 
(Neurology and Neurosurgery)

Royal Society of Canada Academy III: Academy of Sciences

Aashish Clerk (Physics) Simons Fellow Programs, Simons Foundation

Alan Evans 
(Montreal Neurological Institute)

Prix Wilder-Penfield

William Foulkes (Oncology, Medicine, and Human Genetics) Royal Society of Canada Academy III: Academy of Sciences

Irene Gregory-Eaves (Biology)
Royal Society of Canada, College of New Scholars, Artists and 
Scientists

Peter Grütter (Physics) Québec Science magazine, Top 10 Discoveries of the Year

John Hall (Sociology)
• Innis-Gérin Medal (Royal Society of Canada)
• Prix du Quebec

Daniel Jutras (Law) Barreau du Québec 2016 Mérite award

Victoria Kaspi (Astrophysics)
•  2017 Prix d’excellence, Fonds de recherche du Québec – Nature et 

technologies
•  Order of Canada

Brigitte Kieffer (Psychiatry) Ordre nationale de merite du france

Thomas Lamarre (East Asian Studies)
Royal Society of Canada Academy I:  
Academy of the Arts and Humanities

Dr. Bernard Lapointe 
(Palliative Care) 

Lifetime Achievement Award, Canadian Society of Palliative Care 
Physicians

Paul Lasko (Biology) Royal Society of Canada Academy III: Academy of Sciences

Chao-Jun (CJ) Li (Chemistry) Fellow, World Academy of Sciences
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Recipient Distinction

Corinne Maurice 
(Microbiology & Immunology)

CIFAR Azrieli Global Scholar

Claudia Mitchell (Education) SSHRC Gold Medal

Charmaine Nelson 
(Art History & Communications Studies)

Royal Society of Canada, College of New Scholars, Artists and 
Scientists

Kieran O'Donnell (Epigenetics) CIFAR Azrieli Global Scholar

Joelle Pineau (Computer Science)
Royal Society of Canada, College of New Scholars, Artists and 
Scientists

David Plant (Electrical and Computer Engineering) Royal Society of Canada Academy III: Academy of Sciences

Maksym Radziwill (Mathematics) Sloan

Hosahalli S. Ramaswamy (Food Science and Agricultural 
Chemistry)

Royal Society of Canada Academy III: Academy of Sciences

Saibal Ray (Management) Royal Society of Canada, College of New Scholars, Artists and 
Scientists

Brent Richards 
(Medicine, Human Genetics, Epidemiology and Biostatics)

Royal Society of Canada, College of New Scholars, Artists and 
Scientists

Guy Rouleau 
(Neurology and Neurosurgery)

Royal Society of Canada Academy III: Academy of Sciences

Francisco Ruge-Murcia (Economics) Bank of Canada Fellowship

Colleen Sheppard (Law) Royal Society of Canada Academy II: Academy of Social Sciences

Hanadi Sleiman (Chemistry) Royal Society of Canada Academy III: Academy of Sciences

Charles Taylor (Philosophy) Berggruen Prize

Nathalie Tufenkji 
(Chemical Engineering)

Royal Society of Canada, College of New Scholars, Artists and 
Scientists

Sylvain Williams (Psychiatry) Québec Science magazine, Top 10 Discoveries of the Year
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The Canada Research Chairs (CRC) Program supports research excellence in engineering and the natural sciences, health 
sciences, humanities, and social sciences. In FY2016-2017, 20 McGill researchers were appointed new CRCs and 11 McGill 
researchers had their chairs renewed:

Recipient Tier CRC Subject

Marco Amabili 
(Mechanical Engineering)

1 Vibrations and Fluid-Structure Interaction (Renewal)

Adelle Blackett (Law) 1 Transnational Labour Law and Development (New)

D. Scott Bohle (Chemistry) 1 Bioinorganic Chemistry (Renewal)

Marta G. Cerruti (Dentistry) 2 Biosynthetic Interfaces (Renewal)

Russell Davidson (Economics) 1 Economics (Renewal)

Lea Berrang Ford (Geography) 2 Global Health and Environmental Change (New)

Allan Greer 
(History & Classical Studies)

1 Colonial North America (Renewal)

Anja Geitmann (Plant Science) 1 Biomechanics of Plant Development (New)

Ahmad Haidar (Biomedical Engineering) 2 Artificial Pancreas Systems (New)

Lauren J. Human (Psychology) 2 Social Perception and Expression (New)

Dennis Jensen 
(Kinesiology & Physical Education)

2 Clinical Exercise and Respiratory Physiology (New)

Sarah Kimmins (Animal Science) 2 Epigenetics, Reproduction and Development (Renewal)

Bartha Maria Knoppers (Human Genetics) 1 Law and Medicine (Renewal)

Sylvie D. Lambert (Nursing) 2
Sustainable Self-Management Support For Patients with 
Cancer and their Family Caregivers (New)

Odile Liboiron-Ladouceur (Electrical & Computer 
Engineering)

2
Photonic Integration Towards Emerging Applications 
(Renewal)

Nicole Yee-Key Li-Jessen (Communication Sciences and 
Disorders)

2 Personalized Medicine of Voice Disorders (New)

Ashok K. Malla (Psychiatry) 1
Early Psychosis and Early Intervention in Youth Mental 
Health (Renewal)

Karyn Moffatt 
(School of Information Studies)

2 Inclusive Social Computing (New)
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Recipient Tier CRC Subject

William J. Muller (Biochemistry) 1 Molecular Oncology (Renewal)

Alexandre Orthwein (Microbiology and Immunology) 2 Genome Stability and Haematological Malignancies (New)

Doina Precup (Computer Science) 1 Machine Learning (New)

Maksym Radziwill 
(Mathematics & Statistics)

2 Number Theory (New)

Selena M. Sagan 
(Microbiology and Immunology)

2 RNA Biology and Viral Infections (New)

Signy Sheldon (Psychology) 2 Cognitive Neuroscience of Memory (New)

Martin Schmeing (Biochemistry) 2 Macromolecular Machines (Renewal)

Nathalie Tufenkji 
(Chemical Engineering)

1 Biocolloids and Surfaces (New)

David M. Theodore (Architecture) 2 Architecture, Health, and Computation (New)

Gustavo Turecki (Psychiatry) 1 Major Depressive Disorder and Suicide (New)

Aysenur Ipek Türeli (Architecture) 2 Architectures of Spatial Justice (New)

Ian R. Watson (Biochemistry) 2 Functional Genomics of Melanoma (New)

Anna Weinberg (Psychology) 2 Clinical Neuroscience (New)

Sources: Communications Services (Communications & External Relations), Research and Innovation, Human Resources, 
Office of Sustainability, Facilities Management

Canada Research Chairs (CRC)
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ADMINISTRATIVE AND SUPPORT STAFF 

The support network required to assist both students and professors is varied and comes from a variety of individuals 
working in different capacities around the University. A total of 3,843 individuals work to support the academic and research 
mission of the University, as at May 1, 2017, highlighted below:

Administrative Staff Awards 

Each year, the Principal’s Awards for Administrative and Support Staff program recognizes the outstanding contributions 
of administrative and support staff to McGill University. This annual program provides staff the opportunity to promote, 
acknowledge, and commend the exceptional efforts of their peers. 

List of administrative & support staff (as at May 1, 2017) 

2017

Full-Time Part-Time Total

Management  1,904  67  1,971 

Clerical  856  56  912 

Technical  370  41  411 

Trades/Services  410  40  450 

Library Assistants  78  -  78 

Other (nurses, residences, Gault Estate)  18  3  21 

 3,636  207  3,843 

Source: McGill Human Resources
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REPORTING PERIOD - YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2017
The reported revenue and expenditures represent twelve months of operations ended April 30, 2017. 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
In accordance with GAAP, the four funds, which include the Operating (Unrestricted), Restricted, Plant, and Endowment 
Funds, are combined in one column to present the total assets, liabilities, and fund balances of the University. 

In fiscal 2016, the University adopted, retrospectively, Section 3463 of the CPA Canada Handbook – Accounting titled 
“Reporting employee future benefits by not-for-profit organizations”. Section 3463 eliminates the deferral and amortization 
as a choice of accounting method for accounting for defined benefit. It also requires that changes in the fair value of plan 
assets and changes in the valuation for defined benefits, including the costs of past services, actuarial gains and losses and 
gains and losses of a regulation or a compression, are recognized immediately in the statement of changes in net assets. 
Therefore, the asset or liability for defined benefits recognized in the balance sheet reflects the obligation in respect of the 
defined benefit net of the fair value of plan assets adjusted for any valuation impairment at the reporting date. In addition, 
Section 3463 requires the separate identification of revaluations and other elements of the other costs associated with the 
pension plan, which increases the visibility of the impact of periodic reassessments. These items are presented separately 
in the statement of revenue and expenses, and changes in net assets. 

Furthermore, the expected return on plan assets is no longer applied to the fair value of the assets to calculate the costs of 
benefits. Under Section 3463, the same discount rate must be applied to the accrued benefit obligation and the plan assets 
to establish the financial cost. The discount rate will continue to be determined based on the market interest rate for higher 
quality debt instruments with cash flows that match the timing and amount of payments provided for services or rates of 
interest inherent to the amount for which the obligation under the defined benefit could be settled. 

Balance Sheet Assets and Liabilities
1. Net cash position

The Board of Governors has authorized a maximum of $300 million in bank borrowing from available credit facilities totaling 
$350 million (see Note 7 in the Audited Financial Statements). As at April 30, 2017, McGill had a bank indebtedness of  
$ 106.7 million, as compared to $ 94.9 million one year earlier. Bank indebtedness, net of operating cash and short-term 
investments excluding endowment investments of $10.5 million (2016: $20.6 million) held for operations, was $75.2 million 
(2016: $32.3 million). This bank indebtedness continues to be primarily required to temporarily finance borrowings owed 
by the Ministère de l’Éducation et de L’Enseignement supérieur (MEES) to McGill. As at April 30, 2017, the total capital 
borrowings owed from MEES amounted to $120.7 million (2016: $79.0 million). These amounts include annual capital 
and deferred maintenance grants, as well as other specific capital grants and prior year financings which the University 
has temporarily refinanced on behalf of MEES. The following chart outlines the progression of the Net Bank Indebtedness 
position over the last three years, as compared to the level of temporary capital borrowing on behalf of MEES. The timing of 
the issuance of long-term debt to reimburse the temporary borrowings is dictated by MEES.
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Source:  McGill Financial Services

The lines of credit bear interest at the prime rate or banker’s acceptance rate. The prime rate averaged 2.70% for the year 
(2.73% in 2016). Through the use of bankers’ acceptances, the average cost of borrowing for the year was 1.01% (1.03% 
as at April 30, 2016). The banker’s acceptance rate in effect as at April 30, 2017, was 0.93% (0.99% as at April 30, 2016). 
Bankers’ acceptances outstanding at year-end bear interest at rates ranging from 0.91% to 0.95% (0.98% to 0.99% as at 
April 30, 2016).
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Source:  McGill Financial Services

Source:  McGill Financial Services
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2.  Total receivables 

a)  Short-term receivables (Financial Statements, Note 3)

Short-term receivables amount to $370.5 million (2016: $401.6 million), including $188.1 million (2016: $191.6 million) 
relating to research grants and contracts and $118.3 million (2016: $129.9 million) in capital grants receivables (i.e. short 
term portion of long term debt, see Section 2b below). The grants and contracts related to research represent amounts 
awarded to the University which will be received within the next year. The total amount is represented as follows:

($ millions)            2017            2016

 Operating 33.4 32.1

 Student Loans 4.7 4.4

 Investment Income 2.8 2.4

Government Grant 23.2 41.2

Capital Grant 118.3 129.9

Grants & Contracts Related to Research 188.1 191.6

Total: 370.5 401.6

The Government (MEES) grant receivable of $23.2 million relates to the operating grant.

b) Long-term receivables (Financial Statements, Note 4 and 5)  

In conforming to GAAP, a receivable is recorded relating to current and prior year capital grants (MEES) amounting to $730.5 
million (2016: $713.1 million). This amount effectively includes $682.5 million associated with the long-term debt issued on 
behalf of MEES (i.e. total debt, excluding $310 million of McGill Debentures). 

Other loan receivables amount to $7.1 million (2016: $8.7 million) represents amounts owed by MAMROT to renovate the 
Molson Stadium.
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3.  Marketable securities at market value (Financial Statements, Note 17)

Total marketable securities amount to $1,789.7 million (2016: $1,608.5 million) and include $1,600.6 million (2016: $1,401.3 
million) relating to endowment investments. Of this total, $189.0 million (2016: $206.2 million) consists of $64.4 million 
relating to an investment purchased from proceeds of the 2002 McGill Bond issue of $150 million and $124.6 million relating 
to the 2016 McGill 40 year bond of $160 million. The 2002 investment is expected to be valued at $150 million by 2042 in 
order to extinguish the related debt at that time. In Fiscal 2016 the remaining $1.0 million related to other operating and 
restricted funds invested temporarily in marketable securities, including $0.7 million associated to a gift. 

The total endowment assets managed as part of the McGill Investment Pool amount to $1,618.7 million (2016: $1,439.5 
million), including the $1,600.6 million in marketable securities mentioned above (see Section Endowment Gifts, page 48).  
The following chart outlines the significant assets included in the $1,618.7 million.

Source:  McGill Audited Financial Statements

Other assets, totaling $8 million (2016: $18 million) include accrued income and other receivables.
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4. Capital assets (Financial Statements, Note 6)

Total net capital assets amount to $1.410.8 billion (2016: $1.374 billion) and include various asset categories.

Capital assets additions (including those under development) during the year totaled $151.9 million (2016: $147.2 million), of 
which $63 million (2016: $61 million) was related to buildings and renovations, including assets under development.  

Of the total gross capital cost additions to buildings and renovations, the largest increase experienced was for the Pulp and 
Paper Building ($9.1 million), Montreal Neurological Institute ($7.8 million), Bookstore ($6.27 million), and the Duff Medical 
Building ($2.4 million) with others under $2.4 million each.

The table below outlines the significant asset additions during the year, by asset category:

($ millions)            2017            2016

Land and Land Improvements 3.9 4.1

Buildings and Renovations 63.5 61.0

Leasehold Improvements 0.2 0.7

Equipment (Including Intangibles) 63.8 61.4

Library Books 20.3 19.8

Other Assets 0.2 0.2

Total: 151.9 147.2

The majority of the funding for these capital projects is from the Québec Government, the Federal Government, and from 
the Canada Foundation for Innovation (CFI). Other expected sources of funding include future gifts and capital grants to be 
applied to existing building costs. These amounts are temporarily financed by short-term bank borrowings.

As at April 30, 2017, temporary capital asset borrowings on behalf of MEES amounted to $120.7 million (2016: $79.0 million) 
and related to approved outstanding capital and other specific capital grants. A total of $23.5 million (2016: $29.0 million), 
is expected from future donations on buildings including the Montreal Neurological Institute (MNI), Desautel Faculty of 
Management Expansion, the Bronfman Building, the Chancellor Day Hall, and the Gelber Law Library.  

In addition to the above, revenue-generating projects (such as residences, parking, etc.) are expected to generate annual 
capital and interest repayments for its share of the $150 million 2002 bond debenture issue. As at April 30, 2017, a total of 
$131.9 million (2016: $138.6 million) is expected to be recovered from revenue-generating units, including the three former 
hotel acquisitions since 2002 which are used as student residences.
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The following bar chart outlines the three years of outstanding sources of funding, which when received, will reduce short-
term borrowings.

5. Current liabilities

Excluding bank indebtedness, total current liabilities amount to $335.7 million (2016: $342.9 million), including accounts 
payable and accruals totaling $198.7 million (2016: $189.7 million). The increase in accruals is essentially due to an increase 
general payables due to timing.

As a result of pay equity legislation, the University is required to calculate any adjustments and submit them to the 
Commission for approval. In 2001, McGill conducted and completed a pay equity exercise and on November 21, 2001, posted 
a pay equity plan in accordance with the Pay Equity Act. All salary adjustments calculated under the plan were paid in five 
installments during the period spanning 2001 to 2005. In 2002, several McGill employees represented by MUNACA deposited 
complaints regarding the plan with the Pay Equity Commission. Despite the fact that these complaints were filed outside 
of the applicable delay, in 2004, the Pay Equity Commission notified the University of its decision to investigate the Plan on 
its own initiative. Subsequently, McGill and MUNACA entered into a conciliation process with the Pay Equity Commission 
in order to arrive at an agreement concerning the implementation of the plan on November 21, 2001, specifically with 
respect to the method of analysis used at the time of implementation and maintenance of pay equity. During the period 
from February 2014 to May 2016, the University processed all retroactive pay equity payments for all groups of employees 
involved. These payments cover the requirements of the 2001 and 2005 pay equity maintenance as required by law.  
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The University has produced the December 21, 2010 pay equity maintenance. Results were posted in accordance to the Pay 
Equity Act on March 31, 2016 and on June 29, 2016 and complaints were filed by unions and employees. The University has 
produced the December 21, 2015 pay equity maintenance. Results were posted in accordance to the Pay Equity Act on December 
21, 2016 and on March 24, 2017. Again complaints were filed by unions and employees. A conciliation process with the CNESST 
(Commission des norms, de l’équité de la santé et de la sécurité du travil) did not produce results to the satisfaction of all 
parties. Therefore, it is expected that the exercises of pay equity maintenance for 2010 and 2015 will be entirely reviewed by a 
joint committee under the supervision of the CNESST. It is unknown when results for this renewal process will be available. In 
the meantime, no retroactive payments for pay equity for the period after December 21, 2010 will be made.

Unearned revenue of $23.1 million (2016: $23.2 million) also forms part of this category and includes tuition fees paid for 
the Summer 2017 semester.  

The short-term portion of the long-term debt, as described in Section 7 below, totals $113.8 million (2016: $129.9 million) 
and is expected to be re-financed by MEES in fiscal 2018. MEES has confirmed $121.7 million in refinancing for fiscal 2018.

6.  Deferred contributions (Financial Statements, Notes 9 and 10)

With the adoption of the GAAP deferral method, restricted contributions/revenues are deferred until the matching expense is 
incurred. In the case of restricted contributions received for non-capital expenses, the total deferred contribution as at April 
30, 2017 amounted to $506.9 (2016: $490.4 million). These revenues will be recognized in the future when the associated 
non-capital expenditure is incurred and reflects an overall decrease in research revenue inflows during the year.

With respect to deferred capital contributions, the April 30, 2017 total was $876.5 million (2016: $858.7 million) and reflects 
increased funding for Capital Assets. These revenues will be recognized in the future as the underlying assets are amortized 
annually.

7.  Long-term debt (Financial Statements, Note 11)

Total MEES issued debt decreased by a net $53.9 million (2016: net increase of $11 million) as a result of new Financement Québec 
Promissory Notes (Notes) issued by MEES totaling $75.8 million (2016: $64 million). This was in part used to repay matured 
bonds and repayment of previously issued notes totaling $128.4 million (2016: $61.3 million). Other bank debt repayments 
amounted to $1.5 million (2016: $1.7 million) on debt previously issued by other provincial ministries and other parties. 

The remaining component relates to the change in bond discounts which totaled $0.2 million at April 30, 2017, unchanged 
from $0.2 million in the prior year. These bond discount costs are associated with the 2002 issue of the $150 million McGill 
Debentures and are being amortized over the life of the 40-year bond. GAAP presentation now requires bond discounts to be 
shown as a reduction of long-term debt, rather than a capital asset. 
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8.  Long-term liabilities – Employee future benefits (Financial Statements, Note 12) 

These include pension obligations that have been confirmed by independant external actuaries to total $70.8 million (2016: 
$100.7 million), and post-employment benefits of $114.5 million (2016: $112.9 million)

The most recent actuarial valuation of the pension plans for funding purposes was at December 31, 2016 and the next 
required valuation will be as at December 31, 2018.  

9.  Net Assets (Financial Statements, Note 13 and 14)

Net assets in a not-for-profit environment represents capital which is invested in assets and/or surpluses (deficits) 
pertaining to core missions. GAAP classifies net assets in various categories according to any restrictions imposed on future 
spending, including Invested in Capital Assets, Externally Restricted, Internally Restricted, and Unrestricted. The Invested 
in Capital Assets represents the accumulated amounts contributed to the University for the purpose of acquiring long-term 
capital assets. Externally and Internally Restricted balances are amounts available for future purposes and are affected by 
the nature of the restriction imposed by external or internal parties. Unrestricted Net Assets balances represent the total 
amount of accumulated surpluses (deficits), assuming all internally restricted balances are spent in the future.

At April 30, 2017, McGill had a balance of $256.1 million (2016: $258.4 million) in Invested in Capital Assets, $1,562.3 million 
(2016: $1,386.1 million) of Externally Restricted balances associated with Endowments, $84.5 million (2016: $74.6 million) 
of Internally Restricted balances, of which $37.1 million (2016: $36.1 million) related to Endowments. Finally, a negative 
$(364.5) million (2016: $(360.1) million) in Unrestricted Net Assets balances existed at April 30, 2017. Together, Unrestricted 
and Internally Restricted Net Assets (excluding Endowments) total $(319.9) million (2016: $(321.5) million) and represent 
the “accumulated deficit” of the University. 

University’s GAAP Operating Net Assets as at April 30, 2017 ($ million)

Unrestricted Net Assets $ (364.5)

Internally Restricted Net Assets $ 44.6

Net Assets (deficiency) - as at April 30, 2017 (i) $ (319.9)

 (i)   Represented on the Balance Sheet as the sum of “Internally Restricted and Unrestricted” Net Assets relating to the 
Operating Fund.

The fiscal 2017 operating surplus of $5.1 million compares favourably to the original $2.0 million fiscal 2017 forecasted 
deficit, in large part due to a net decrease in expenses compared to forecast of $9.9 million and a decrease in inter-fund 
transfers of $5.7 million. This was offset by lower than forecasted revenues of $8.5 million.
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10. Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Endowment contributions totaled $32.0 million (2016: $33.4 million) and are now reflected as an increase in Net Assets as 
part of this statement, as compared to being included in the overall revenue in the past. A summary of total Endowment 
asset growth is included in the section “Endowment Gifts,” page 48 of this report.

The Statement of Changes in Net Assets also includes net investment income earned from Endowment investments 
resulting in a gain of $156.3 million (2016: loss of $37.5 million), which effectively represents unrealized gains on 
investments, net of earnings distributed for endowed spending. 

Finally, the Statement also highlights transfers between the various net asset categories, as they relate to Internally 
Restricted Fund balances, or contributions made for investments in capital assets.   
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OVERALL SOURCES OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES (fiscal year ended April 30, 2017)

In accordance with GAAP the presentation outlines the change in revenues and expenses for any particular year in the line 
item Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses, which do not include inter-fund transfer items. The latter are considered in 
arriving at the change in the Net Assets balance for each year. Prior to GAAP, contributions to capital assets were presented 
as part of the expenses rather than as an inter-fund. This and other transfers, including endowment income not available for 
spending, must be considered when evaluating the change in “operating accumulated deficit” – see Statement of Net Assets. 
As mentioned, the presentation of endowed gifts is now disclosed as an increase in Net Assets balance and not considered 
as part of the revenues available to support expenses.  

The current year’s total revenue on a GAAP basis was $1.26 billion (2016: $1.21 billion). With the adoption of the deferral 
method of accounting for restricted contributions, the Statement of Revenue and Expenses depicts one annual column for 
both total revenues and total expenses representing the Operating, Restricted, Plant, and Endowment funds used internally 
to manage McGill’s operations. Internally each fund is evaluated on its own merits

Revenues associated with future expenses (e.g. research or capital) are deferred on the Balance Sheet (see deferred 
contributions/deferred capital, page 31) until such expenses are incurred. The previous GAAP choice resulted in the 
recognition of revenues in the year earned/awarded, regardless of when the expense was incurred. GAAP presentation rules 
require that Gifts and bequests for endowed purposes, totaling $31.3 million (2016: $33.0 million), be shown as part of the 
change in Net Assets (externally restricted for endowed purposes) and not as revenue. 
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The chart below summarizes all sources of revenues totalling $1.25 billion (2016: $1.21 billion), excluding endowment gifts 
of $31.3 million (2016: $33.0 million).

Total combined expenses incurred to support McGill’s activities were $1.26 billion in 2017 (2016: $1.23 billion). All amounts 
presented exclude inter-fund transfers. GAAP requires that the related funding contributions for capital assets be shown as 
inter-fund transfers, and that the assets be capitalized and amortized over their useful lives. Another significant fluctuation 
in expenses results from the recognition of annual non-cash expenses relating to pension obligations and post-employment 
benefit obligations. These liabilities have been described above in Section 8. 
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The following chart illustrates the breakdown of the total expenses.
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Source:  Financial Services

Note 1: See details on page 38
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Source:  Financial Services
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SOURCES OF REVENUES 

1.  Total Grant revenue - all sources

Grant revenue used to support the teaching and research mission of the University totaled $661 million in 2017 (2016: $677 
million), which represents 53.4% (2016: 55.7%) of total revenues. Per GAAP, research revenue is recorded to the extent that 
research operating and amortization expenses are incurred. The following table outlines grant revenues from the various 
sources, whether operating (unrestricted), restricted, or capital in nature.

2017

Purpose Quebec Canada US Other 
Sources

Total

Operating  314  -  - - 318

Capital  54  16  - - 70

Indirect Costs (Operating)  -  29  - - 29

Research (Restricted) Grants  35 148  6 36 225

Other Restricted Grants  9 14  - - 23

Total:  412  207  6 36 661

2016

Purpose Quebec Canada US Other 
Sources

Total 

Operating  337  -  - - 337

Capital  55  16  - - 71

Indirect Costs (Operating)  -  26  - - 26

Research (Restricted) Grants  40 158  7 9 214

Other Restricted Grants  12 17  - - 29

Total:  444  217  7 9 677
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a)  Operating grants 

These include amounts received from MEES to operate the University and are based on a valuation of the total student 
population reported during the year. Other annual operating grants include amounts for indirect cost support, and specific 
initiatives. As part of the calculation of the operating grant, MEES reduces the grants for any recoveries or “supplements” 
charged (and collected) by the universities from Canadian and International students. Certain students are exempt from 
being charged supplements due to international treaty agreements or other regulations in force. The supplements 
“returned” to MEES in fiscal 2017 total $43.8 million (2016: $37.3 million) and $36.8 million (2016: $38.2 million) for Canadian 
and International students, respectively. Discussions will recommence in order to extend this practice to all International 
students. In the meantime, universities can charge what they deem appropriate to students in the 6 disciplines, which are 
Management, Science, Engineering, Law, Mathematics, and Computer Science.

In addition to the above supplements, MEES also “claws-back” $9.0 million (2016: $9.0 million) in student aid contributions, 
indirectly collected via tuition fees. These amounts are accumulated and distributed by the Province’s financial aid system.

The decrease in operating MEES grants of $23.1 million reflects the variance in recomptage adjustment for Fiscal 15 and 16 
amounting to $33.9 million, an $8.0 million decrease in the envelope for indirect cost of research and an increase in MEES 
recoveries of $5.1 million. These were offset by increases in the facilities and buildings allocation of $9.8 million, the teaching 
grant of $11.4 million and other grants amounting to $2.7 million.

b)  Capital grants

These consist of annual or specific capital grants received by the University. Annually, McGill University receives 
approximately $20 million and $25 million for capital and deferred maintenance grants, respectively. The latter is part of a 
15-year commitment announced in fiscal 2008.  

GAAP requires the deferral of grants in order to match future capital/amortization expenses and includes the portion of prior 
year awards, and which are recognized in the year to match amortization expenses. Accordingly, the level of Capital grants 
recorded is in excess of amounts received in order to match the annual amortization expense. 
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c)  Federal Research Support Fund (RSF) (formerly known as the Indirect Costs Program) 

The RSF was introduced in 2003 as part of the federal government’s strategy to support Canadian institutions in research 
and development. The RSF for 2016-17 awarded $369 million to support 126 postsecondary institutions across the country. 
The RSF compensates universities for costs associated with their research enterprise. Grant amounts are based on the 
funding received by researchers from the Tri-Agency agencies - the Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR), the 
Natural Sciences and Engineering Research Council (NSERC) and the Social Sciences and Humanities Research Council 
(SSHRC). Over the past several years, McGill’s share has remained stable between 7-8% and is expected to remain at this 
level over the next three years. In fiscal 2017, McGill’s RSF grant was $28.9 million less the amount distributed to affiliated 
hospitals of $8.6 million. This amount represents 17.8% of the direct cost of research.

The net amount retained by McGill will vary depending on where the research activity is actually carried out in those years 
when the three-year average is calculated.

2017 2016

Federal Grant 28,865 25,832

Amount Due to Hospitals (8,633) (7,729)

Total: 20,232 18,103

Source:  McGill Audited Financial Statements
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d)  Research grants and contracts

McGill is considered one of Canada’s top research intensive universities. Annually, the University attracts research grants and 
contracts from various governments, foundations, corporations, and other sources. The overall research activity is generally 
summarized in two main streams: direct research grants and contracts and infrastructure grants. The direct research grants 
and contracts are primarily characterized by annual grant awards from the federal tri-council, provincial granting councils, 
or other grant sponsors from Canada or other countries. Since the early 2000s, both the provincial and federal levels of 
government have also created new pools of resources to fund research infrastructure: Canada via the Canada Foundation 
for Innovation (CFI), and Québec through various matching programs. Overall, the breakdown of activities, including 
research contracts but excluding Federal student aid of $15.9 million (2016: $15.9 million), classified as “Restricted Grants”  
(See Section e below), is highlighted below:

2017 2016

Represented by:

     Direct Funded Research Grants 188,263 164,497

     Infrastructure Grants 31,075 50,472

Subtotal: 219,338 214,969

     Research Contracts 17,180 21,038

Total grants and contracts: 236,518 236,007

Source:  McGill Financial Services

1. Other restricted grants

In order to support research activities, both the federal and provincial governments have awarded McGill students with 
scholarships and other support. Specifically, the federal government awarded approximately $15.9 million (2016: $15.9 
million) while the provincial government awarded $0.6 million (2016: $2.7 million) for similar purposes. In addition, the 
provincial government funded other activities and programs, including $5.6 million (2016: $5.6 million) for teaching costs in 
the affiliated hospitals, and $4.2 million (2016: $4.7 million) for student placement, bursaries for abroad, and other restricted 
activities.
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2.  Tuition and fees

The second largest source of revenue for the University is tuition and fees totaling $294.3 million (2016: $274.3 million), 
which accounts for 23.6% (2016: 23.5%) of total revenues, excluding investment income and fair value impacts. Tuition is 
derived from both credit courses (i.e. students are funded by the province) and non-credit courses, which are considered to 
be self-financing and the University is free to charge what the market will bear. In addition to tuition, the University charges 
fees for various services and activities, and is included in the following chart.

         (i) Including $61.3 million (2016: $53.9 million) of deregulated fees charged to undergraduate students.

The fiscal 2017 total compares to a forecast of $295.0 million, which included legislated increases in tuition fees of 1.5%. 
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3.  Sale of goods and services

The University generates these revenues by operating units from various activities across its two campuses. Included in 
the total $145.2 million (2016: $140.2 million) in revenues, are those generated (from third parties) primarily by ancillary 
type services, including residences, food services, the Bookstore, and others, totaling $94.8 million (2016: $91.0 million). 
Other academic and support units generated the remainder of revenues from the sale to third parties of various goods and 
services.

4.  Investment and interest income

The investment and interest income, and changes in fair value of investments and financial instruments, recorded on a GAAP 
basis totals $60.9 million (2016: $45.1 million) and includes, in large part, non-distributed income derived from endowment 
investments, which are deferred to future periods to support future distributions. These restricted amounts are included in 
the total increase in Net Assets, which totaled $156.3 million in fiscal 2017 (2016: decrease in net assets of $37.5 million).  

As per our policy, any earnings in excess of distributions to unit holders, and any unspent distributions, are transferred back 
to the Endowment Fund and included as part of the increase in Net Assets mentioned above. Although these revenues are 
technically included in the “Excess of Revenues and Expenses,” they are not available for spending as they are transferred 
back to the Endowment Fund.

Overall, the total change in the Endowment (net of Distributions and fees) resulted in a 12.5% growth (2016: 1.0% loss) in the 
fund. Of the total, 2.2% (2016: 2.3%) was generated from new endowment gifts received in the year. See page 48.

Also, as at April 30, 2017, the accumulated unspent investment income, held as part of Endowment Assets amounted to 
$229.8 million (2016: $218.3 million) and represents 3.7 times (2016: 3.9 times) the current annual distributions.

5.  Other sources of revenue

The remaining sources of revenue include research contracts $17.4 million (2016: $21.1 million) and gifts and bequests $65.7 
million (2016: $54.2 million), excluding endowment gifts (see Statement of Net Assets).
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EXPENSES REQUIRED TO FULFILL THE UNIVERSITY’S MISSION 

Total Compensation and student support amounted to $827.5 million (2016: $801.2 million). This represents 65.5%  
(2016: 65.4%) of total expenditures, excluding inter-fund transfers. 

Other non-salary expenses, excluding inter-fund transfers, totaled $436.5 million (2016: $424.1 million), comprising of 
many various expense types, including Materials, supplies, and publications $41.9 million (2016: $43.7 million), Building 
and Energy costs totaling $46.5 million (2016: $46.2 million), Amortization costs of $115.5 million (2016: $113.4 million), 
Interest and bank charges of $36.4 million (2016: $40.4 million), and other expenditures. See Statement of Revenue and 
Expenses for further details.

RESEARCH AND RESTRICTED ACTIVITIES 

Direct funded research totaled $188.3 million (2016: $164.5 million). A further $31.7 million (2016: $50.5 million) was 
generated in infrastructure grants and $17.2 million (2016: $21.0 million) in contracts per section 1 (d). 

The largest sponsors of restricted grants (including those relating to research above) continue to be the federal and provincial 
governments. Together, they account for $205.3 million (2016: $227.0 million) of the total in grants and contracts. The 
following chart outlines the total restricted research grants and contracts generated for either research or other restricted 
purposes (e.g. aid) over the last three years:
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As outlined earlier, research revenue recorded using the deferred method is recognized only to the extent of expenses are 
incurred. In the year grants are awarded, these associated revenues are either spent or deferred as “deferred contributions.”  
The following table highlights total research revenue awarded in both fiscal years:

AWARDED BASIS - Research Revenues 2017 2016

($ millions)

Federal Government:

      Tri Agencies/Council  $107.2  $116.0 

      Canada Research Chairs  $26.3  $23.8 

      CFI  $22.9  $50.6 

      Other  $13.9  $9.1 

 $170.3  $199.5 

Quebec Government:

      FRSQ/FQNT/FQRSC  $17.2  $24.3 

      CFI  $10.4  $37.9 

      Other  $6.8  $9.0 

 $34.4  $71.2 

Canadian Foundations & Associations  $29.3  $24.8 

Contracts  $18.4  $20.5 

Other  $14.6  $15.5 

 $62.3  $60.8 

                                                              Total:  $267.0  $331.5 
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OTHER RESTRICTED FUNDS 

In addition to restricted grants and contracts recognized and included on the previous page, total research and other 
restricted funding is supplemented by other sources of revenues, including investment income of $48.9 million (2016: $42.9 
million), restricted gifts of $51.7 million (2016: $41.0 million), and other sources totaling $6.4 million (2016: $6.4 million). 
Total sources of revenues available for restricted and research purposes amounted to $372.4 million (2016: $354.8 million).

The Restricted expenses incurred include those with terms that are dictated by granting agencies (in the case of research 
grants or contracts) or the sponsoring party (e.g. donor gifts for student aid). These expenditures are considered and managed 
internally as “restricted” due to the nature of the restrictions, imposed on the spending of these funds by individual sponsors. 

On a GAAP basis, overall restricted expenses have increased to $357.7 million from a level of $342.0 million in the prior 
year, prior to inter-fund transfers relating to capital assets of $13.7 million (2016: $13.7 million). Under GAAP, capital assets 
are capitalized and amortized over the economic lives of the associated assets. As a result, the associated restricted/grant 
revenue is deferred as Deferred capital contributions and recorded as income annually over the life of the asset in order to 
match the annual amortization expense. 

FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES

As the economy has experienced some growth, a total of $97.4 million (2016: $87.4 million) was received, including gifts in 
kind. The following chart illustrates all gifts and bequests revenue including endowment gifts of $31.3 million (2016: $33.0 
million) presented in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets over the last three years: 

Source:  McGill Financial Services
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ENDOWMENT GIFTS

All donations received for endowed purposes are invested by the Endowment Fund and include specific spending restrictions, 
as per the wishes of the donors. McGill’s current policy is to distribute 4.25% plus an additional 0.25%, as approved by the 
Board of Governors for fiscal 2016 to fiscal 2019 (based on the rolling three-year average) of investment earnings to the 
beneficiaries of the Endowments. In fiscal 2017, $62.3 million (2016: $ 55.2 million) was distributed, based on an MIP unit 
rate of $16.68 (prior year: $15.26). 

Overall, the endowment investment returns improved significantly as at April 30, 2017. The table below outlines the overall 
growth in McGill’s Endowment Assets, net of $17.3 million (prior year: $18.0 million) of endowment accounts payables.

($ millions) 2017 2016 

Opening Book Value  1,242.9  1,105.7 

Unrealized Market Value  179.3  330.5 

             Opening Net Assets- Market Value  1,422.2  1,436.1 

New Gifts Received   31.3 2.2%  33.0 3.3%

Net Income (Loss) Realized  77.7 5.5%  146.0 3.9%

Net Income Distributed (Net of capitalizations)  (52.3) (3.7%)  (44.7) (3.1%)

Transfers from (to) Other Funds  (1.4) (0.1%)  2.9 (0.0%)

Realized Increase in Assets  55.3 3.9%  137.3 4.1%

             Change in Unrealized Market Values  122.0 8.6%  (151.2) 7.9%

Total Increase in Fund Value  177.3 12.5%  (14.0) 12.0%

Closing Book Value  1,298.2 81.2%  1,242.9 86.5%

Unrealized Market Value  301.2 18.8%  179.3 12.5%

Closing Net Assets-Market Value  1,599.4  1,422.2 

Source:  McGill Financial Services
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OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS (fiscal year ended April 30, 2017)

The following chart highlights the various sources of Operating (Unrestricted) Fund revenue on a GAAP basis for the year-
ended April 30, 2017:

Source:  McGill Financial Services
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The University’s spending is varied and consists of many different types of expenditures. Total operating type of expenditures 
amounted to $792.7 million (2016: $800.0 million) on a GAAP basis, including inter-fund transfers of $38.3 million (2016: 
$63.9 million) relating to Capital Asset additions, pension and post-employment and other transfers. Below is a summary of 
the types of all expenses incurred, including inter-fund transfers; salaries, benefits, and student support.
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The total activities of the University are undertaken by various units and functions, including faculties, academic services 
(primarily libraries and information technology), and support units which account for 94.0% of total spending. The remaining 
units are considered self-financing, of which ancillary operations (e.g. the Bookstore, residences, parking, etc.) represent 
6.0% of total expenses, as highlighted in the following chart.

The following chart highlights the various areas of expenditures (excluding inter-fund transfers), including the self-financing 
areas/units, of which community service activities are based primarily in faculties.
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The twelve months of activities in fiscal 2017 ended with a net operating surplus of $5.1 million (2016: surplus of $1.8 
million). The surplus surpassed our expectations of a budgeted deficit of $2.7 million for fiscal 2017 and the $2.0 million 
deficit forecasted for the 2017 fiscal year included in the 2017 Budget Report approved by the Board in April 2017.

Overall, some operating revenues also differed from the year-end forecasts included in the 2017 Budget Report, including 
the following significant items below:

• MEES grant was $22.6 million lower than forecast due to enrolment accruals. 

• Tuition and fees lower than forecast by $0.7 million, however greater by $20.0 million over the prior year.

•  Overall, the University generated $6.7 million more of sales of goods and services, net of related costs, than previously 
forecasted and $5.7 million more than budgeted.

• Unrestricted gifts and bequests were $1.4 million more than forecasted.

•  Short-term interest income and investment income totalled $11.8 million combined, $4.4 million higher than forecasted, 
due to an unrealized gain of $5.0 million. 

The fiscal 2017 operating expenses are affected by two expense components (salary and non-salary). The items below 
represent final expense amounts incurred over forecasted levels included in the 2016 Budget Report.

1.  Operating salaries (including student and aid) and benefits totaled $610.5 million as compared to a forecast of $615.3 
million. The variance, in large part, is attributed to a decrease in benefits of $16.3 million in comparison to forecast due 
in large part to an decrease in the accrued pension liability of $29.8 million offset by a slight increase of $1.5 million in 
the post-employment benefit obligations. As determined by the actuary, the pension cost for the year were less than 
the employer contributions for the same period by $21.5 million. The resulting pension remeasurements gain of $8.3 
million is recorded in the statement of changes in net assets. There was an increase in academic salaries of $3.9 million 
and an increase administrative and support salaries of $7.3 million versus forecast. Also included is the increase of $1.4 
million relating to student salaries and aid of $42.3 million in Fiscal 2017 as compared to $40.9 million in the prior year.

2.  Total operating academic, administrative, and support salaries and benefits totaled $568.2 million (2016: $549.3 million) 
and represent 75.3% (2016: 74.6%) of total operating expenses (excluding transfers).

3.  Overall, non-salary operating expenses were lower than amounts forecasted for fiscal 2017 by $5.1 million. Overall, 
non-salary operating expenses decreased by $2.1 million over the total of $145.9 million in fiscal 2016 (approximately 
1.4% decrease). The decrease is largely in materials, Supplies & Publications costs ($2.5 million), other non-salary ($3.2 
million) and interest expense ($8.2 million), slightly offset by increases in other categories amounting to a total of $11.8 
million.



FINANCIAL 
   HIGHLIGHTS

2016-2017 FINANCIAL REPORT TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 53

3.  DEFERRED MAINTENANCE – CAMPUS RENEWAL

McGill’s deferred maintenance (DM) inventory was reported last year to be $1.3 billion based on the Bureau de cooperation 
interuniversitaire (BCI) report for all recognized spaces. Since last year’s report, all space that is not recognized by the 
Ministry was also audited and those results incorporated in this year’s updated report. The current, most reliable estimate 
of the University’s total DM inventory is approximately $1.35 billion1. Note that while the DM inventory remains stable at 
approximately $1.3 billion, three factors combine to reduce the overall McGill Facilities Condition Index (FCI)2 from 40% to 
35%.

1.  The non-recognized space included in this year’s calculation has a lower FCI than expected. This contributes to the overall 
reduction of the McGill’s FCI by 3%;

2.  For 2017, the DM associated with the reconstruction of abandoned buildings slated for disposal (Brittan Hall and others) 
are excluded from the calculation and replaced with the reduced cost of demolition alone (Overall FCI reduction of 1%);

3.  Further studies of the masonry and window project for Strathcona Anatomy and Dentistry indicate that efforts to 
rehabilitate the envelope will cost less than anticipated two years ago. The $110 million reduction accounts for a 1% drop 
in the overall FCI.

A major component of this deferred maintenance is the University’s deteriorating building façades. The government 
mandated technical inspections are being conducted separately from the BCI study. They will contribute to further refine and 
update McGill’s current total DM inventory. To date 12 building (Wing) facades have been inspected and 39 remain.

Sources of funding for campus renewal include McGill’s annual allocation from the Government of Québec’s 15-year capital 
funding plan, announced in 2007. The 2016-17 allocation to McGill under this plan was $25.3 million, in line with last years’ 
allocation. Other potential sources of funding include the approximately $18 million annual capital grant from the Ministère 
de l’Éducation et de l’Enseignement supérieur (MEES), as well as funding from the Canada Foundation for Innovation, energy 
conservation funding, departmental and faculty budgets and donations. 

McGill has undertaken a $400 million financing plan in support of expenditures linked to the University’s accumulated DM 
and information technology needs. The financing plan, approved by the University’s governing bodies, will support priority 
projects, $300 million dedicated to deferred maintenance projects and $100 million to IT projects, which will span several 
years. As part of this financing plan, in January 2016, the University issued a first tranche of $160 million in debentures which 
will mature in January 2056. At this time, it is anticipated that the next tranches of bond issuances will take place in 2018 
and 2019.

1 This amount includes a $779 million deficiency cost estimate reported by Planifika, plus a 20% correction factor to reflect the difference between estimated 
costs and known market costs ($934 million adjusted for known market), and an additional approximately $425 million to cover DM issues which were not 
included in the consultants’ study. A significant portion of the $425 million will go to rehabilitate facades.

2 “FCI”: the ratio of the value of deferred maintenance to building replacement value. An FCI over 10% is considered “serious”
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Due to the extreme disparity between the University’s DM inventory and available funding for campus renewal, it is imperative 
that priorities be established to guide decision-making in allocating funding. An initiative has been launched to structure the 
prioritization of efforts using a portfolio management process. This process would breakdown needs in 6 smaller entities 
that would be systematically prioritized in consultation with requesters while respecting the University’s available resources 
and funding.

Since last year’s report, a total of 35 DM projects have been completed at a total estimated cost of $34.7 million. Another 
500 projects are in various stages of scope definition, estimate, design, tender, construction or delivery. That represents an 
additional 100 projects over last year’s figures. An additional 80 projects are currently on hold, including a project to replace 
the windows and masonry of the Strathcona Anatomy and Dentistry (SAD) building and the construction of a replacement 
emergency power generation station. The masonry repair of the Macdonald Stewart Library and repair of the MacDonald 
Harrington roof were both on hold last year but are presently going to design. In addition to the above deferred maintenance 
projects, the $40 million of DM projects initiated in 2011 for Residences and Student Housing were completed in March 2016 
within forecasted spending levels.

A major project which had originally been slated for initiation in the past year is the redevelopment of Wilson Hall, previously 
estimated at $51 million. Despite the spring 2012 announcement of the Québec government’s $35 million contribution 
towards this project, the project remains in limbo until approval from the Société québécoise des infrastructures (SQI, 
formerly “Infrastructure Québec”) is received. 

• The “dossier d’opportunité” is 90% complete and will be submitted for review by the end of 2016. 
• The “dossier d’affaire” will be submitted in 2017.
• Considering the pace of the approval process, construction is not likely to begin before 2018.

The construction and renovation projects summarized above continue to make a substantial difference in the quality and safety 
of the teaching and research environment at McGill.  These infrastructure projects also improve the campus environment in a 
manner that is consistent with the Planning & Design Principles of the Master Plan and McGill’s Sustainability Policy.  However, 
despite significant capital investment, McGill continues to lose ground in its efforts to decrease its deferred maintenance 
inventory to an acceptable industry level.  While current and projected projects will help address the backlog of deferred 
maintenance projects, a significant number of DM projects are being placed on hold, and the urgency of this work as well its 
associated costs are expected to increase as deterioration continues despite the recent bond issuance by the University. 

Meanwhile, campus infrastructure continues to decay. An indication of this is McGill’s Facilities Condition Index, which now 
stands at 35%, has increased from an estimated 31% in 2007. This, coupled with the constrained amount of available capital 
funding, is resulting in a growing backlog of DM projects on hold.

McGill continues to actively press the Québec government for additional funding to deal with deferred maintenance, 
highlighting the unique and historic nature of many of our buildings. Emphasis is being placed not only on securing the 
necessary funds to deal with the backlog of deferred maintenance, but also to close the current gap in capital funding in order 
to avoid the tendency to create deferred maintenance in the first place. Appropriate funding is essential to the preservation 
McGill’s unique physical assets. 
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4.   OUTLOOK        

Strategic planning and multi-year resource allocation are familiar terms to the McGill community.  

McGill is engaged in a comprehensive, academically-driven planning process that will impact virtually every aspect of its 
operations, including finances, administrative services, physical resources, and University goals and activities with respect 
to philanthropy and government relations. It is a demanding, but crucial process, as we aim to build on our exceptional 
teaching and research strengths for the future. The competition for talent and resources has never been as fierce – and this 
competition is worldwide. If we are to sustain and build on our academic strengths, impact, and reputation, consistent with 
our mission, we must be selective and strategic in our activities, investments, resource generation, and expenditures. The 
purpose of this process is to identify the academic priorities and objectives of every faculty and McGill as a whole, implement 
plans to achieve them, and measure our progress with discipline.  

The implementation of the Academic Plan, included in the White Paper (McGill’s Strategic Academic Plan), necessitated 
upfront investments and consequently placed McGill in an operating deficit position in its initial years, with the aim of 
re-establishing a balanced budget in the Plan’s latter years.  This approach has been adopted by many North American 
research-intensive universities.  Indeed, many have used this planning approach for some time as a means of improving 
academic quality and distinctiveness.

The purpose of the new investment is to enable McGill to achieve its academic goals, provide increased leveraging of 
resources, advance student and administrative support, and provide accountable and enhanced investment in new and 
current programs, technologies, administrative infrastructure, and other priority initiatives. It will support McGill in sustaining 
and advancing its leadership position amongst Canadian and North American public university peers. 

McGill’s multi-year planning efforts have been created to support the Academic Plan. The model assumes that we will fund 
our plans through reallocations and newly-generated revenue, and when required, through internal base budget reductions 
during the five-year planning horizon.  Mechanisms have been built into the model to allow for the flexibility to introduce 
across-the-board and/or selective reductions in expense budgets, should they prove to be necessary.  A further refinement of 
this model will incorporate other strategic directions/initiatives, as well as fully integrate elements of the Strategic Research 
Plan and Physical Asset Master Plan.

The overall multi-year plan calls for a return to a balanced budget in the latter years of the 5-year plan, assuming expectations 
prevail. These expectations are being seriously challenged by both increasing pension costs and the prevailing pay equity 
legislation.  Both of these are estimated to result in additional costs to McGill’s operating budget, thus requiring either more 
revenues or expense reductions in the near term.  MEES is still requesting balanced budgets from universities. In addition, 
the limited tuition increases to a reduced inflation factor further impact the challenge of achieving a balanced budget.  Finally, 
we are still under the obligation to ensure that future annual budgets address the GAAP accumulated deficit for purposes of 
repaying it over a reasonable timeframe.
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5.  MCGILL BOND RATING

Moody’s Investor Services reaffirmed an Aa2, Stable rating in December 2016. Moody’s confirmed that the University 
continues to hold flagship status in the Province of Québec and a dominant national and international market presence.  
Continued pressure from provincial funding adjustments and instability in tuition setting parameters are adverse factors.  
It considers McGill to be one of Canada’s most prominent and internationally renowned institutions and cites the following 
factors for the rating:

• Strong market position reflecting internationally recognized academic reputation
• Premier research activities that attract faculty and students.
• Debt burden supported by provincial debt service subsidies.

Standard & Poor’s Rating Service reaffirmed an AA- (stable) rating and a continued stable outlook McGill’s ratings associated 
with the $150 million of unsecured debentures in November 2016 and assigned the same rating to the $160 million in March 
2017, citing that McGill has:

• Excellent student demand and research profile, which will remain strong. 
• Provincial support that is considered good and consistent (Province of Québec rated at A+).
• McGill’s independence and financial resilience to a provincial default.
• McGill has a moderate debt load relative to that of peers, especially when including post-employment liabilities.
• McGill’s blended defined contribution pension plan has contained the rapid rise in pension deficits.  
•  Less diversified revenue sources compared to peers, with tight budgetary conditions due to limited tuition flexibility and 

provincial funding cuts constrain the ratings.

Respectfully submitted,

Yves Beauchamp,   Cristiane Tinmouth, CPA, CA
Vice-Principal, Administration and Finance   Associate Vice-Principal, Financial Services

September 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Trustees of The Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning 
and the Board of Governors of McGill University 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Royal Institution for the Advancement 
of Learning / McGill University, which comprise the balance sheet as at April 30, 2017, and the 
statements of revenue and expenses, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
The Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning / McGill University as at April 30, 2017, and the 
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with 
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations. 

__________, 2017 

____________________ 
1 CPA auditor, CA, public accountancy permit No. A125888 
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The Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning / McGill University 
Statement of revenue and expenses 
Year ended April 30, 2017 
(In thousands of dollars) 
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Notes 2017  2016  
$  $  

Revenue 
 Grants 
  Federal 206,590  217,172  
  Provincial 411,356  443,577  
  United States 6,440  7,302  
  Other sources 36,352  9,074  
 Contracts 17,363  21,133  

Tuition and fees 294,314  274,322  
Sales of goods and services 145,176  140,246  
Gifts and bequests 65,663  54,151  
Foreign exchange gain 2,657  791  
Investment and interest income 15 60,934  45,065  

1,246,845  1,212,833  

Expenses 
 Salaries 
  Academic 334,749  318,773  
  Administrative and support 238,610  232,092  
  Benefits 105,295  107,008  
  Student aid 111,502  106,022  
  Students 37,384  37,318  

827,540  801,213  

 Non-salary 
Material, supplies and publications 41,898  43,661  
Contributions to partner institutions 51,222  40,668  

  Contract services 25,259  22,642  
  Professional fees 22,857  20,681  
  Travel 27,460  26,030  

Cost of goods sold 19,361  17,193  
  Building occupancy costs 27,242  27,971  
  Energy 19,304  18,253  
  Other non-salary expenses 39,641  44,867  

Hardware and software maintenance 10,451  8,294  
  Amortization of capital assets 115,475  113,432  
  Interest 35,038  39,248  
  Bank charges 1,327  1,175  

436,535  424,115  

1,264,075  1,225,328  

Deficiency of revenue over expenses before  
the undernoted items (17,230 ) (12,495 ) 

Gain on sale of land and buildings —  23,151  
Deficiency of revenue over expenses (17,230 ) 10,656  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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The Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning / McGill University 
Statement of changes in net assets 
Year ended April 30, 2017 
(In thousands of dollars) 
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Unrestricted  
Internally 
restricted  

Externally 
restricted  

Invested in 
capital assets  Endowments Total 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 

Net assets (deficiency), April 30, 2015 (357,996 ) 69,184 — 267,560  1,400,600  1,379,348  
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 59,085 2,233 12,784 (63,446 ) — 10,656 
Post-employment benefit remeasurement* (6,636 ) — — — — (6,636) 
Pension liability remeasurement* (20,217 ) — — — — (20,217 ) 
Endowment contributions and gifts in kind — — — 387 32,995 33,382 
Investment income items reported as direct  
 decrease in net assets — — — — (37,494 ) (37,494 ) 
Net change in internally restricted net assets 4,325 694 137 (4,594) (562) — 
Investment in capital assets (42,649 ) — (14,411 ) 57,060 — — 

 Other transfers 4,030 2,525 1,490 1,431 (9,476) — 
Net assets (deficiency), April 30, 2016 (360,058 ) 74,636  —  258,398  1,386,063  1,359,039  

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses 35,162  4,639  14,689  (71,720 ) —  (17,230 ) 
Pension liability remeasurement* 8,295  —  —  —  —  8,295  
Endowment contributions and gifts in kind —  —  —  731  31,279  32,010  
Investment income items reported as direct  

increase in net assets —  —  —  —  156,285  156,285  
Net change in internally restricted net assets 8,858  (4,967 ) —  (2,870 ) (1,021 ) —  
Investment in capital assets (45,743 ) —  (25,403 ) 71,146  —  —  

 Other transfers (11,090 ) 10,201  10,714  454  (10,279 ) —  
Net assets (deficiency), April 30, 2017 (364,576 ) 84,509  —  256,139  1,562,327  1,538,399  

* As at April 30, 2017, the cumulated post-employment benefit remeasurement is $14,947 ($14,947 as at April 30, 2016) and the cumulated pension liability
remeasurement is $57,916 ($66,211 as at April 30, 2016).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
DRAFT



The Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning / McGill University 
Balance sheet 
As at April 30, 2017 
(In thousands of dollars) 
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Notes 2017  2016  
$  $  

Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 15,493  45,575  
 Short-term investments 17 26,392  37,536  
 Receivables 3 370,585  401,585  
 Prepaid expenses 7,109  4,919  
 Inventory 1,476  1,478  

421,055  491,093  

Marketable securities 17 1,789,659  1,608,473  
Grants and contracts related to research receivable 63,698  75,099  
Capital grants receivable 4 730,511  713,100  
Loans receivable 5 7,112  8,675  
Capital assets 6 1,410,764  1,374,372  

4,422,799  4,270,812  

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 
 Bank indebtedness 7 106,654  94,893  

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8 198,698  189,710  
 Unearned revenue 23,124  23,236  

Current portion of long-term debt 11 113,832  129,933  
442,308  437,772  

Deferred contributions 9 506,858  490,441  
Deferred capital contributions 10 876,492  858,748  
Long-term debt 11 873,407  911,199  
Accrued pension liability 12 70,846  100,689  
Post-employment benefit obligation 12 114,489  112,924  

2,884,400  2,911,773  

Commitments and contingent liabilities 19 and 20 

Net assets (deficiency) 
Invested in capital assets 256,139  258,398  
Externally restricted for endowment purposes 13 1,562,327  1,386,063  
Internally restricted 14 84,509  74,636  
Unrestricted (364,576 ) (360,058 ) 

1,538,399  1,359,039  
4,422,799  4,270,812  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Approved by the Board of Governors 

____________________________________________, Governor 

____________________________________________, Secretary – General 
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The Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning / McGill University 
Statement of cash flows 
Year ended April 30, 2017 
(In thousands of dollars) 
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Notes 2017  2016  
$  $  

Operating activities 
(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses (17,230 ) 10,656  

 Adjustments for: 
  Amortization of capital assets 115,475  113,432  
  Amortization of bond discount 213  180  
  Amortization of deferred contributions 9 (371,893 ) (364,986 ) 

Amortization of deferred capital contributions 10 (57,249 ) (57,838 ) 
Change in unrealized fair value of investments 15 (5,010 ) 6,202  
Change in fair value of derivative financial 

instruments 15 2,525  2,032  
  Change in pension liability (21,548 ) (16,209 ) 

Change in post-retirement benefit obligation 1,565  1,920  
Gain on sale of land and buildings —  (23,151 ) 

(353,152 ) (327,762 ) 

Net change in non-cash working capital items 16 (15,153 ) 5,699  
Decrease (increase) in government grant receivable 12,172  (1,786 ) 
Decrease (increase) in grants and contracts related  

to research receivable 14,800  (74,476 ) 
Increase in deferred contributions 388,310  443,196  

46,977  44,871  

Investing activities 
Decrease (increase) in short-term investments 11,144  (20,402 ) 
Acquisition of capital assets (132,008 ) (147,204 ) 
Proceeds from sale of land and buildings —  23,151  
Purchase of marketable securities (606,948 ) (1,486,451 ) 
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 428,247  1,355,565  
Change in loans receivable 1,563  1,511  

(298,002 ) (273,830 ) 

Financing activities 
Change in bank indebtedness 11,761  (31,347 ) 
Investment income reported as direct increase 

(decrease) in net assets 156,285  (37,494 ) 
 Endowment contributions 32,010  33,382  

Issuance of long-term debt 75,830  224,000  
Bond issuance costs (3 ) (1,084 ) 
Repayment of long-term debt (129,933 ) (63,011 ) 
Deferred capital contributions 74,993  77,825  

220,943  202,271  

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (30,082 ) (26,688 ) 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 45,575  72,263  
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 15,493  45,575  

Non-cash transactions 
Capital assets additions amounting to $19,859, included in accounts payable, have no cash flow 
impact. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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The Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning / McGill University 
Notes to the financial statements 
April 30, 2017 
(In thousands of dollars) 
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1. Status and nature of activities
The Corporation with the legal name “Governors, Principal and Fellows of McGill College”
(“McGill College”) was incorporated in 1821 under Royal Charter and is a university with the
power of conferring degrees. The Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning
(“The Royal Institution”) was incorporated in 1802 and holds all property acquired by,
transferred or bequeathed to McGill College and assumes all debt incurred by McGill College.
Together, these two corporations constitute the entity known as McGill University
(“McGill” or the “University”). McGill’s operations include all of the activities of its teaching and
research units such as the Montreal Neurological Institute, Macdonald Campus in
Sainte-Anne-de-Bellevue and the Morgan Arboretum.

McGill is a not-for-profit organization dedicated to providing post-secondary education and to
conducting research and is exempt from tax under the provisions of the Canadian Income Tax
Act.

2. Significant accounting policies
The financial statements of the University have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations (“ASNPO”) using the deferral
method and include the following significant accounting policies:

Consolidation

The net results of not-for-profit organizations affiliated with McGill are not reported in these
financial statements, as those organizations are not under the control of McGill.

Revenue recognition

The University follows the deferral method of accounting for restricted contributions, which
includes gifts and bequests, grants and contracts. Under the deferral method, amounts that are
restricted are recorded as deferred contributions and are recognized as revenue when the
related expense is incurred. Where contributions relate to capital assets, the revenue is
recognized on the same basis as the amortization of the asset acquired. Unrestricted
contributions are recognized as revenue when received. Endowment contributions are
recognized as a direct increase in net assets in the year in which they are received.
Pledged donations are not recognized until received.

Interest and dividend revenue is recorded on an accrual basis. Realized gains and losses on
sales of investments are recorded when securities are sold based on the cost. Unrealized gains
and losses related to the change in fair value are recorded as investment income. To the extent
that investment income is restricted, it is included in the deferred contributions account and
recognized when the related expense is incurred, except for the excess of amounts made
available for spending and unrealized gains and losses on externally restricted endowments,
which are recorded as a direct increase or decrease to endowments.

Tuition and fees are recognized as revenue in the year during which the course sessions are
held.

Sales of goods and services are recognized at the point of sale or when the service has been
provided.

Gifts in kind are recorded at their fair value on receipt or at a nominal value when fair value
cannot be reasonably determined. The value of gifts in kind in 2017 is $731 ($387 in 2016).
The value of contributed volunteer hours is not recognized in these financial statements.

Government operating grants are recorded in the period for which they are granted.

Research grants are recorded based on the deferral method and are recognized as revenue in
the year in which related expenses are recognized.
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The Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning / McGill University 
Notes to the financial statements 
April 30, 2017 
(In thousands of dollars) 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value when the University
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Subsequently, all
financial instruments are measured at amortized cost, except for investments and derivative
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date. The fair value
of listed shares is based on the latest closing price and the fair value quote received from the
bank counterparty is used as a proxy for the fair value of derivative financial instruments.
The fair value of the non-publicly traded investment funds is based on fair value confirmation
received from the fund manager with whom those instruments are negotiated. Fair value
fluctuations, including interest earned, interest accrued, gains and losses realized on disposal
and unrealized gains and losses are included in investment income.

Transaction costs related to financial instruments measured at fair value subsequent to initial
measurement are expensed as incurred. Transaction costs related to the other financial
instruments are added to the carrying value of the asset or netted against the carrying value of
the liability, and are then recognized over the expected life of the instrument using the
straight-line method. Any premium or discount related to an instrument measured at amortized
cost is amortized over the expected life of the item using the straight-line method and
recognized in the statement of revenue and expenses as interest income or expense.

With respect to financial assets measured at cost or amortized cost, the University recognizes in
the statement of revenue and expenses an impairment loss, if any, when it determines that a
significant adverse change has occurred during the period in the expected timing or amount of
future cash flows. When the extent of impairment of a previously written-down asset decreases
and the decrease can be related to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss shall be reversed in the statement of revenue and
expenses in the period the reversal occurs.

Foreign exchange 

Monetary assets and liabilities and other assets accounted for at fair value denominated in 
foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars using foreign exchange rates at the 
balance sheet date. Revenue and expense items are translated into Canadian dollars at the 
rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the transaction. The gain or loss resulting from 
translation is included in the statement of revenue and expenses. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and highly liquid investment instruments, 
which mature within 90 days or less from the date of acquisition. 

Student loans 

Student loans are due within one year after graduation and do not bear interest up until that 
time. After their due date, interest is charged based on the prevailing rates when the loan 
agreements were signed. A provision is recorded for estimated uncollectible amounts. 

Inventory 

Inventory, including books and supplies, is valued at the lower of cost (calculated using the 
first-in, first-out method) and net realizable value. The amount expensed as cost of goods sold 
during the year was $19 million ($17 million in 2016). 
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The Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning / McGill University 
Notes to the financial statements 
April 30, 2017 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Constructed assets do not include interest incurred during
construction. Contributed capital assets are recorded at appraised fair value at the date of
contribution when fair value can be reasonably estimated; otherwise, they are recorded at a
nominal amount. Amortization of assets under development commences when development is
completed. The amortization rates are calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives in years of various asset categories as follows:

Land improvements 10 or 20 years 
Buildings 20 to 50 years 
Major renovations 20 to 40 years 
Leasehold improvements Over term of lease, to a 

maximum of 10 years 
Equipment 3 to 20 years 
Rolling stock 5 years 
Library materials 10 years 
Intangible assets (primarily software) 3 to 5 years 

Net assets 

Balances invested in capital assets represent net assets that are not available for other 
purposes because they have been invested in capital assets. 

Endowments must be used in accordance with the various purposes established by donors, with 
endowment principal maintained intact over time in accordance with McGill’s endowment policy. 

Internally restricted net assets are funds set aside for specific purposes as determined by the 
Board of Governors from time to time. 

Employee future benefits 

The University has a defined contribution pension plan, which has a defined benefit component 
that provides a minimum level of pension benefits for eligible plan members. The University also 
has certain post-employment benefits plans and a legacy defined benefit pension plan. 

The University uses the immediate recognition approach regarding the accounting for the 
pension plan and the post-employment benefit plan. The cost of providing defined pension 
benefits and post-employment benefit plans other than pensions is determined by independent 
actuaries. The University has chosen to evaluate the accrued benefit obligations by using the 
actuarial valuation for funding purposes. The actuarial valuation performed every three years is 
based on the projected benefit method prorated on service (which incorporates management’s 
best estimate of future salary levels, other cost escalation, retirement ages of employees and 
other actuarial factors). The most recent actuarial evaluation for funding purposes was dated 
December 31, 2015. 

For the purpose of calculating the expected return on plan assets, those assets are valued at 
fair value. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
Employee future benefits (continued) 

The University uses the immediate recognition approach by which the University recognizes: 

 in the statement of financial position, the accrued benefit obligations, reduced by the fair 
value of plan assets and adjusted for any valuation allowance (either the defined benefit 
asset or the accrued benefit obligation); 

 in the statement of revenue and expenses, the cost of the plan for the year; and 

 in the statement of changes in net assets, revaluations and other items arising in particular 
from the difference between the actual return on plan assets and the return calculated 
using the discount rate determined from actuarial gains and losses, past services, 
settlement, compression and asset ceiling for defined benefit. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities, and the amounts of revenue and expenses reported in the financial statements. 
In particular, significant estimates are made regarding valuation of receivables, fair values of 
non-publicly traded investments and financial instruments, estimated useful lives of capital 
assets, provisions for contingencies, pay equity and employee future benefits. Actual results 
may ultimately differ from these estimates. 

3. Receivables 

 2017  2016  
 $  $  
     
Operating, net of provision for doubtful accounts of  
 $2,081 ($2,112 as at April 30, 2016) 33,443  32,140  
Student loans, net of provision for doubtful accounts of  
 $515 ($564 as at April 30, 2016) 4,712  4,371  
Investment income 2,785  2,447  
Government operating grants 23,204  41,176  
Grants and contracts related to research – short-term 188,151  191,550  
Capital grants receivable – short-term 118,290  129,901  
 370,385  401,585  

4. Capital grants receivable 
Capital grants receivable relate to capital grants approved by Ministère de l’Éducation et de 
l’Enseignement supérieur (“MEES”), but funded through long-term debt issued in McGill’s name 
or not yet funded. These amounts are due immediately; however, only a portion of their 
collection is expected within the next fiscal year and the remainder are presented as long-term. 
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5. Loans receivable 
Loans receivable bear interest at rates varying from 3.013% to 4.125% (3.013% to 4.125% as 
at April 30, 2016), with maturities up to seven years. 

6. Capital assets 

     2017  2016  

 Cost  
Accumulated 
amortization  

Net book 
value  

Net book 
value 

 

 $  $  $  $  
         
Land 28,685  —  28,685  28,685  
Land improvements 53,739  17,685  36,054  34,873  
Buildings 630,722  356,780  273,942  282,207  
Major renovations 999,049  297,836  701,213  689,387  
Leasehold improvements 12,933  2,261  10,672  11,336  
Equipment 472,681  266,646  206,035  202,752  
Rolling stock 1,014  640  374  393  
Library materials 171,247  93,566  77,681  73,203  
Intangible assets 8,931  5,190  3,741  2,393  
 2,379,001  1,040,604  1,338,397  1,325,229  
         
Assets under development 72,367  —  72,367  49,143  
 2,451,368  1,040,604  1,410,764  1,374,372  

7. Bank indebtedness 
In accordance with MEES regulations, McGill’s Board of Governors has approved maximum 
borrowings of $300 million ($300 million as at April 30, 2016), under short-term credit facilities, 
of which $84 million has been used as at April 30, 2017 ($85 million as at April 30, 2016). 
Also included in bank indebtedness are short-term borrowings from Financement-Québec 
related to capital project amounting to $48 million ($35 million in 2016). Unsecured and 
uncommitted operating lines of credit, totalling $350 million ($350 million as at April 30, 2016), 
are available to McGill and are normally drawn through bankers’ acceptances for periods of up 
to one year. The lines of credit bear interest at the prime rate or banker’s acceptance rate. 
The prime rate averaged 2.70% for the year (2.73% in 2016). Through the use of bankers’ 
acceptances, the average cost of borrowing for the year was 1.01% (1.03% as at 
April 30, 2016). The banker’s acceptance rate in effect as at April 30, 2017, was 
0.93% (0.99% as at April 30, 2016). Bankers’ acceptances outstanding at year-end bear 
interest at rates ranging from 0.91% to 0.95% (0.98% to 0.99% as at April 30, 2016). 

8. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $7,476 ($7,340 as at April 30, 2016) of 
government remittances. 
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9. Deferred contributions 
Deferred contributions represent the unspent portion of funds received for restricted purposes 
other than capital asset purchases, which are included under deferred capital contributions in 
Note 10. 

 2017  2016  
 $  $  
     
Balance, beginning of year 490,441  412,231  
 Restricted funds received during the year 349,299  397,600  
 Gifts and bequests 39,011  35,435  
 Amortization of deferred contributions (371,893 ) (354,825 ) 
Balance, end of year 506,858  490,441  
     
The balance at the end of the year is composed of: 

 2017  2016  
 $  $  
     
Federal grants 207,986  221,658  
Provincial grants 115,617  69,996  
United States grants 4,451  4,803  
Other grant sponsors 59,235  90,387  
Contracts 15,574  13,059  
Gifts and bequests 79,029  69,715  
Endowment income 20,003  16,004  
Investment income 4,963  4,819  
 506,858  490,441  

10. Deferred capital contributions 
Deferred capital contributions represent the unamortized amount of donations and grants 
received for the purchase of capital assets. The amortization of deferred capital contributions is 
recorded as grant revenue in the statement of revenue and expenses. The deferred capital 
contributions balance consists of the following: 

 2017  2016  
 $  $  
     
Balance, beginning of year 858,748  838,761  
 Deferred capital contributions received 74,993  77,825  
 Amortization of deferred capital contributions (57,249 ) (57,838 ) 
Balance, end of year 876,492  858,748  
     
Represented by     
 Net deferred contributions – MEES 459,157  455,331  
 Net deferred contributions – Other provincial 149,068  136,667  
 Net deferred contributions – Federal 128,932  121,848  
 Net deferred contributions – Gifts donations 127,556  132,852  
 Net deferred contributions – Specific grant agreements 11,779  12,050  
Balance, end of year 876,492  858,748  
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11. Long-term debt 

 2017  2016  
 $  $  
Government of Quebec debt     
  Notes (i)     
   3.601%, matured June 2, 2016 —  5,958  
   2.820%, matured June 2, 2016 —  19,868  
   2.849%, matured December 1, 2016 —  55,200  
   1.928%, matured April 25, 2017 —  5,479  
   2.323%, due December 1, 2017 53,240  55,902  
   2.472%, due December 1, 2017 15,925  17,340  
   2.213%, due June 1, 2018 143,752  154,564  
   2.112%, due June 1, 2018 2,673  3,255  
   2.406%, due December 1, 2018 13,561  14,671  
   2.413%, due May 29, 2019 184,315  195,877  
   4.125%, due August 24, 2020 2,768  3,393  
   1.709%, due March 1, 2022 8,181  9,000  
   2.947%, due September 1, 2022 7,674  8,941  
   2.947%, due September 1, 2022 7,373  8,591  
   3.013%, due September 28, 2022 5,907  6,793  
   1.639%, due March 1, 2023 5,149  —  
   2.949%, due March 1, 2025 42,220  47,360  
   2.408%, due September 1, 2026 52,440  —  
   2.149%, due September 1, 2026 18,241  —  
   4.991%, due June 1, 2034 18,000  19,000  
   3.680%, due June 1, 2034 48,300  50,400  
   3.161%, due June 1, 2034 52,800  55,000  
   Total 682,519  736,592  
     
     
McGill Senior Unsecured Debentures (ii),  
  6.150% Series “A”, mature on September 22, 2042 150,000  150,000  
  3.975% Series “B”, mature on January 29, 2056 160,000  160,000  
     
Other 62  92  
     
Bond discounts and issuance costs (5,342 ) (5,552 ) 
Total long-term debt 987,239  1,041,132  
     
Current portion (113,832 ) (129,933 ) 
 873,407  911,199  
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11. Long-term debt (continued) 
(i) Notes are secured by the Government of Quebec, and regular interest and capital 

repayments are made by the Government on McGill’s behalf. Interest on the notes is paid 
semi-annually and capital repayments are due on each note’s anniversary date. 
Capital repayments due annually and lump-sum payments due at maturity are as follows: 

 
Annual 

payment  
Lump-sum 

payment  
 $  $  
     
2.323%, due December 1, 2017 53,240  —  
2.472%, due December 1, 2017 15,925  —  
2.213%, due June 1, 2018 10,812  132,940  
2.112%, due June 1, 2018 582  2,091  
2.406%, due December 1, 2018 1,110  12,451  
2.413%, due May 29, 2019 11,562  161,191  
4.125%, due August 24, 2020* 651  —  
1.709%, due March 1, 2022 819  4,905  
2.947%, due September 1, 2022 1,305  6,369  
2.947%, due September 1, 2022 1,254  6,119  
3.013%, due September 28, 2022* 913  —  
1.639%, due March 1, 2023 808  1,109  
2.949%, due March 1, 2025 5,140  6,240  
2.408%, due September 1, 2026 2,760  27,600  
2.149%, due September 1, 2026 1,626  3,607  
4.991%, due June 1, 2034 1,000  1,000  
3.680%, due June 1, 2034 2,100  12,600  
3.161%, due June 1, 2034 2,200  15,400  
     
* Annual payments vary from year to year. 

(ii) In September 2002, McGill issued $150 million of unsecured debentures. Unlike MEES 
notes, McGill will be required to repay these obligations from resources generated by 
McGill. Semi-annual interest payments are paid by McGill. 

In January 2016, McGill issued $160 million of unsecured debentures. Unlike MEES notes, 
McGill will be required to repay these obligations from resources generated by McGill. Semi-
annual interest payments are paid by McGill. 

Repayments of the principal due in each of the next five years are as follows: 

 $  
   
2018 113,832  
2019 177,135  
2020 179,330  
2021 18,186  
2022 21,569  
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12. Employee future benefits 
Pension plans 

The University has a defined contribution pension plan (the “Plan”), which has a defined benefit 
component that provides a minimum level of pension benefits for eligible plan members. 
Employee contributions are accumulated together with employer contributions and invested in 
the Plan’s accumulation fund. Upon an employee’s retirement, the accumulated amount is 
available for the purchase of a retirement annuity to be underwritten by a provider of the 
retiree’s choice. Prior to January 1, 2011, employees were able to obtain a McGill annuity upon 
retirement. 

The University measures its accrued benefit obligations and fair value of the plan assets for 
accounting purposes as at April 30 of each year. The most recent actuarial valuation of the 
pension plans for funding purposes was as at December 31, 2015, and the next required 
valuation will be as at December 31, 2018. 

Post-employment obligations 

The University provides post-employment benefits other than pension benefits to eligible retired 
employees, including health and dental care. The present value of these commitments as at 
April 30, 2017, is estimated at $114.5 million ($112.9 million as at April 30, 2016). 
These amounts are recorded as liabilities. 

Pension plan defined contribution plan 

The University has a defined contribution pension plan offered to basically all employees. 
The University contributes to the Plan up to a maximum of 10.8% of the employees’ basic 
earnings depending on the age of the employee. 

The significant information about the University’s Plan is as follows: 

 2017  2016  
 $  $  
     
Cash payments recognized 57,731  52,530  
Benefit costs 21,565  20,826  
     
Accrued pension liability     
 Defined benefit cost     
  Current service cost 7,382  7,420  
  Interest cost on accrued benefit obligation 3,538  4,307  
 10,920  11,727  
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12. Employee future benefits (continued)
Pension plan defined contribution plan (continued)

The information about the University’s accrued pension liability is as follows:

2017  2016  
$  $  

Accrued benefit obligations 338,387  352,161  
Fair value of plan assets 267,541  251,472  
Plan deficit 70,846  100,689  
Accrued pension liability 70,846  100,689  

Based on the fair value of Plan assets, the assets of the Plan are composed of: 

2017  2016  
%  %  

Cash equivalents 1.9  3.0  
Alternative assets 9.2  12.6  
Equity 39.4  30.8  
Fixed income 49.5  53.6  

The significant assumptions used are as follows: 

2017  2016  
%  %  

Discount rate 
 Active 5.75  5.75  
 Retirees 3.90  3.90  
Price inflation allowance 3.00  3.00  

Post-employment benefit obligation – unfunded benefits 

2017  2016  
$  $  

Balance, beginning of year 112,924  104,368  
Current service cost 1,144  1,082  
Interest cost on accrued benefit obligation 5,077  5,265  

 Benefits paid (4,656 ) (4,427 ) 
 Net actuarial loss —  6,636  
Balance, end of year 114,489  112,924  

DRAFT



The Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning / McGill University 
Notes to the financial statements 
April 30, 2017 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Page 16 

12. Employee future benefits (continued)
Post-employment benefit obligation – unfunded benefits (continued)

The significant assumptions used are as follows (weighted average):

2017  2016  
%  %  

Post-employment benefit obligation as at year-end 
Discount rate – active 5.75  5.75  

 Retirees 3.90  3.90  
Rate of compensation increase – Academics 5.70  5.70  
Rate of compensation increase – Non-academics 3.00  3.00  

Health care cost trend rates 
Current trend rate 5.50  5.70  
Ultimate trend rate 5.00  5.00  
Year of ultimate trend rate 2019  2019  

13. Externally restricted for endowment purposes

2017  2016  
$  $  

Faculty endowments 610,914  548,710  
Student aid 476,444  423,741  
Research endowments 125,884  107,655  
Emerging priorities 23,996  18,453  
Library endowments 27,173  24,821  
Student services 10,542  8,792  
Annuities 4,289  4,003  
Accumulated income 283,085  249,888  

1,562,327  1,386,063  

Endowments consist of externally restricted donations received by the University. 
The endowment principal is required to be maintained intact over time subject to the 
University’s capital preservation investment and disbursement policy. The investment income 
generated from endowments must be used in accordance with the various purposes established 
by the donors. The University ensures, as part of its fiduciary responsibilities, that all funds 
received with a restricted purpose are expended for the purpose for which they are provided. 
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13. Externally restricted for endowment purposes (continued) 
Investment income on endowments, which comprises interest, dividends and realized and 
unrealized gains and losses, is recorded in the statement of revenue and expenses when this 
income is available for spending at the discretion of the University or is available for spending as 
conditions have been met. A policy has been established by the University with the objective of 
protecting the real value of endowments by limiting the amount of income made available for 
spending and requiring reinvestment of income not made available. The amount made available 
for spending is set by authorization of the Board of Governors at 4.25% plus an additional 
0.25% from Fiscal year 2016 to Fiscal year 2019 of the average fair value of the endowments of 
the past three years. The excess of actual income over the amount made available for spending 
is recorded as a direct increase in endowment funds. In the event that the actual income is less 
than the amount made available for spending or the income is negative, the shortfall is taken 
from the accumulated reinvested income and is recorded as a direct decrease in net assets. In 
accordance with the policy, the unspent portion of the amount made available for spending is 
capitalized and recorded as a direct increase in endowment funds. For individual endowment 
funds without sufficient accumulated reinvested income, endowment capital may be encroached 
upon. These amounts are expected to be recovered by future net investment income. 

In addition, the Board of Governors has approved a charge of 1.1% (0.9% in 2016) of the fair 
value of investments to cover internal and external investment management costs.  As these 
costs are recorded in the operating and restricted funds, this amount is included in the interfund 
transfers each year. 

14. Internally restricted net assets 

 2017  2016  
 $  $  
     
Self-financing teaching and research 30,427  26,720  
Professor start-up funds 9,436  9,191  
Other 44,646  38,725  
 84,509  74,636  

15. Investment and interest income 

 2017  2016  
 $  $  
     
Change in unrealized fair value of investments 5,010  (6,202 ) 
Change in realized fair value of investments (1,700 ) —  
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments (2,525 ) (2,032 ) 
Investment and interest income 60,149  53,299  
 60,934  45,065  
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16. Net change in non-cash working capital items 

 2017  2016  
 $  $  
     
Receivables (operating, student loans and investment income) (1,982 ) (3,035 ) 
Prepaid expenses (2,190 ) (1,070 ) 
Inventory 2  391  
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (10,871 ) 8,313  
Unearned revenue (112 ) 1,100  
 (15,153 ) 5,699  

17. Financial instruments 
Financial risks 

McGill is subject to market risk, which is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors 
specific to the individual security or its issuer or factors affecting all securities traded in the 
market. The concentration of risk is minimized because of McGill’s diversification of its 
investment portfolio. 

The University has foreign currency risk arising from its foreign-denominated marketable 
securities. As at April 30, 2017, McGill’s foreign-denominated marketable securities had a fair 
value of $1.04 billion (CAN$882 million as at April 30, 2016), the most significant of which were 
US dollar-denominated marketable securities of $744 million (CAN$656 million as at 
April 30, 2016). 

The University has interest rate risk from the impact of interest rate changes on McGill’s cash 
flows for variable rate debt and financial position for the impact of changes in interest rates on 
the fair value of fixed-income marketable securities. 

McGill is exposed to credit risk from its debtors. A significant portion of McGill’s receivables is 
due from governments, which are believed to be at low risk of default. For the remaining 
receivables, the concentration of risk is minimized because of McGill’s large and diverse base of 
counterparties and investments. 

McGill’s objective is to have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. McGill monitors 
its cash balances and cash flows generated from operations to meet its requirements. As at 
April 30, 2017, the most significant financial liabilities are bank indebtedness, accounts payable 
and accrued liabilities and long-term debt. 

Derivatives 

As approved by the Investment Committee of the Board, McGill has forward contracts 
outstanding of US$298 million with a forward rate of 1.3668 as at April 30, 2017 
(US$281 million with a forward rate of 1.3366 as at April 30, 2016 that matured on 
June 15, 2016). As at April 30, 2017, the fair value of these contracts was an unrealized loss of 
$16.7 million, which was recorded in marketable securities (an unrealized gain of $23.6 million 
as at April 30, 2016). 

In October 2003, McGill entered into an agreement with RBC Dominion Securities (“RBCDS”) 
whereby it invested in a US$13 million US dollar-denominated bond maturing in 2029. Under 
this agreement, the bond principal and the semi-annual interest payments due to McGill were 
swapped with RBCDS in exchange for RBCDS paying McGill $85.7 million in 2029. The fair value 
of the bond and the swap agreement is $64.3 million ($62.5 million as at April 30, 2016) and is 
included in marketable securities. 
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17. Financial instruments (continued)
Derivatives (continued)

The US dollar-denominated investment outstanding will result (at maturity) in the forfeiture of
the interest receivable in exchange for a fixed amount of proceeds. As at April 30, 2017, the fair
value of the swap is $38.6 million ($38.2 million as at April 30, 2016).

The future value of this investment, including accumulated growth to the year 2042, is planned
to be used to redeem the $150 million of outstanding senior debentures.

The University entered into bond forward contracts amounting to $207 million with a settlement
date of May 17, 2017. As at April 30, 2017, the fair value of the forwards is an unrealized loss
of $10.2 million which has been included in marketable securities (an unrealized loss of
$7.8 million as at April 30, 2016).

Marketable securities 

The marketable securities portfolio comprises the following types of investments: 

2017  2016  
%  %  

Canadian equity 13  13  
U.S. equity 22  17  
Non-North American equity 18  16  
Canadian fixed income 15  14  
U.S. fixed income 2  4  
Hedge funds 13  16  
Alternate strategies, including private equity and other 17  20  

100  100  

Short-term investments consist of highly liquid fixed-income securities maturing within one year 
and bearing interest rates ranging from 0.48% to 5.65% (0.47% to 5.10% as at 
April 30, 2016). 

18. Pledges
Outstanding donation pledges as at April 30, 2017, amounted to $179.0 million
($141.8 million as at April 30, 2016). These have not been recognized in the financial
statements.
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19. Commitments
Operating leases

The future minimum lease payments under existing operating leases due in the forthcoming
years are as follows:

$ 

2018 8,143 
2019 7,911 
2020 4,805 
2021 4,826 
2022 4,673 
2023 and thereafter 19,464  

49,822 

Construction in progress 

McGill has undertaken the construction of several new buildings and, as a result, has 
commitments totalling $77.3 million. These commitments are expected to be met in the normal 
course of operations. 

Private equity and private real estate funding commitments 

As part of its investment activities, McGill places some of its endowment investments through 
private equity and private real estate funds. McGill is committed to invest an additional 
$112.7 million within the next four years in accordance with its arrangements with these funds. 

20. Contingent liabilities
Litigation

In the normal course of its activities, McGill is party to various legal proceedings, including
claims related to labour laws and the Civil Code of Quebec. Although it is not possible to
determine the ultimate outcome of such proceedings initiated and ongoing as at April 30, 2017,
management is of the opinion that they will be resolved without material effect on McGill’s
financial position. Any amount McGill may be required to pay will be charged to operations in
the year of settlement; if the amount can be estimated and is considered likely to occur, it will
be provided for in accrued liabilities.

In the normal course of McGill’s building construction projects, various claims secured by
construction hypothecs have been made by building contractors to secure payments.
Such hypothecs are related to the buildings constructed or under construction.

21. Subsequent event
The University received approval from MEES on July 12, 2017 to conclude the acquisition of a
building for an amount of $32.5 million.

22. Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentation.
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REGULATIONS VS POLICY - INTRODUCTION 

The Regulations Relating to the Approval of Contracts and Signing Authority (Regulations) were approved by the Board of Governors 
in 2004. Since then, they have remained relatively unchanged. Based on an assessment of institutional needs and structures at peer 
institutions, a draft policy for the approval of contracts and signing authority has been established. The proposed policy is intended to 
replace the current Regulations.   

In the current Regulations, contracts above $4 million require approval by the Board or a Board Committee. The Regulations are based 
on a prescriptive model that contains established limits based on position levels. While this approach establishes a certain level of 
consistency in signing authority across the organization, it is not accompanied by regular reporting requirements and has posed 
challenges in its ability to meet evolving organizational changes whenever new position titles are created or existing titles change.  

The proposed Policy articulates key requirements and responsibilities of signing officers, positions in which approval of contracts and 
contract signing authority is vested. It authorizes signing officers to delegate their signing authority to positions in a direct line of 
reporting by following certain procedures.  

The table below presents a comparison of the current Regulations versus the proposed Policy. 

 

OVERVIEW OF PROPOSED CHANGES INTRODUCED BY NEW POLICY 

 

DESCRIPTION APPROACH IN  
CURRENT REGULATIONS 

APPROACH IN  
PROPOSED POLICY  
 

EXPLANATION / RATIONALE 
FOR CHANGE  

1. Policy Design  
 
 

Prescriptive model that 
establishes contract limits based 
on position levels. 
 
Under the current Regulations, 
signing authority is vested in 

Delegation model that enables the Board to 
delegate authority to signing officers.  
 
The proposed Policy establishes the Board’s 
authority to delegate its authority: 
 

Centralization of signing authority 
and responsibility in key university 
officers (signing officers) who have 
the authority to set in place 
delegations by following certain 
procedures. Delegations are 
established at the discretion of the 



 

 

numerous signing officers 
identified by the Regulations.  
 
For contracts valued above $4 
million, contract approval and 
signing authority are determined 
by the Board or a Board 
Committee.  
 
Delegations are permitted in 
extraordinary circumstances or in 
the event of signing officer 
unavailability.  
 
The Regulations are 
accompanied by a series of 
Resolutions (A, B, C, M) that 
were approved by the Board 
between 1991 and 2003. The 
Resolutions grant authority to 
members of the Board (Executive 
Committee), together with 
members of the administration to 
carry out financial or banking 
activities (ie open accounts, 
accept obligations, make 
transfers, sell movable property 
and execute specific contracts).  

a. for the approval of contracts to nine 
signing officers (Principal, Provost and Vice-
Principal, Academic, 5 vice-principals, the 
Deputy Provost, Student Life and Learning 
and General Counsel, Secretary-General) 
who are able to delegate their authority to 
positions within their areas of responsibility 
(Appendix A & C) 
 
b. to Board Standing Committees, based on 
Committee governance functions identified 
by Board Committee terms of reference 
(Appendix B) 
 
c. by resolution of the Board, Executive 
Committee or other Board Committee.  
 
The proposed Policy is also accompanied by 
appendices that would be used by the signing 
officers or delegates to establish delegations, 
for reporting requirements or to advise of 
temporary delegations.  
 
Activities established by the Resolutions (A, 
B, C, M) have been integrated within the 
Policy (section V).  
 
 
 

signing officer, a senior university 
administrator. The new Policy would 
provide for more flexibility in 
meeting organizational needs as 
changes evolve, regardless of 
position titles. It ensures compliance 
with flexibility in operations.  
 
The new Policy aligns contract types 
with portfolio responsibilities of 
signing officer and reflects, to a 
fuller extent, authority granted by the 
Board to Board Committees, as 
reflected on Board Committee terms 
of reference.  
 
The proposed Policy brings clarity to 
the way in which the Board delegates 
authority and intends to raise 
responsibility and accountability of 
the signing officers and delegates 
and establishes conditions for the 
exercise of signing authority which 
are defined and clarified. 
 

2. Contract 
approval 
threshold limits  
 

Contracts over $4 million require 
approval by the Board of 
Governors; 
 

Contracts over $6 million require approval by 
the Board of Governors (or BPC in the case 
of construction and renovations contracts and 
leases); 

The threshold amounts established 
by the current Regulations were set 
by the Board in 2004. Proposed 
increases would generally place 



 

 

Construction and renovation 
contracts between $4 million and 
$5 million require approval by 
the Building and Property 
Committee; for contracts above 
$5 million, Board approval is 
required.  
 
Grant applications above $20 
million require approval by the 
Board of Governors; (please note 
that in 2010, the Board approved 
a resolution authorizing the 
Principal or delegate to approve 
and sign grant applications 
submitted to Canada Foundation 
for Innovation, which are valued 
up to $25 million). 
 
Management has authority to 
approve investment contracts 
representing 1.5% of the McGill 
Investment Pool. Governance 
approval is sought for contracts 
valued representing values 
beyond 1.5% and up to 5% 
require approval by the 
Investment Committee. Board 
approval is sought for contracts 
whose value represents more 
than 5% of the MIP. 
 

Grant applications above $25 million would 
require approval by the Board of Governors; 
 
Management would have authority to 
approve 
investment contracts up to 2.5% of market    
value of McGill Investment Pool (MIP). 
Governance approval (Investment 
Committee) would be sought for contracts 
valued representing values beyond 2.5% and 
up to 5%. Board approval would be sought 
for contracts whose value represents more 
than 5% of the MIP.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

McGill’s threshold limits above 
those of Quebec universities (where, 
generally, contracts above $3 million 
require Board approval), but in the 
mid-range of thresholds set by other 
U15 (research-intensive) universities. 
 
Increasing threshold limits for grant 
applications to $25 million would 
provide for consistency in values 
established for all grant applications.  
 
More operating leeway (increase of 
1%) would be granted to 
management for purposes of 
executing time-sensitive investment 
contracts.  
 
 



 

 

3. Restrictions 
on delegated 
authority  
 

Each vice-principal has the 
power to restrict, in writing, the 
signing authority of any signing 
officer subordinate to 
that vice-principal. 
 
 

Signing officers may establish delegations in 
writing, pose conditions when deem 
appropriate and restrict signing authority of 
others by assigning contract value limits, 
restrictions on type of contract or delegation 
validity period. Delegations below the level 
of M3 (Grade 7) are not permissible.  
 
Delegations are not subject to sub-delegation 
except for contract valued up to $100K, 
which may be sub-delegated to positions not 
below the level of M1 (Grade 2) or 
equivalent. Sub-delegations are documented.  

Conditions for delegations are 
established and clarified in the 
Policy. In addition, restrictions on 
contract approval and signing 
authority would be determined by the 
signing officer, in line with design of 
the proposed Policy.  
 
In the event of unavailability, the 
current Regulations allow for the 
delegation of authority to any 
position level. The new Policy 
provides for increased controls with 
respect to position level (M1 or M3) 
to which authority could be 
delegated by the signing officer.  

4. Controls on 
delegated 
signing authority  
 

Controls are established by 
design of the Regulations 
(prescriptive model). 
 
No reporting mechanisms with 
the exception of sub-delegations: 
 
Where sub-delegation has 
occurred, the delegate must 
apprise the delegator of all 
actions taken or contracts 
signed pursuant to the delegated 
authority. 

Controls are based on requirement for 
delegates to submit reports on exercise of 
delegated authority every quarter to the 
signing officer. The reporting obligations 
apply to contracts valued at $10,000 or more 
which have been executed by the delegate 
pursuant to established delegations. 
 
Annual report on issues of non-compliance 
would be presented to Audit Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

While the current Regulations 
provide for limited reporting 
obligations (in case of sub-
delegations), they do not provide for 
mechanisms to ensure that 
delegations established by the Policy 
are followed and adhered to. The 
proposed Policy provides for regular 
reporting mechanisms on the 
exercise of delegated authority and 
provides for more governance 
oversight with respect to issues of 
non-compliance. 
 



 

 

5. Misuse of 
signing 
authority/ 
responsibility  
 
 
 
 

The Regulations do not contain 
provisions concerning 
repercussion for misuse of 
responsibility. They do state that  
each vice-principal has the power 
to restrict, in writing, the signing 
authority of any signing officer 
subordinate to 
that vice-principal. 
 
 

The proposed Policy indicates that any 
person or signing officers who fails to 
comply with the Policy may be subject to 
disciplinary action and may be personally 
liable for damages caused to the University.  
 
Signing officers and delegates are subject to 
having their authority revoked if authority 
granted to them by the Policy is misused.  
 

The proposed Policy raises, to a 
greater extent, awareness with 
respect to compliance requirements 
and spells out consequences for 
misusing responsibility established 
by the Policy. 

6. Reporting 
obligations on 
delegated 
authority  
 

No reporting obligations on 
delegations established by the 
Regulations. Reporting 
obligations apply to sub-
delegations only.  

Quarterly reports by delegate to signing 
officer would be mandatory for contract 
signed with a value of $10,000 or more. 
Contracts signed below $10,000 would be 
reported on at the discretion of the signing 
officer.  
 

Regular reporting will mitigate risk 
and ensure to a greater extent 
compliance with Policy obligations.  

7. Acquisition 
and disposition 
of property  
 
 
 

Approval of Building and 
Property Committee (BPC) is 
required for acquisitions of 
property valued between $5 
million and $6 million and the 
Board’s approval is required for 
values beyond $6 million. 
 
All disposition of property 
requires approval by the Board  

Approval of Building and Property 
Committee is required for acquisitions of 
property valued between $6 million and $7 
million and the Board’s approval is required 
for values beyond $7 million.  
 
 
All disposition of property requires approval 
by the Board.  
 

Authority granted to management 
would increase by $1 million, 
consistent with thresholds changes 
proposed for contracts falling under 
the purview of BPC ($6 million to $7 
million). 
 
No change – dispositions of property 
fall within the purview of the Board.  

8. Requirement 
for second 
signatures 
 
 

Contracts for a value greater than 
or equal to $1 million except for 
research grant applications, 
require a second approval in 

Contracts for a value greater than or equal to 
$1 million except for research grant 
applications, require a second approval in 
addition to the approval of the signing 
officer. 

No change from existing 
Regulations.  
 



 

 

 
 

addition to the approval of the 
signing officer.  

9. Provisions 
concerning 
temporary 
absences  
 
 
 
 

No specific provisions regarding 
temporary absences. In the event 
of unavailability or other 
extraordinary circumstances, the 
signing officers identified in the 
Regulations may delegate his/her 
signing authority to individuals 
they deem appropriate, but only 
where such delegation is in 
written form. 

In the event of unavailability due to 
temporary absence, the signing officer or 
delegate may assign approval and signing 
authority to positions they deem appropriate 
using Appendix E. This authority does not 
apply to sub-delegates. 

The new Policy would consolidate 
temporary absences and delegations 
within the Policy itself and create 
consistent, documented, processes 
for establishment of delegations and 
reporting obligations.  

10. Internal 
/External 
compliance 
requirements  
 
 

That the contract complies with 
legislation, collective 
agreements, personnel policy, 
and University 
policies and Regulations. 

The contract complies with legislation, 
collective agreements, personnel policy, and 
all applicable University policies, regulations 
and procedures as well as applicable policies 
of external bodies; 
 
All contracts must comply with applicable 
University policies and policies of external 
bodies, as applicable.  

Expansion of compliance 
requirements intended to provide 
greater awareness with respect to 
requirements.  

11. Legal review 
requirements 
 

Contracts valued above $200 
thousand require review by 
Legal. 
 
Contracts of any value that 
include unusual legal provisions 
or risks must be reviewed by 
Legal Services prior to their 
signing. 

Contracts valued above $500 thousand 
require review by Legal. 
 
Any signing officer or delegate may refer a 
contract for legal review if he/she deems it 
advisable. 
 
Unless standard forms of contracts pre-
approved for such purposes are used, review 
by Legal Services is mandatory for any 
contract of a value above $500 000 or, 

Requirement for legal review of 
contract has increased to apply to 
contracts valued above $500 
thousand but the signing officer or 
delegate may still refer any contract 
(irrespective of value) for legal 
review if they deem it advisable. 



 

 

regardless of the value, in all instances where 
the contract. 
 

12. Policy review 
and reporting 
obligations  
 
 
 
 

Once every three years by the 
NGE Committee, in consultation 
with Audit and Finance 
Committees. 
 
No other reporting obligations.  

The Audit Committee of the Board is 
responsible for reviewing this Policy one 
year following its implementation and at least 
once every three years thereafter, and for 
recommending revisions to the Board. 
 
The Audit Committee will monitor 
compliance with and ensure accountability 
for this Policy. To that end, the Secretary-
General shall submit an annual report to the 
Audit Committee on issues of non-
compliance with the Policy. 

Increased reporting obligations will 
mitigate risk and provide for more 
governance oversight.  
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Policy on the Approval of Contracts and Designation of Signing Authority 
 

October 
2017 

 
I.  Enacting Provisions 

 
1.   This  Policy  on  the  Approval  of  Contracts  and  Designation  of  Signing  Authority  (“Policy”)  is 

established under the authority of the Board of Governors of McGill University (“University”) and 
of the Royal Victoria College (“RVC”), and the Trustees of the Royal Institution for the Advancement 
of Learning (“RIAL”) (collectively, “Board”). 

 

 
2.    Under the terms of the Statutes of McGill University, the Board possesses general jurisdiction and 

final authority over the conduct of the affairs of the University. The Board’s authority in this regard 
includes  the  approval  of  contracts  and  the  designation  of  signing  officers.  The  authority  and 
accountability set out under this Policy are delegated by the Board, which has and retains ultimate 
responsibility  for  safeguarding  all University  assets.  In  accordance with  the  Statutes of McGill 
University, the Executive Committee of the Board may exercise authority on behalf of the Board, 
except as prescribed in the Statutes. 

 
II.  Purpose 

 
3.    The purpose of this Policy is: 

 

 
‐  To establish  the  framework of authority,  responsibility and  limits thereof,  for  the approval 

and signing of contracts, and disbursements on behalf of the University; 
 

‐  To support the sound and consistent administration and stewardship of resources and assets 
for which the University is directly responsible and for those under its custodianship; 

 
‐  To ensure  that  risk management processes are  in place  to  support effective and  informed 

decision‐making,  and  to  provide  consistent  accountability  and  reporting  throughout  the 
University. 

 

 
III.  Scope 

 
4.  This  Policy  applies,  but  is  not  limited  to,  all written  contracts,  sub‐contracts,  purchase  orders, 

letters of intent, letters of agreement, memoranda of understanding, memoranda of agreement, 
construction  and/or  renovation  projects,  leases,  licenses,  donor  agreements,  deeds,  grant 
applications, grant agreements, certificates,  instruments, or any other document which creates 
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an obligation or is binding upon the University or any part thereof, and any accessory document. 
For the purpose of this Policy, the word “contract” shall be used generally. 

 

 
5.    The Board may delegate its authority for the approval of contracts: 

 
 

5.1  to signing officers as set out in Appendix A; 
 
 

5.2  to Board Standing Committees, as set out in Appendix B; 
 
 

5.3  by a resolution, to the Executive Committee or other Board Committee(s). 
 
 

6.    This Policy  is one element  in the University’s system of  internal control. The system of  internal 
control also consists of policies, regulations and procedures promulgated by the University’s senior 
administration. 

 
IV.  General Policy Provisions 

 
7.    This Policy shall be read restrictively and authority shall not be established by analogy or through 

historical practice. 
 

8.    Any person who fails to comply with this Policy may face disciplinary action and may also be held 
personally liable for damages caused to the University. 

 
9.    This Policy  is  subject  to  interpretation  in  accordance with  the provisions  of  the Civil Code  of 

Quebec and an Act Respecting Contracting by Public Bodies. 
 

10. Notwithstanding  this  Policy,  all  contracts  entered  into  by  the  University  are  subject  to  all 
applicable laws and regulations whether municipal, provincial or federal. 

 

 
11. The approval of contracts must be exercised in accordance with this Policy and  must occur prior 

to the signing of contracts. 
 

12. All contracts must comply with applicable University policies and policies of external bodies, as 
applicable. For example: 

 
12.1  All contracts must comply with procurement policies and tendering procedures; 

 
12.2  All contracts involving research must comply with research policies and procedures and 

policies of external granting agencies; 
 

12.3  All  contracts  involving  advancement, development  and  alumni  relations must  comply 
policies related to gifts‐in‐kind, gifts acceptance and the naming of University assets. 

 
13.  Contracts for which no approval or signing authority is provided in this Policy should be brought 

to the attention of the Secretary‐General for determination of the responsible signing officer or 
for referral to the Board of Governors or a Board Committee. 
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14. Values expressed in this Policy refer to the total value of the contract  in Canadian currency and 
over the contract’s term. Total values include all taxes, service charges, other associated fees and 
the value of potential options or extensions to the contract which are known at the time of initial 
signing. 

 
V.  Authority for Establishing and Managing Budget and Financial Systems 
 

15. The  Provost  and  Vice‐Principal  (Academic)  is  authorized  to  establish  budget  systems  and 
procedures necessary for the conduct of University operations. 

 
16.  The Vice‐Principal (Administration and Finance), the Associate Vice‐Principal (Financial Services) 

or the Treasurer are authorized to establish financial systems and procedures necessary for the 
conduct of University operations. 

 
17.  The   V i ce ‐P r i n c i pa l   ( Adm in i s t r a t i on   and   F i nance ) ,   the  Associate  Vice‐Principal 

(Financial  Services),  the Treasurer or  their delegates  are authorized to open accounts and sign 
accessory  documents with  any  chartered  bank  or  other  financial  institution on behalf of  the 
University as may be required for the conduct of University operations. 

 
18.  Pursuant  to  the  above  established  financial  systems  and  procedures,  the  Vice‐Principal 

(Administration and Finance), the Associate Vice‐Principal (Financial Services) or the Treasurer may 
assign  responsibility  to  University  personnel  for  financial  transactions  regularly  required  for 
University business,  including but not  limited to: deposits, transfer of funds between University 
accounts, disbursements, and other financial transactions. These financial systems and procedures 
will be subject to regular internal and external audits, and may be modified from time to time. 

 
19. Whether by cheque or electronic transfer: 

 
19.1       Disbursements of $1 million or more will be approved by the Vice‐Principal 

(Administration and Finance). Disbursements of less than $1 million may be 
approved by the Associate Vice‐Principal (Financial Services), the Controller 
or the Chief Investment Officer and Treasurer; 

 
19.2  Deductions at source, regardless of value, will be approved by the Controller; 

 
19.3    Individual one‐time compensation disbursements over $10 000, other than regular 

remuneration,  will  be  approved  by  the  Associate  Vice‐Principal  (Financial 
Services).  In  the  case  the  Associate  Vice‐Principal  (Financial  Services),  such 
compensation  disbursements  will  be  approved  by  the  Vice‐Principal 
(Administration  and  Finance).  In  the  case  of  the Vice‐Principal  (Administration 
and Finance), such compensation disbursements will be approved by the Principal 
and in the case of the Principal, by the Chair of the Board. 

 
20. All  cheques  issued  on  a  University  account  will  require  the  signature  of  the  Vice‐Principal 

(Administration and Finance). 
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VI.  Signing Officers 
 

21. Where authority  to approve a contract  lies with the Board or Board Committee,  the Board or 
Board Committee shall designate the signing officer(s). 

 
 

22. Under  this Policy,  the  signing officers of  the University are:    the Principal and Vice‐Chancellor 
(“Principal”), the Provost and Vice‐Principal (Academic), the Vice‐Principals, the Deputy Provost, 
the Secretary‐General and the General Counsel. 

 

 
23.  In addition to any specific Board authorization, the signing officers provided for under this Policy 

shall have general authority to approve and sign contracts and accessory documents within their 
areas of responsibility, up to the values set out below: 

 

 
A.   Principal: up to $6 million 
B.   Provost and Vice‐Principal (Academic) and Vice‐Principals:  up to $4 million 
C.   Deputy‐Provost: up to $2 million 
D.   General Counsel: up to $2 million 
E.    Secretary‐General: up to $2 million 

 
 

24. Contracts  for a value greater  than $1 million, except or  research grant  applications,  require  a 
second signature in addition to the signature of the signing officer, as follows: 

 
  24.1  If the first signing officer is a vice‐principal, the second signing officer is the Vice‐Principal 

(Administration and Finance); 
  24.2  If  the  first  signing officer  is  the Vice‐Principal  (Administration  and  Finance),  the  second 

signing officer is the Provost and Vice‐Principal (Academic); 
  24.3  If the first signing officer is the Provost and Vice‐Principal (Academic), the second signing 

officer is the Principal. 
  24.4  If the first signing officer is the Principal, the second signing officer is the Chair of the Board 

of Governors. 
 

25.  Signing officers may delegate authority for approval and/or signing of contracts to positions they 
deem appropriate, and not below the level of Manager (Grade 7, M3 or equivalent, as established 
by Human Resources), provided that such delegation is: 

 

A.  To  positions  within  the  signing  officer’s  area  of  responsibility  with 
knowledge, expertise and judgement required to fulfill obligations under 
the delegations and; 

B.   Of a total value not exceeding the signing officer’s authority; 
C.    In writing using Appendix C; 
D.   Revocable by the signing officer at any time using Appendix C 
E.    Subject to such conditions as may be determined by the signing officer in 

Appendix C; 
F.  Filed with the Secretariat and Financial Services upon execution. 
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26. Once delegated by a signing officer, authority for approval and/or signing of contracts shall not 
be  subject  to  sub‐delegation  by  the  delegate, with  the  exception  of  contracts  valued  up  to 
$100 000. The approval and signing of such contracts may be sub‐delegated by the delegate to 
positions in a direct reporting relationship to the delegate, and not below the level of M1 (Grade 
2) or  equivalent,  using Appendix  C.   The  exercise of  sub‐delegation  is  not  subject  to  further 
delegation  and,  unless  otherwise  provided  for  under  this  Policy,  it  is  subject  to  all  Policy 
obligations applicable to signing officers and delegates. 

 

 
27. All signing officers and delegates are subject  to  this Policy.   A signing officer who has assigned 

authority to a delegate must ensure proper oversight of this delegation and is accountable for all 
contracts signed pursuant to the delegation.  On a quarterly basis, the delegate must report  to 
the signing officer using Appendix D: 

 
27.1   on  contracts  valued at $10,000 or  above which have been executed by  the delegate 

pursuant to the delegated authority; 
 

27.2  on all contracts, irrespective of contract value, which present a significant level of 
risk that could bring the University under public scrutiny or affect its reputation, 
involve controversial matter, concern litigation or settlement claims or include 
unusual legal provisions. 

 

 
28.  In the event of unavailability due to temporary absence, the signing officer or delegate may assign 

approval and signing authority to positions they deem appropriate using Appendix E. This authority 
does not apply  to sub‐delegates. Positions with assigned  responsibility are  subject  to all Policy 
obligations applicable to signing officers and delegates, including reporting obligations as set out 
in Section 27. 

 

 
29. Approval of contracts and signing authority is automatically vested in a position or body at a higher 

level of authority in the direct line of reporting. 
 
VII.  Responsibility of Signing Officers and Delegates 
 

30. A signing officer or delegate  is a person  to whom authority  to approve and sign a contract on 
behalf of the University has been assigned in accordance with this Policy. 

 

 
31. A signing officer or delegate shall act in accordance with the provisions of the Regulation on Conflict 

of  Interest. A  signing officer or delegate  shall  act  in  the  best  interests of  the University, with 
integrity and in good faith, and shall adhere to the highest ethical standards. A signing officer or 
delegate  shall  not  approve  and  sign  any  contract where,  by  doing  so,  that  signing  officer  or 
delegate is placed in a conflict of interest or gives the appearance of being so, unless that conflict 
has been disclosed and addressed in accordance with University policy. 
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32. A signing officer or delegate may approve and sign a contract that creates an obligation or undertaking 
on behalf of the University only when that  individual has the authority to do so, in accordance with 
this Policy. 

 

 
33. A signing officer or delegate who fails to comply with this Policy shall have responsibilities as set out 

in  this Policy  suspended or  revoked, may  face disciplinary action, and may also be held personally 
liable for damages caused to the University. 

 

 
34. Every signing officer or delegate who executes a contract on behalf of the University must understand 

that, in doing so, he/she is binding the University and not just an individual unit, department or faculty. 
Before signing, a signing officer or delegate must be satisfied and prepared to take responsibility that: 

 

 
A. The appropriate level of approval required by any applicable policy, regulation and procedure 

has been obtained; 
B.  He/She has the authority to execute the contract in accordance with this Policy; 
C.   He/She  is acting  in compliance with any conditions of delegations set out by the Board, or 

the signing officer, as the case may be; 
D.  The University is able to meet its obligations within the terms of the contract and that the 

other party is reasonably likely to meet its obligations; 
E.    The  contract  complies  with  legislation,  collective  agreements,  personnel  policy,  and  all 

applicable University  policies,  regulations  and procedures  as well  as  applicable  policies of 
external bodies; 

F.   The financial and other benefits to or liabilities of the University as a result of the contract have 
been considered and are reasonable; 

G.    The risks and  liabilities presented by  the contract have been addressed and any  insurance 
requirements have been reviewed by Risk Management and Insurance; 

H.  Approval and signing of contracts is exercised in accordance with the approved University 
budget or source(s) of funding and adequate funds are available; 

I.    Any requirement for matching funding or in‐kind resources must be approved: 
a.  by the Provost and Vice‐Principal (Academic) (up to $4 million) 
b.  by the Principal (up to $6 million) 
c.  by the Board (above $6 million) 

J.      Proper  review  with  signing  officer  whose  portfolio may  be  implicated  by  virtue  of  the 
contract has taken place; 

K.   Legal review has occurred (see “Legal Review” section). 
 
 
35.  Where an executed contract requires amendment, the signing officer or delegate who had originally 

signed  the contract can only approve such an amendment  if  the  total contract value, including the 
value of the amendment, falls within the maximum value of his/her authority and otherwise complies 
with  this  Policy.  If  the  value of  the  amended  contract  is  above  the  signing officer’s or delegate’s 
authority,  approval  of  the  contract  is  required  at  a  higher  level of  authority  in  the  direct  line  of 
reporting. 
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36.  Every signing officer or delegate who has signed a contract shall keep a copy for his/her records, 
and will ensure  that  the  contract,  including all appendices and other supporting documents,  is 
retained in accordance with the McGill University Records Retention System. In addition, copies of 
all  signed  contracts  arising  out  of  Board  or  Board  Committee  approval  shall  be  submitted  to 
the Secretariat as soon as they are executed. 

 

 
37. A  signing officer  shall,  prior  to  signing,  bring  to  the  attention of  the Board or  relevant Board 

Committee contracts of any value which present an unusual level of financial or reputational risk, 
or which may have significant strategic implications for the University. 

 

 
38. A delegate shall also, prior to signing, diligently bring to the attention of the responsible signing 

officer contracts of any value, which present an unusual level of financial or reputational risk, or 
which may have significant strategic implications for the University. 

 

 
39. The  Secretary‐General  shall  have  the  authority  to  issue  any  certificate  authenticating  or 

confirming the resolutions, decisions, and other acts of the Board or Board Committee pursuant 
to  this Policy.   The Secretary‐General will  inform  the University’s  financial  institutions,  such as 
banks or  investment managers, of  this Policy, and will  issue  signature  specimens as and when 
signing officers or delegates are appointed.   Should changes to this Policy, to signing officers or 
delegates arise, the Secretary‐General will provide updated certificates or signature specimens. 

 

 
40.  In  the  event  of  a  position  title  change,  the  Secretary‐General  shall  determine,  in writing,  the 

position vested with the authority to approve and sign a contract. 
 

 
41.  The use of electronic or  facsimile signatures  is permitted, only with the express consent of the 

signing officer or delegate. 
 
VIII.  Legal Review 
 

42. Unless  standard  forms of contracts pre‐approved  for  such purposes are used,  review by  Legal 
Services is mandatory for any contract of a value above $500 000 or, regardless of the value, in all 
instances where the contract: 

 

 
A.   deals with personal information; 
B.   presents a significant  level of risk, particularly with respect  to  liability and  indemnification 

provisions; 
C.    could bring the University under public scrutiny; 
D.   could affect the reputation of the University; 
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E.    involves controversial matters; 
F.  involves litigation or settlements; 
G.    includes unusual legal provisions. 

 

 
43. Any signing officer or delegate may refer a contract for legal review if he/she deems it advisable. 

 
 
IX.  Review Revision and Reporting Obligations 

 
44.  The Audit Committee of the Board  is responsible for reviewing this Policy one year following  its 

implementation and at least once every three years thereafter, and for recommending revisions 
to the Board. 

 

 
45.  The Audit Committee will monitor compliance with and ensure accountability for this Policy. To 

that end, the Secretary‐General shall submit an annual report to the Audit Committee on issues 
of non‐compliance with the Policy. 
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Appendix A  CONTRACT CLASSES AND DELEGATIONS TO SIGNING OFFICERS 

Policy  Approval of Contracts and Designation of Signing Authority ‐ Articles 22 

 
 

PURPOSE OF APPENDIX A: CONTRACT CLASSES AND DELEGATIONS TO SIGNING OFFICERS 
 
 

Appendix A  contains  types of  contracts organized by  contract  class  as established pursuant  to 
each signing officer’s area of responsibility.  It shows the maximum dollar value of contracts for 
which approval and signing authority have been assigned  in accordance with Section 22 of  the 
Policy. Appendix A also establishes, for each signing officer, limits of specific delegated authority 
which has been assigned for particular contract matters. 

 

 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 

 
 

• Before signing a contract, signing officers must carry out their responsibilities as provided for  in 
the Policy and, as such, may only sign a contract once they are satisfied that all relevant Policy 
requirements have been met. 

 

 
• In signing a contract on behalf of the University, signing officers are binding the University and 

not just an individual faculty, department or unit. 
 

 
• All contracts must comply with applicable University policies and policies of external bodies, as 

applicable (see article 12 of the Policy). 
 

 
• In the event that a contract contains provisions that relate to an area of responsibility under the 

purview of another signing officer,  (as may be  the case with a  research  contracts  that contain 
procurement obligations), the signing officer responsible for approving the contract must ensure 
proper review with the related signing officer. 

 
 

• Signing officers may delegate the approval and signing of contracts that fall within their area of 
responsibility to positions in a direct reporting relationship to them, provided that the total value 
of the contract falls within the signing officer’s authority as established by the Policy. To that end, 
they must complete Section 1 A of Appendix C and submit it to Secretariat and to Financial Services. 

 
 

• In the event that the signing officer decides to revoke a delegation of signing authority, which is 
possible at any time, he or she must complete Section 2 of Appendix C and submit it to Secretariat 
and to Financial Services.
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SIGNING OFFICER: Principal 

 

The Principal may approve all contracts in lieu of signing officers provided that the total value of 
the contract does not exceed $6 million and that the contract otherwise complies with the Policy. 

 
General Delegated 
Authority 
Specific Delegated 
Authority 

• All contracts valued up to $6 million 
 

 
• Grant applications up to $25 million 
• Investment  contracts  up  to  2.5%  of market  value  of McGill 

Investment Pool. 
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SIGNING OFFICER: Provost and Vice‐Principal (Academic) 
 
The  Provost  and Vice‐Principal  (Academic)  shall  have  general  authority  to  approve  and  sign 
contracts and accessory documents within his or her area of responsibility up to the values set 
out below. 
 
General Delegated 
Authority 
Specific Delegated 
Authority 

• All contracts up to $4 million in area of responsibility 
 

 
• None 

 
 
 
 
The Provost and Vice‐Principal (Academic) is responsible for contracts falling within the classes 
set forth below: 

 
‐  Institutional Affiliation Agreements 
‐  Academic  Program  and  Project Agreements  (not  involving  the  sale  of  goods  and 

services) 
‐  Sale of academic goods, services and activities 
‐  Academic exchange agreements, other than research exchange agreements 
‐  Academic employment  contracts,  including  promotions  and  grants  of  tenure  as 

specified in applicable University policy 
‐  Academic administrative appointments 
‐  Sabbatic leaves and other leaves of absence for academic staff (maternity, parental, 

compassionate, etc.) 
‐  Publishing  and  copyright  agreements,  academic  training  and  professional 

development agreements 
‐  Academic naming proposals 
‐  Academic consulting 
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SIGNING OFFICER: Vice‐Principal (Administration and Finance) 
 
The Vice‐Principal (Administration and Finance) shall have general authority to approve and 
sign contracts and accessory documents within his or her area of responsibility up to the 
values set out below. 
 

General Delegated Authority  All contracts up to $4 million in area of
responsibility

Specific Delegated Authority    Investment contracts up to 2% of 
McGill Investment Pool 

 Contracts with respect to borrowing 
pursuant to the borrowing limit 
established by the Board  

 Short‐term investment contracts 
valued up to $ 20 million (including 
foreign currency contracts) 

 
 
The Vice‐Principal  (Administration and  Finance)  is  responsible  for  contracts  falling within 
the classes set forth below: 

 
‐Facilities management: 

o Contracts related to property, including: 
 Acquisition and disposition of immovable property through 

purchase, donation or other means 
 Lease of immovable property, as lessor or lessee 

 Servitudes  are where  the  University  acquires  or  grants 
conditional rights of use with respect to immovable property 

 Other  encumbrances   are   restrictions   on   ownership   or   use   
of immovable property 

o Construction and renovation contracts, including project management; 
o Campus security, fire prevention, emergency measures, parking   
management; 
o environmental health and safety, hazardous waste management; 
o space planning, design 
o sustainability; 
o Utilities and Energy Management; 
o Buildings  and Grounds  including  building  operations  and  printing  and 

mail services; 
o Bookstore 
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‐  Financial services: 
o Banking and disbursements 
o Borrowing 
o External audit 
o Procurement of  goods  and  services,  including  the  acquisition  and 

lease  of movable property, and travel. 
‐  Human resources: 

o Staff appointments, except academic appointments 
o Collective agreements 
o Payroll 
o Pension benefits 
o Benefits 
o Staff training and professional development 
o Settlements 
o Other employment‐related agreements 

 
 

‐  Information technology 
o Hardware and software; 
o Information systems; 
o Network, telecommunications, audio‐visual equipment 

 
 

‐  Investments and securities (other than pension‐related): 
o Investment management contracts 
o Investment service contracts 
o Investment consulting contracts 
o Brokerage contracts 
o Other investment‐related contracts 

 
 

‐  Insurance policies and Insurance settlements 
‐  Sale of equipment, administrative services and utilities 
‐  Consulting Services 
‐  Contracts for the exclusive distribution of products or services on campus 
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SIGNING OFFICER: Vice‐Principal (Research and Innovation) 
 
The Vice‐Principal (Research and  Innovation) shall have general authority to approve and sign 
contracts and accessory documents within his or her area of responsibility up to the values set 
out below. 

 
General Delegated 
Authority 
Specific Delegated 
Authority 

• All contracts up to $4 million in area of responsibility 
 

 
• Grant applications up to $15 million 

 
 
 
 
The  Vice‐Principal  (Research  and  Innovation),  is  responsible  for  contracts  falling within  the 
classes set forth below: 

 
‐  Research Grant Agreements 
‐  Research Grant Applications 
‐  Research Contracts 
‐  Research Services and Project Agreements 
‐  Research Commercialization contracts (shareholder agreements, license agreements, 

patents, etc.) 
‐  Research Exchange Agreements 
‐  Research Collaboration and Partnerships Agreements (inter‐University; inter‐sector 

(government, industry, NGOs) 
‐  Research‐related consulting services 
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SIGNING OFFICER: Vice‐Principal (Health Affairs)  
 
The  Vice‐Principal  (Health  Affairs)  shall  have  general authority  to  approve  and  sign 
contracts  and  accessory documents within  his  or  her  area of responsibility up to the values 
set out below. 
 

 
General Delegated 
authority 

• All contracts valued up to $4 million in area of responsibility 

 
Specific Delegated 
Authority 

• None

 
 
The Vice‐Principal (Health Affairs) is responsible for contracts falling within the classes set forth 
below: 

 
‐  Contracts relating to health care professions trainees within the Faculty of Medicine 
‐  Contracts with affiliated health care institutions and organizations 
‐  Health care contracts with government bodies  
‐  Consulting contracts related to health affairs
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SIGNING OFFICER: Vice‐Principal (University Advancement) 

 

The Vice‐Principal  (University Advancement), shall have general authority  to approve and  sign 
contracts and accessory documents within his or her area of responsibility up to the values set 
out below. 

 
General Delegated 
Authority 

• All contracts valued up to $4 million in area of responsibility 

 
Specific Delegated 
Authority 

• None

 
 
 
The Vice‐Principal (University Advancement), is responsible for contracts falling within the classes 
set forth below: 

 
 
 

‐  Gifts, donations and bequests, including monetary and in‐kind 
‐  Fundraising agreements 
‐  Issuance of receipts for charitable donations or gift in‐kind for income tax purposes 
‐  Services contracts for advancement, development and alumni relations 
‐  Naming  agreements  and  memoranda  of  understanding  (academic  naming 

agreements require approval by the Provost and Vice‐Principal, Academic) 
‐  Consulting contracts for advancement, development and alumni relations 

 
Specific Provision: 

 
In cases of gifts, donations or bequests of  immoveable property, the provisions of  this Policy 
relating to the acquisition of immoveable property apply. 



9 

 
 
SIGNING OFFICER: Vice‐Principal (Communications and External Relations) 

 

The  Vice‐Principal  (Communications  and  External  Relations),  shall  have  general  authority  to 
approve and sign contracts and accessory documents within his or her area of responsibility up 
to the values set out below. 
 
General Delegated 
Authority 

• All contracts up to $4 million in area of responsibility 

    Specific Delegated    • None 
Authority

 
 
 
The Vice‐Principal (Communications and External Relations), is responsible for contracts falling 
within the classes set forth below: 

 
‐  Advertising and Publicity 
‐  Translation 
‐  Communications 
‐  Public Relations and Social Media 
‐  Branding, Trademarks and Logo 
‐  Audio‐Video and Multimedia services 
‐  Sponsorship 
‐  Consultation contracts for communications and external relations 

 
Specific Provisions: 
 

1.    Contracts  involving  the  use  of  facilities  or  University  property will  be  considered  as 
contracts  falling  within  the  responsibility  of  the  Vice‐Principal  (Administration  and 
Finance). 
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SIGNING OFFICER: Deputy‐Provost 
 

The Deputy‐Provost shall have general authority to approve and sign contracts and accessory 
documents within his or her area of responsibility up to the values set out below. 
 
General Delegated 
Authority 

• All contracts valued up to $2 million in area of responsibility 

 
Specific Delegated 
Authority 

• None 

 
 
 
 
The Deputy‐Provost is responsible for contracts falling within the classes set forth below: 
 

‐  Athletics and Recreation 
‐  Residences and Student Housing 
‐  Student Associations and Groups 
‐  Student Exchanges 
‐  Food and Dining Services 
‐  Teaching and Learning Services 
‐  Student Recruitment 
‐  External Services for Students 
‐  Convocation events 
‐  Consulting services for student life and learning 
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SIGNING OFFICER: General Counsel 
 

The General Counsel shall have general authority to approve and sign contracts and accessory 
documents within his or her area of responsibility up to the values set out below. 

 
 
General Delegated 
Authority 
 

 All contracts valued up to $2 million in area of responsibility

Specific Delegated 
Authority  

 None 

 
The General Counsel is responsible for contracts falling within the classes set forth below: 

 
‐  External Legal Services 

 
‐  Legal Consulting Services 
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SIGNING OFFICER: Secretary‐General 
 

The Secretary‐General shall have general authority to approve and sign contracts and accessory 
documents within his or her area of responsibility up to the values set out below. 
 
General Delegated 
Authority 
 

 All contracts valued up to $2 million in area of responsibility

Specific Delegated 
Authority  

 None 

 
The Secretary‐General is responsible for contracts falling within the classes set forth below: 
 
‐  Consulting services in support of regulatory and governance functions under the purview 

of the Secretariat 

 



 

 

 
Appendix B  GOVERNANCE ACTIVITIES DELEGATED BY THE BOARD AND THOSE SUBJECT TO BOARD AUTHORITY 

Policy  Approval of Contracts and Designation of Signing Authority, Article 5.2 

 
 
 
PURPOSE OF APPENDIX B:  The table below indicates specific governance activities, approval for which has been delegated by the Board to a 

Board Standing Committee and those that are subject to the authority of the Board. The governance activities noted in the table have been 

established by relevant Board Committee Terms of Reference.  Signing officers may be designated by the Board or by a Board Committee, as 

necessary. 
 

GOVERNANCE ACTIVITY REQUIRINGAPPROVAL  AUDIT BPC  FINANCE  HR  INVESTMENT  BOARD / EXEC
External audit plan and fees  X           

Engagement   external   audit   firms   for   specialized
services  other  than  the  auditing  of  financial 
statements 

X           

Engagement of independent advisors  X           

Appointment of external auditors for annual audit  X          X 

Lease of immoveable property between $6 and up to
$10 million 

  X         

Lease of immoveable property $10 million and above    X        X 

Servitudes and other encumbrances up to $1 million    X         

Servitudes  and  other  encumbrances $1 million and
above 

  X        X 



 

 

 
Acquisition   of   immoveable   property  between  $6
million and up to $7 million 

  X         

Acquisition of immoveable property of $7 million and
above 

  X        X 

Disposition of immoveable property (all values)    X       X
Construction  and  renovation  projects  between  $6
million and up to $7 million 

  X         

Construction and renovation projects $7 million and
above 

  X        X 

IT projects above $6 million    X*       X
Grant applications $25 million and above            X
Benefits coverage and  related contracts and benefit
rates 

      X     

Compensation  elements  of  executive  employment
contracts 

      X     

Negotiation mandates        X     

Pension Plan design        X    X 

Investment contracts between 2.5% and up to 5% of
market value of McGill Investment Pool (“MIP”) 

        X   

Investment contracts 5% and above of market value
of MIP 

        X  X 

Note regarding IT projects:* Approval by IT Subcommittee of the BPC required prior to submission of projects to 
BPC for consideration. 
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[OFFICE NAME, ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER] 

 
 
 
 
Appendix C  Delegation and Revocation of Signing Authority 

 
 

• Section 1 A: Delegation of Authority by Signing Officer (Article 25) 
• Section 1 B: Delegation of Authority by Delegate (Article 26) 
• Section 2: Revocation of Delegated Authority 

 

 
Policy  Approval of Contracts and Designation of Signing Authority – Articles 25, 26 

 
 
 
 
TO: 

C.C.: 

FROM: 
DATE: 

Secretary‐General 
Controller 
[Insert Name and phone number] 

 
 
 
I.    SECTION 1A : DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY BY SIGNING OFFICER TO DELEGATE 
This is to inform you of the delegations of signing authority I have instituted in my area of responsibility, 
further to the authority assigned to me under the Policy on the Approval of Contracts and Designation 
of Signing Authority. The signing officers listed below understand that their actions are subject to this 
Policy. They will provide me with quarterly reports completed using Appendix D on all contracts with a 
value of  $10,000 or more pursuant  to  the delegated authority.  In  addition,  the  signing officer will 
provide me with a quarterly report on all contracts, irrespective of contract value, which present a 
significant level of risk that could bring the University under public scrutiny or affect its reputation, 
involve  controversial matters,  concern  litigation  or  settlement  claims  or  include  unusual  legal 
provisions. I understand that I must ensure proper oversight of delegations and that I am accountable 
for all contracts signed by the delegate pursuant to the delegated authority. 

 
 
II.   POLICY RESTRICTIONS (Article 25): 
 
Signing  officers  may  delegate  authority  for  approval  and/or  signing  of  contracts  to  positions  they  
deem appropriate, and not below the  level of Manager (Grade 7, M3 or equivalent, as established by 
Human Resources)  
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TITLE OF DELEGATE: 

 
 
  Type of contract (subject of delegation)  Amount delegated (up to $ amount)   

     



3 

III.   DELEGATION VALIDITY PERIOD: 
(D/M/Y) to (D/M/Y) 

 
 
IV.  RESTRICTIONS/CONDITIONS OF DELEGATION: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V.  DECLARATION: FOR COMPLETION BY DELEGATE 

 
 
I    (name of delegate) declare that  in the exercise of the authority that has 
been delegated to me, I will conduct myself with integrity and adhere to the highest ethical standards. 
 
 
VI. Signatures 

 
 
Signing Officer: 

 
 
Delegate: 

 
 
Date: 
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SECTION 1B : DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY BY DELEGATE TO SUB‐DELEGATE 
This is to inform you of the delegations of signing authority I have instituted in my area of responsibility, 
further to the authority assigned to me under the Policy on the Approval of Contracts and Designation 
of Signing Authority. The signing officers listed below understand that their actions are subject to this 
Policy. They will provide me with quarterly reports competed using Appendix D on all actions undertaken 
pursuant to the delegated authority. I understand that I must ensure proper oversight of delegations and 
that  I  am  accountable  for  their  exercise.  In  addition,  the  signing  officer  will  provide me  with  a 
quarterly report on all contracts, irrespective of contract value, which present a significant level of 
risk  that  could  bring  the  University  under  public  scrutiny  or  affect  its  reputation,  involve 
controversial matters, concern litigation or settlement claims or include unusual legal provisions. 

 
 
I.   POLICY RESTRICTIONS (Article 26) 
Once  delegated by  a  signing  officer,  authority  for  approval  and/or  signing  of  contracts  shall  not  be 
subject to sub‐delegation by the delegate, with the exception of contracts valued up to $100 000. The 
approval and  signing of such  contracts may be sub‐delegated by  the delegate to positions  in a direct 
reporting  relationship  to  the delegate, and not below  the  level of M1  (Grade 2) or equivalent, using 
Appendix C.  The exercise of sub‐delegation is not subject to further delegation and, unless otherwise 
provided  for under  this Policy,  it  is  subject  to all Policy obligations applicable  to  signing officers and 
delegates. 

 
 
II.   TITLE OF SUB‐DELEGATE: 

 
 

Type of contract (subject of delegation)  Amount delegated (up to $ amount) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
III.  DELEGATION VALIDITY PERIOD:  (D/M/Y) to (D/M/Y) 

 
 
IV.  RESTRICTIONS/CONDITIONS OF DELEGATION: 

 
 
 
 
V.   SIGNATURES: 
Delegate:                                                                               

Sub‐delegate:                                                                      Date:                                                                                      
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SECTION 2: REVOCATION OF DELEGATED AUTHORITY 
Section  2  is  to  be  completed  only when  the  signing officer  or  delegate  decides  to  revoke  signing 
authority that has been delegated or sub‐delegated by him/her  in Accordance with the Policy on the 
Approval of Contracts and Designation of Signing Authority. 

 
 
TO BE COMPLETED BY SIGNING OFFICER OR DELEGATE 

 
 
 
 

I    (name and title) revoke the delegation of 
 
 

authority granted to 
Contracts and Signing Authority. 

 
 

Effective Date of Revocation: 

in accordance with the Policy on the Approval of 

 
 

Signing Officer/Delegate Signature and Title: 
 
 

Date:



 

 
 
 

[OFFICE NAME] 
 
 
 
 

Appendix D  QUARTERLY REPORT ON THE EXERCISE OF DELEGATED AUTHORITY 
(for contracts signed with a value of $10,000 and above) 

 
 

Policy  Approval of Contracts and Designation of Signing Authority (Articles  25, 26, 
27, 28) 

 
 

TO: 
FROM: 

 
 
 
 
 

DATE: 

[Insert Name and Title] 
[Insert Name and Title including Grade Level] 

Quarterly report (please check one): 

July 31st:  October 31st: 
 
 
January 31st:  April 30th: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

This  report  is  submitted  in obligation of  the exercise of  approval and  signing authority under  the 
Policy on Approval of Contracts and Designation of Signing Authority. 

 
 

Policy Reminders: 
• A delegate must hold a position at the Grade 7, M3 or equivalent  level. A delegate has been 

assigned delegated authority by  the signing officer and must  submit a  report to  the  signing 
officer on  contracts  valued  at  $10,000 or  above  executed by  the delegate pursuant  to  the 
delegated authority. 

 A sub‐delegate must hold a position at the Grade 2, M1 or equivalent  levels. A sub‐delegate 
has been assigned delegated authority by the delegate to approve and sign contracts valued 
up  to $100,000. A  sub‐delegate must  submit a  report  to delegate on all contracts executed 
pursuant to the delegated authority.  In  case of  temporary absences, the  temporary signing 
officer  vested with  the  authority  to  approve  and  sign  contracts must  report  to  the signing 
officer or delegate, as the case may be. In addition, the signing officer will provide me with a 
quarterly report on all contracts, irrespective of contract value, which present a significant level 
of  risk  that could bring  the University under public  scrutiny or affect  its  reputation,  involve 
controversial  matters,  concern  litigation  or  settlement  claims  or  include  unusual  legal 
provisions. 



 

Contract Name  Contract Amount  Contract Signed 
(date) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I confirm, to the best of my knowledge and upon due verification, that all contracts listed above have 
been approved and signed in compliance with the Policy. 

 
 

Please select: 
 
 

Yes  No 
 
 

If NO has been selected, please explain issues of non‐compliance: (if needed, use additional page(s)) 
to explain issues of non‐compliance). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I certify that this is a complete report of all the contracts that I signed during the quarter. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Signature 



 

 
 
 

Appendix E  TEMPORARY NOTICE OF DELEGATION FORM 

Policy  Policy on the Approval of Contracts and Designation of Signing Authority (Article 28) 
 
 

To: Secretary‐General 
CC: Controller 

 
 

FROM: 

DATE: 
In accordance with the Policy on the Approval of Contracts and Designation of Signing Authority (“Policy”), 
approval and signing authority may be delegated by the signing officer or delegate  during unavailability or 
temporary absences.* The exercise of delegated authority during temporary absences is subject to all Policy 
obligations or conditions applicable to signing officers and delegates. Positions vested with the authority 
to approve and sign contracts during temporary absences shall report on the exercise of the delegated 
authority  using Appendix  D,  once  the  temporary  delegation  has  been  completed.  The  signing  officer 
remains responsible for all delegations made by him/her under this Policy. 

 
 

* Sub‐delegates are not authorized to delegate their approval and signing obligations during unavailability 
or temporary absences. See Articles 28 and 29 of the Policy. 

 
 
 
 
 

TEMPORARY NOTICE OF DELEGATION 
 

 
 
 

This is to inform you that I,    _, will be away from McGill University from 
 

 
 
 

   to    . Please note that for the period of my absence, 
 
 

I have delegated approval and signing authority to    (name, position title and HR 
grade). 

 
 
 
 
 

Signature of signing officer or delegate 



            Policy on the Approval of Contracts and Designation of Signing Authority  

            Implementation Plan 

 

Preliminary phase 

Activity  Status 
Implement an automated  solution  for  the Signing Policy: automated 
delegations and quarterly reports 

A Business Case Needs developed in consultation with Internal Audit 
was submitted to IT in June 2017 to develop an IT Solution that would 
establish a controlled process supporting the reporting requirements 
of the proposed Policy. 
 

 

1  Phase 1 : October 2017 – February 2018 

Activity  Responsible  Remarks 
Inform  the  community  of  new  Policy  and 
Implementation Plan 

Secretary‐General   

Finalize the automation of delegations  Secretary‐General with working group led by IT   
Set in place the delegations of authority   Signing Officers 

 
 

Establish a structure of delegations and post online  Secretary‐General  in  collaboration  with  signing 
officers  
 

 

Prepare  operational  framework  for  quarterly 
reporting  

Signing Officers   

Produce reference tools for the implementation of 
the Policy and post online 

Secretary‐General  Power  point,  Q/A,  targeted 
meetings with groups 

 

 



2  Phase 2: March – April 2018 

Activity  Responsible  Remarks 
Send updates to the community with respect to 
delegations, reporting obligations and 
implementation plan 

Secretary‐General 
 

 

Disseminate Policy within units/Faculties  Signing Officers  Secretary‐General  stays  in  support 
for specific questions 

Distribute  Policy  and  established  delegations  to 
Financial Institutions and Investment Managers 

Secretary‐General   

 

3  New Policy effective May 1, 2018  

Activity  Responsible  Remarks 
Implement delegations and operationalize practice 
of quarterly reports 

Signing Officers 
Delegates 
Sub‐delegates 

First phase Quarterly Reports:  
 July 2018 
 October 2018 
 January 2019 
 April 2019 

 
Review Policy   Review controls in place by Internal Audit  

 
 
 
Secretary‐General 
Audit Committee  

April 2019 
 
 
 
Policy review in May 2019 

 



*Regulations are currently under review*
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Regulations Relating to the  
Approval of Contracts and Signing Authority 

 
              Revised:   
              Executive Committee        Sept 4, 2014            Minute 6 
                                                    Full history appears at the end of this document. 

 
 
 

1. Guiding Principles 
 

1.1. Any authority or accountability granted under these Regulations is delegated by the Board of Governors of 
McGill University and the Royal Victoria College (RVC), or the Trustees of the Royal Institution for the 
Advancement of Learning (RIAL) (collectively, “the Board of Governors” or “the Board”), which have ultimate 
responsibility for conducting the business of McGill University (the “University”), safeguarding University assets 
against loss or improper use and producing reliable financial records for internal use and external reporting 
purposes. 

 
1.2. No individual may sign any contract that creates an obligation or undertaking on behalf of the University unless 

that individual has signing authority in accordance and compliance with this Policy. 
 

1.3. These Regulations shall be interpreted restrictively and signing authority shall not be established by analogy or 
through historical practice. 

 
2. Definitions 
 
2.1. In the Regulations, “McGill” shall refer to McGill University, the Royal Victoria College and the Royal Institute on 

the Advancement of Learning. 
 
2.2. In these Regulations, the word “contract” is used to describe any written or verbal agreement, contract, letter of 

intent, memorandum of understanding or memorandum of agreement, the provisions of which are binding upon 
the University and do not make their validity or enforcement dependent on approval by the Board of Governors 
or the individual having final signing authority over the matter under the present Regulations.  

 
2.3. In these Regulations, unless the regulation expressly indicates otherwise, “vice-principal” includes a person 

holding the office of vice-principal, provost or deputy provost. 
 
2.4. Where not otherwise defined, terms used in these Regulations shall be interpreted in accordance with the 

provisions of the Civil Code of Quebec. 
 
2.5. Except as otherwise provided herein, value in these Regulations refers to the total value of the contract over its 

term, including all taxes, service charges and other associated fees but excluding the potential value of 
extensions to the contract.  

 
3. Responsibility of Signing Officers 
 
3.1. A signing officer is a person to whom authority to sign a contract on behalf of the University has been delegated 

or sub-delegated. 
 

3.2. Before signing a contract, a signing officer must be satisfied as to the following and must be prepared to take 
responsibility: 

 
a) That the University is able to meet its obligations within the terms of the contract and that the other 

party(ies) is reasonably likely to meet their obligations; 
 

b) That the contract complies with legislation, collective agreements, personnel policy, and University 
policies and Regulations; 

 
c) That the appropriate level of approval required by any applicable policy or practice has been obtained; 
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d) That the financial and other benefits to or liabilities of the University as a result of the contract have been 
considered and are reasonable; 

 
e) That the risks and liabilities presented by the contract have been addressed; and  

 
f) That the legal review required in accordance with section 4 has been obtained. 

 
3.3. Every signing officer who has signed a contract shall keep an original of such contract, including all appendices 

and other supporting contracts, in that person’s office or a place under that person’s control. In addition, copies 
of all contracts approved by the Board of Governors, by a committee of the Board of Governors, or of a value 
greater than $1,000,000 shall be sent to the Secretariat. 

 
3.4. The Principal and vice-principals shall, prior to his or her signature, diligently bring to the attention of the Board 

contracts of particular importance regardless of value, including contracts that present an unusually high risk, 
contracts that could bring the University under public scrutiny, contracts that could affect the reputation of the 
University, and contracts involving controversial matters. 

 
3.5. Every signing officer subordinate to the vice-principals shall also, prior to his or her signature, diligently bring to 

the attention of the responsible vice-principal those contracts of particular importance regardless of value, 
including contracts that present an unusually high risk, in particular those involving human subjects, contracts 
that could bring the University under public scrutiny, contracts that could affect the reputation of the University, 
and contracts involving controversial matters.   

 
3.6. Each vice-principal has the power to restrict, in writing, the signing authority of any signing officer subordinate to 

that vice-principal. 
 
3.7. Any signing officer herein designated shall act in good faith for the best interests of the University and shall not 

sign any contract within the scope of that signing officer's jurisdiction where, by doing so, that officer is placed in 
a conflict of interest or gives the appearance of being so, unless that conflict has been disclosed and addressed 
in accordance with University policy.  A signing officer shall also act in accordance with the provisions of the 
Policy on Conflict of Interest and Duty of Loyalty. 

 
3.8. The use of facsimile signatures and signature stamps is not permitted as evidence of approval to purchase for 

the purposes of these Regulations.   
 
4. Legal Review 
 
4.1. Review of all contracts by Legal Services is mandatory prior to their signing except, subject to section 4.2, in the 

following instances: 
 

4.1.1. Leases, and extensions or renewals of leases having a total rental value not exceeding $200,000 
and having a term of two years or less; 

 
4.1.2. Construction and renovation contracts having a total value not exceeding $200,000; 
 
4.1.3. Research contracts and service contracts having a total value not exceeding $200,000; 

 
4.1.4. Settlement and transaction agreements concerning termination of employment, resignation or 

retirement of McGill staff, using the pre-approved standard forms; 
 

4.1.5. License agreements using pre-approved standard forms; 
 

4.1.6. License agreements where the combined value of upfront payments and the net present value of 
McGill’s share in the share capital of a corporation (including all shares received in consideration of 
the license) does not exceed $200,000; 

 
4.1.7. Research grants agreements having a value not exceeding $2,000,000; 
 
4.1.8. Computer contracts having a total value not exceeding $200,000; 
 



Regulations Relating to the Approval of Contracts and Signing Authority 4 

4.1.9. International project agreements having a total value not exceeding $200,000 
 

4.1.10. Academic contracts having a total value not exceeding $200,000; 
 

4.1.11. Academic employment contracts; 
 

4.1.12. Non-academic employment contracts; 
 

4.1.13. Purchasing and maintenance contracts having a value not exceeding $200,000; 
 

4.1.14. Athletics contracts having a total value not exceeding $200,000. 
 
4.2 Notwithstanding the provisions of section 4.1, contracts of any value that include unusual legal provisions or 

risks must be reviewed by Legal Services prior to their signing. 
 
5. Exercise of Signing Authority 
 
5.1. The Boards of Governors of McGill University, RVC, and of the Trustees of RIAL have the general and 

overriding power to enter into all contracts of whatever nature binding the three corporations. Each shall retain 
such power, notwithstanding the delegation of authority conferred upon specified individuals in these 
Regulations.  Each shall retain the residual power to contract itself or through its Executive Committee, where no 
specific delegation of authority has been made in relation to any contract. 

 
5.2. Contracts for which no authority is provided in this by-law must be submitted to the Board of Governors for 

approval. 
 
5.3. Subject to section 8.2, the Principal has the authority to sign any and all contracts on behalf of RIAL, McGill 

University and the RVC in lieu of individuals designated as signing officers.  
 
5.4. Any approval required from a Board Committee pursuant to these Regulations may also be provided by the 

Board of Governors. 
 

5.5. Contracts with a value that exceeds $1,000,000 must be reported at least annually to the Board or the 
appropriate Board Committee in accordance with the provisions of these Regulations.  In addition, the Board or 
a Board Committee may require reports for certain contracts with a value of up to $1,000,000.  

 
5.6. Signing authority granted under these Regulations must be exercised in accordance with the approved 

University budget.   
 

5.7. The Secretary-General shall have the authority to issue any certificate authenticating or confirming the by-laws, 
resolutions, decisions, and other acts of the Board of RIAL, McGill University, and RVC pursuant to these 
Regulations. 

 
5.8. Signing authority is automatically vested in the individual at the next higher level of authority in the direct line of 

reporting. 
 

5.9. Individuals may exercise the authority prescribed in these Regulations only for those contracts pertaining to their 
faculty, department or administrative unit or for the function for which they are responsible or over which they 
have jurisdiction. 

 
5.10.These Regulations shall be reviewed regularly by the Nominating and Governance Committee, in consultation 

with the Finance Committee and Audit Committee, and a report submitted to the Board with recommendations, if 
any, at least every three years. 

 
6. Delegation of Authority  
 
6.1. In the event of unavailability or other extraordinary circumstances, the signing officers identified in these 

Regulations may delegate their signing authority to individuals they deem appropriate, but only where such 
delegation is in written form. 
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6.2. Individuals exercising authority granted to them pursuant to section 6.1 are governed by the provisions relating 
to signing officers set out in these Regulations.  

 
6.3. Where sub-delegation has occurred, the delegate must apprise the delegator of all actions taken or contracts 

signed pursuant to the delegated authority.  
 
7. Resolutions Granting Authority over Specific Matters  
 
7.1. The Board of Governors and the Executive Committee have delegated authority over specific matters to senior 

administrative officers of the University under Resolutions “A” (various business and real estate transactions), 
“B” (accounting, banking, and payroll), “C” (Royal Victoria College), and “M”. 

 
7.2. Resolutions A, B, C and M shall be interpreted restrictively and may be amended or repealed from time to time 

by resolution of the Board of Governors. 
 
8. Signing Officers 
 
8.1 The following University officers are hereby authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the University, in 

accordance with established budgetary approvals.  Except for contracts with a value greater than or equal to 
$2,000,000, where no additional approval requirements are noted, the signing officer may both approve and 
execute the contract.   

 
8.2 Contracts for a value greater than or equal to $1,000,000, except for research grant applications, require a 

second approval in addition to the approval of the signing officer.  When the signing officer is below the level of 
vice-principal, the second approval required is that of the vice-principal to whom the signing officer reports.  
When the signing officer is a vice-principal, other than the Vice-Principal (Administration and Finance), the 
second approval required is that of the Vice-Principal (Administration and Finance).  When the signing officer is 
the Vice-Principal (Administration and Finance) the second approval required is that of another vice-principal.  
When the signing officer is the Principal, the second approval required is that of the vice-principal with 
responsibility for the subject-matter of the contract.   

 
8.3 Where additional approval is required, as noted in column 4, it must be obtained in writing before the signing 

officer executes the contract.  
 
8.4 The signing officers designated below may sign all documents accessory to a contract or required to fully 

implement it and perform all acts imposed upon or permitted to the University, in virtue of the contract and such 
accessory contracts. 

 
8.5 In accordance with the Statutes of McGill University, the Executive Committee of the Board of Governors may 

exercise authority on behalf of the Board of Governors, except as prescribed in the Statutes. 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

9. Immovable Property 

Definitions 

In this section, unless the context indicates otherwise, "lease" means any contract by which a party acquires or cedes personal rights in 

immovable property. 

In this section, unless the context indicates otherwise, “acquisition” means any contract under which the University gains real rights in 

immovable property, either through purchase, rights of superficies, emphytheusis, usufruct or similar arrangements. 

In this section, unless the context indicates otherwise, “disposition” means any contract under which the University cedes, sells, or 

otherwise divests itself of real rights in immovable property.   

“Property” means any immovable property owned by or premises leased by RIAL or vested in RIAL wherever situated.  All property is 

categorized as investment property, academic property, non-academic property, or residence.  The Board of Trustees has exclusive 

jurisdiction to determine such categorization.   

Restrictions  

 
 

Acquisition of property 

Up to $2,000,000 See section 8.2 
Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

Up to $4,000,000 See section 8.2 Principal 

Up to $5,000,000 

Approval of Building and 

Property Committee 

required 

Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

or Executive Director, 

Facilities Management and 

Development 

$5,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

Disposition of property All values Board of Governors 
Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

Lease of residence accommodation on the 

downtown campus  
All values 

In accordance with the 

student residence fees 

approved by the Board 

Director, Residences and 

Student Housing  

Lease of rental dwellings for short-term use All values See section 8.2 

Director, Residences and 

Student Housing; Director, 

Administrative Services 

(Macdonald Campus); or 

Director, Ancillary Services, 

as appropriate 

Lease of residence accommodation on the 

Macdonald Campus 
All values 

In accordance with the 

student residence fees 

approved by the Board 

Director, Administrative 

Services, (Macdonald 

Campus) 

Lease of property as lessor or lessee 

Up to $1,000,000  

Executive Director, Facilities 

Management and 

Development 

Up to $2,000,000 and less than 

ten years  
See section 8.2 

Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

Up to $4,000,000 and less than 

15 years 
See section 8.2 Principal 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

Up to $10,000,000 

Approval of Building and 

Property Committee 

required 

Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

or Director, Facilities 

Management and 

Development 

$10,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

10. Construction and Renovation Contracts (Facilities Development) 

Definitions 

This section applies to any contract by which materials and services are purchased, rented, or otherwise obtained for the purpose of or 

related to the construction, renovation, repair or alteration, of immoveable property owned by or vested in RIAL wherever situated including, 

but without limitation, contracts for professional services, general contracts, and sub-contracts. 

Restrictions 

For all Facilities Management and Development construction/renovation projects where the resulting contract is expected to have a value 

of more than $250,000 and less than $1,000,000, tendering is by invitation to three to five contractors, as appropriate.  Public tendering by 

the Department of Facilities Management and Development is required for all Construction/Major Renovation Projects where the resulting 

contract is expected to have a value greater than or equal to $1,000,000. 

 Construction and renovation contracts 

Less than $100,000  

Director, Facilities 

Management and 

Development; or Director of 

Construction, Facilities- 

Management and 

Development 

Up to $1,000,000   

Executive Director, Facilities 

Management and 

Development  

Up to $2,000,000  See section 8.2 
Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

Up to $4,000,000  See section 8.2 Principal 

Up to $5,000,000  

Approval of Building and 

Property Committee 

required  

Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

or Executive Director, 

Facilities Management and 

Development  

$5,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

11. Investment Contracts 

Definition 

This section applies to any contract to purchase and other document required to, sell, assign, transfer, or otherwise dispose of any and all 

cash instruments, transactions in securities shares, stocks or bonds, debentures, certificates of deposit, and other securities of whatever 

nature now or hereafter held or registered in the name of or for RIAL or McGill University, directly or through a custodian, trustee or broker, 

including shares, bonds or debentures in spin-offs. 

Short-term investment contracts are investment transaction whereby funds are invested, transferred, or borrowed on a short-term basis for 

the purpose of maximizing return and ensuring availability of cash flow. 

Restrictions 
Short-term investment contracts will be entered into only with pre-approved financial institutions and in accordance with the Policy on 

Investment of Cash and Borrowing. 

 Investment  contracts  
Up to $1,000,000   Senior Treasury Officer 

Up to $1,500,000  See section 8.2. Treasurer 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

Up to 1% of the market value of 

the McGill Investment Pool  
See section 8.2. 

Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

Up to 1.5% of the market value 

of the McGill Investment Pool 

 

See section 8.2. Principal 

Up to 5% of the market value of 

the McGill Investment Pool  

Approval of Investment 

Committee required 

Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

Over 5% of the market value of 

the McGill Investment Pool  
Board of Governors 

Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

 Short-term investment contracts 

Up to $15,000,000 

See section 8.2. 

Senior Treasury Officer 

Up to $20,000,000 Treasurer 

$20,000,000 or more 
Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

12. Securities Contracts 

Definition 
This section applies to any contracts by which the liability of McGill University, RIAL or RVC is engaged in the form of a bond or a loan in 

which the Government of Québec is the guarantor to bond holders or lender of repayment of the principal and interest. 

Restrictions  

 

Issuance of securities contracts All values Board of Governors 
Individual so designated 

by the Board of Governors 

Execution of all contracts, accessory 

agreements, consents and waivers, 

including conversions, exchanges, and 

registrations affecting administrative 

management of the securities contracts, 

such as modalities of payment of interest 

following the issuance of a securities 

contract. 

All values See section 8.2 
Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

13. Student Association Contracts 

Definition 

Any contract between the University and a McGill student association or student interest group which regulates the collection of student 

fees for their activities including, without restriction, agreements determining financing and operations, but shall exclude contracts covered 

by other provisions of these Regulations.   

Restrictions  

 

Student association contracts with 

Students' Society of McGill University 

(SSMU), the McGill Association of 

Continuing Education Students (MACES), 

the Post Graduate Students' Society 

(PGSS), the Macdonald Campus Students' 

Society (MCSS), the McGill Daily 

Publications Society, and the Quebec 

Public Interest Research Group at McGill 

(QPIRG), Radio McGill (CKUT), and the 

Legal Information Clinic. 

All values  Board of Governors 
Individual so designated 

by the Board of Governors 

Student association contracts at the faculty 

or departmental level  
All values  See section 8.2 

Deputy Provost (Student Life 

and Learning) 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

14. Purchasing and Maintenance Contracts 

Definition 

Purchasing contracts include formal McGill purchase orders and any contracts for the acquisition by purchase, lease-back or rental of 

moveable effects including goods, supplies, equipment, and services, other than consultants, for any University purpose and includes all 

letters of intent, memoranda of agreement, or other agreements the purpose of which is to set the terms of a purchase agreement to be 

entered into at a future date. 

Restrictions 

Notwithstanding the above, the provisions in these Regulations relating to construction and renovation contracts, technology contracts, 

academic contracts, investment contracts, and advertising and publicity contracts prevail over this section to the extent they deal with 

purchasing contracts.   

Public tendering by Purchasing Services is mandatory for all contracts for a value greater than $100,000. 

 Purchasing contracts  

Up to $2,500 processed on a 
PCard 

 

Administrator responsible 

for the budget in the relevant 

department,  faculty or 

administrative unit as 

delegate by the 

Dean or Director or 

Executive Director of the 

administrative unit 

Up to $50,000  Buyer, Purchasing Services  

Up to $100,000  
Senior Buyer, Purchasing 

Services 

Up to $500,000   

Associate Director,  

Purchasing, Customs and 

Traffic 

Up to $1,000,000   Director, Ancillary Services  

Up to $2,000,000  See section 8.2. 
Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

Up to $4,000,000 See section 8.2. Principal 

$4,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

15. Technology Contracts 

Definitions 

"Computer contract" means any contract relating to the acquisition, by long-term or short-term lease, license, or similar contract, of 

computer-related tangible or intangible assets or rights including without limitation the purchase, lease, or licensing of computer hardware 

or software by or from the University, agreements for the financing of the acquisition of the foregoing including those structured as lease-

backs and computer maintenance contracts. 

“Telecommunications contracts” means any contract relating to the acquisition of telecommunications wire or wireless services, including 

access to the public switched telecommunications service, local and long distance services, access to the internet or other similar networks 

of computers, and cable or satellite television services. 

“Multimedia learnware contracts” means any contract relating to the development and delivery of computer or software-based programs, 

courses, lectures, or other similar teaching or learning tools, whether by the University on its own, or jointly with other national or 

international educational institutions.   

Restrictions Public tendering by Purchasing Services is mandatory for all contracts for a value greater than $100,000. 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

 Computer contracts 

Up to $50,000  

Administrative responsible 

for the budget in the relevant 

department, faculty or 

administrative 

unit as delegated by the 

Dean, or Director or 

Executive Director of the 

administrative unit 
 

Lesser of $100,000 or funds 

available under a research 

grant or contract for such 

purchase, where the computer 

contract relates to property that 

will belong directly or indirectly 

to the University  

 

Academic staff member who 

controls funds under a 

research grant or contract 

permitting the execution of 

computer contracts 

Funds available under a 

research grant or contract for 

such purchase, where the 

computer contract relates to 

property that will belong to the 

research sponsor and never 

revert to McGill 

 

Academic staff member who 

controls funds under a 

research grant or contract 

permitting the execution of 

computer contracts and the 

Associate Director, 

Purchasing, Customs and 

Traffic 

Up to $500,000 and the 

contract relates primarily to 

administrative, and not 

research or teaching, 

applications  

 

Director of Information 

Systems and the Director of 

the Network 

Communications Services 

jointly 

Up to $200,000 for the 

acquisition of software or 

access to electronic information 

by the McGill Libraries, for the 

benefit of the University 

community  

 Director of Libraries 

Up to $1,000,000   
Director of Network 

Communications Services 

Up to $2,000,000  See section 8.2. Deputy Provost  

Up to $4,000,000 See section 8.2. Principal 

$4,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

 
Telecommunications and multimedia 

learnware contracts 

Telecommunications contracts 

for up to $100,000 
 

Associate Director Voice 

Technologies and Associate 

Director Network 

Engineering as appropriate 

Telecommunications contracts 

for up to $1,000,000  
 

Director, 

Network and 

Communications Services 

Multimedia learnware contracts 

for up to $1,000,000 
 

Director, Instructional 

Multimedia Services 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

Up to $2,000,000  See section 8.2. Deputy Provost  

Up to $4,000,000  See section 8.2. Principal 

$4,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

16. Loan Contracts 

Definition 
“Loan contracts” means any contract to lend monies, whether against collateral or without security of any nature, to staff  members, whether 

directly, through RIAL or McGill University, or through a third party, upon the credit of RIAL and McGill University. 

 

Loan contracts, other than loans granted in 

the application of the Policy on Student 

Loans 

All values See section 8.2 Treasurer 

Loans granted in the application of the 

Policy on Student Loans 
All values See section 8.2 

Director of the Office of 

Student Aid and 

International Student 

Services 

17. Research Agreements, Research Grants Agreements and Service Agreements 

Definitions 

A research agreement is an agreement between a sponsor and the University whereby research work is carried out by academic staff or 

students of the University, under the supervision of the principal investigator who is a member of the academic staff of the University, and 

where rights to inventions developed are granted to the sponsor for use for commercial purposes. For the purpose of these Regulations, 

research agreements, research contracts, clinical trial agreements, material transfer agreements, partnership program agreements, 

collaborative research development agreements, inter-institutional research agreements and industrial research chair agreements, whereby 

rights for commercial use of inventions are granted to a third party, are research agreements. 

A research grant application is an agreement between a granting agency, a not-for-profit organization or another sponsor, spelling out the 

conditions of use of funds requested for the purpose of carrying out research at the University under the supervision of a principal 

investigator whereby the University’s sole obligations are to correctly manage the funds and ensure that reports are delivered to the 

sponsor, where appropriate.  

A research grant agreement is an agreement between a granting agency, a not for profit organization or another sponsor spelling out the 

terms and conditions applicable to a grant awarded to a researcher of the University, that may contain provisions granting to the sponsor 

rights to use intellectual property for non-commercial purposes. For the purpose of these Regulations, an agreement containing provisions 

making intellectual property developed by academic staff or students of the University owned by the sponsor or by third parties, or that 

grants rights to use such intellectual property for commercial purposes to third parties, is a research agreement. 

A service agreement is an agreement pursuant to which the University provides to a third party technical services or use of facilities such 

as equipment and laboratories for the purpose of testing and delivery of experimental results. 

Restrictions Notwithstanding the above, research agreements and grants between the University and foreign sponsors, where rights to inventions are 

not granted to the sponsor are governed by the section on International Project Agreements. 

All research agreements containing rights to inventions must be reviewed by the Office of Technology Transfer before they are signed.  

All research grants must be reviewed by the Research Grants Office before they are signed. 

 Research grant applications 

Up to $2,000,000  
Director of the Research 

Grants Office 

Up to $5,000,000  

Associate Vice-Principal 

(Research and International 

Relations) 

Up to $10,000,000  
Vice-Principal (Research 

and International Relations) 

Up to $20,000,000  Principal 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

$20,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

Research grant agreements 

Up to $500,000 

 

 

 

Director, Office of 

Technology Transfer 

Up to $1,000,000   

Associate Vice-Principal 

(Research and International 

Relations) 

Up to $2,000,000 See section 8.2 
Vice-Principal (Research 

and International Relations) 

Up to $4,000,000 See section 8.2 Principal 

$4,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

Research agreements and service 

agreements 

Service agreements up to 

$10,000 
 

Dean of the Faculty, or 

Officer of Technology 

Transfer 

Up to $50,000  
Officer of the Office of 

Technology Transfer 

Up to $500,000  
Director, Office of 

Technology Transfer 

Up to $1,000,000  

Associate Vice-Principal 

(Research and International 

Relations) 

Up to $2,000,000 See section 8.2 
Vice-Principal (Research 

and International Relations) 

Up to $4,000,000 See section 8.2 Principal 

$4,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

18. Commercialization Contracts 

Definitions 

A license agreement is an agreement between the University and a third party whereby a right to use intellectual property covered by the 

Policy on Intellectual Property is granted to such third party. For the purpose of these Regulations, all letters of intent, memoranda of 

agreement or other agreements the purpose of which is to set the terms of use of such intellectual property, to be entered into at a future 

date, are considered to be license agreements.   

A shareholder agreement is an agreement entered into by the University as shareholder of a corporation established for the purpose of 

commercializing intellectual property developed at the University, or as shareholder or a licensee of intellectual property developed at the 

University, setting out the terms and conditions applicable to the governance of the corporation, including rights of the parties to transact 

their shares in the share capital of such corporation. For the purpose of these Regulations, any agreement, resolution or document 

accessory to a shareholders’ agreement is considered to be a shareholders’ agreement. 

Patenting documents means a power of attorney, assignment agreements or any other instrument or document required by a patent 

attorney retained by the University for the purpose of prosecuting a patent owned by McGill University. 

Restrictions 

Review and approval of all licensing and shareholders agreements by the Office of Technology Transfer, prior to their signing, is 

mandatory. 

Review of licensing agreements by the Advisory Committee on Commercial Undertakings Related to Research is required for all licensing 

agreements that include significant potential financial or reputational exposure to the University. 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

 License and shareholders’ agreements 

Where the combined value of 

the upfront payment and net 

present value of McGill’s 

shares in the share capital of a 

corporation (including all 

shares received in 

consideration of the license) is 

up to $500,000 

 
Director, Office of 
Technology Transfer 

Where the combined value of 

the upfront payment and net 

present value of McGill’s in the 

share capital of a corporation 

shares (including all shares 

received in consideration of the 

license) is up to $1,000,000 

 

Associate Vice-Principal 

(Research and International 

Relations) 

Where the combined value of 

the upfront payment and net 

present value of McGill’s 

shares in the share capital of a 

corporation (including all 

shares received in 

consideration of the license) is 

up to $2,000,000 

See section 8.2 
Vice-Principal (Research 

and International Relations) 

Where the combined value of 

the upfront payment and net 

present value of McGill’s 

shares in the share capital of a 

corporation (including all 

shares received in 

consideration of the license) is 

up to $4,000,000 

See section 8.2 Principal 

Where the combined valued of 

the upfront payment and the 

net present value of McGill’s 

shares  in the share capital of a 

corporation (including all 

shares received in 

consideration of the license) is 

$4,000,000 or more 

Board of Governors  
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

 Patenting documents All values  
Director, Office of 

Technology Transfer 

19. International Project Agreements 

Definitions 

 

International projects include research, development, training and service activities with or for foreign parties. These include participation in 

fundamental or applied research teams or networks, delivery of education or training programs abroad, and support to professorial mobility 

or student exchange activities. 

International project agreements are contracts to enter into international projects between the University and any government, or any of its 

departments or agencies or any international organization or its agencies. These include agreements to enter into international projects 

with the Canadian government or one of its ministries, the provincial government or one of its ministries, foreign government or one of its 

ministries, philanthropic organizations, and international financial institutions. 

Restrictions 
All applications for funding for international project agreements must be reviewed by the Office of International Research and approved by 

the appropriate dean before they are signed. 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

All international project agreements must be acknowledged in writing and performed by a full-time ranked academic staff member (the 

principal investigator) 

International project agreements with a teaching component must be approved by the Subcommittee on Courses and Teaching Programs 

and by the Provost before they are signed. 

International project agreements that include licensing of rights or rights to inventions must be reviewed by the Office of Technology 

Transfer before they are signed. 

 

International project agreements 

Up to $500,000 Dean 
Director of the Office of 

International Research 

Up to $1,000,000 Dean 

Associate Vice-Principal 

(Research and International 

Relations) 

Up to $2,000,000  Dean and see section 8.2 
Vice-Principal (Research 

and International Relations) 

Up to $4,000,000  Dean and see section 8.2. Principal  

All values Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

Sub-contracts and accessory agreements 

to the international project agreements 

Up to $50,000  
Principal Investigator for the 

project agreement 

Up to $200,000   Dean  

Up to $500,000   
Director, Office of 

International Research  

Up to $1,000,000   

Associate Vice-Principal 

(Research and International 

Relations) 

Up to $2,000,000 See section 8.2 
Vice-Principal (Research 

and International Relations) 

Up to $4,000,000  See section 8.2 Principal  

All values Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

20. Academic Contracts 

Definitions 

Academic contracts are agreements for the pursuit of any academically related activity, within or outside the University premises including, 

without limitation, the establishment or management of an arrangement, program, or organization, publishing contracts, conference 

agreements, training agreements, survey contracts, video production contracts, editing and copyright agreements 

Restrictions 
Notwithstanding the above, academic contracts shall not include contracts governed by other specific provisions of these Regulations, 

particularly research agreements and international project agreements. 

 Academic contracts 

Up to $500,000  

Dean of the faculty, the 
Dean of Continuing 

Education, or the Director of 

Libraries 

Up to $2,000,000  See section 8.2 Provost 

Up to $4,000,000 See section 8.2 Principal 

$4,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

Board of Governors 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

21. Academic Contracts of Employment and Academic Administrative Appointments  

Definitions 

Academic contracts of employment are contracts of employment with the University that pertain to individuals who will occupy positions 

listed in the academic classifications table.   

Academic administrative appointments are appointments of full-time members of the academic staff to administrative positions.   

Appointments shall include reappointments.  

 

Restrictions 

Academic contracts of employment shall be reviewed by the Office of Academic Personnel and on the recommendation of the dean of the 

faculty concerned. 

Academic contracts of employment for a value of greater than $150,000 per year, excluding benefits, must first be approved by the 

Executive Committee.     

 

 

Full-time appointments of academic staff  

Full-time appointments to non-

tenure track positions 
 Provost or delegate 

Full-time appointments of 

assistant or associate 

professors without tenure 

 Provost or delegate  

Full-time appointments of 

associate professors with 

tenure 

Board of Governors 
Secretary-General and 

Provost or delegate  

Full-time promotions of 

associate professors with 

tenure 

Board of Governors 
Secretary-General and 

Provost or delegate  

Full-time appointments of full 

professors 
Board of Governors 

Secretary-General and 

Provost or delegate  

Full-time promotions of full 

professors 
Board of Governors 

Secretary-General and 

Provost or delegate  

GFT-H academic appointments  Provost or delegate  

Full-time appointments of librarian staff 

 

Full-time appointments to non-

tenure track librarian positions 
 

Provost or delegate  

 

Full-time appointments of 

assistant or associate librarians 

without tenure 

 Provost or delegate  

Full-time appointments and 

promotions of associate 

librarians with tenure 

Board of Governors 
Secretary-General and 

Provost or delegate  

Full-time appointments and 

promotions of full librarians  
Board of Governors 

Secretary-General and 

Provost or delegate  

Part-time appointments of academic staff 

Part-time academic 

appointments and promotions 

of assistant professors, 

associate professors or full 

professors 

 Provost or delegate  
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

Part-time appointments of librarian staff 

Part-time librarian 

appointments as assistant 

librarians, associate librarians, 

or full librarians  

 Provost or delegate 

Academic administrative appointments 

Appointments in a faculty to 

academic administrative 

positions below the level of 

dean, such as departmental 

chairs, directors of schools, and 

associate or assistant deans  

 Provost or delegate  

Appointments of deans and 

vice-principals, deputy provost, 

and provost 

Board of Governors Principal or delegate 

Appointments of associate 

vice-principals and associate 

provosts 

 Relevant vice-principal 

Director of the Montreal 

Neurological Institute 
Board of Governors  

Secretary-General and 

Principal or delegate 

Directors of Institutes and 

Research Centres, other than 

the Montreal Neurological 

Institute 

 Provost or delegate  

Other Academic Appointments  

Appointments to industrial 

chairs and other direct-funded 

chairs 

 Provost or delegate 

Appointments to endowed 

named chairs, for both definite 

and indefinite term 

 Provost or delegate  

Appointments of professors 

emeriti 
Board of Governors Secretary-General 

Visiting academic and librarian 

appointments 
 Provost or delegate 

Nil-salaried appointments 

regardless of rank  
 Provost or delegate 

Phased retirement 

appointments 
 Provost or delegate  

Post-retirement appointments  Provost or delegate  

Assistant professor 

appointments (special 

category) 

 Provost or delegate  

Adjunct professor appointments  Provost or delegate 

All other academic contracts of 

employment not listed above 
 Provost or delegate  

 
Accessory arrangements to contracts of 

employment 

Sabbatic leaves;  

Leaves of absence; 

Early retirement agreements 

 
Provost or delegate 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

22. Non-Academic Contracts of Employment   

Definition 
Non-academic contracts of employment are contracts of employment between the University and an individual who will occupy a position 

not listed in the academic classifications table. 

 

Administrative appointments to the position 

of vice-principal of individuals not also 

holding an academic appointment 

All values Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

Contracts of employment for executive 

directors and directors of non-academic 

units 

All values 
Vice-Principal to whom 

position reports 

Jointly by vice-principal to 

whom position reports, or 

the Secretary-General and 

the Associate Vice-Principal 

(Human Resources) or the 

Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

Non-academic contracts of employment 

below the level of director and executive 

director, but within the “Management” 

classifications 

 

Up to $80,000 
 

Dean of the relevant faculty 

or Manager of Staffing, 

Executive Director or 

Director of the relevant 

administrative unit  

Up to $100,000 
Executive Director, 

Human Resources  

Director or Executive 

Director of relevant 

administrative unit or Dean 

of the relevant faculty 

 

Up to $150,000 
Executive Director, 

Human Resources 

Director or Executive 

Director of relevant 

administrative unit or vice-

principal  of the 

administrative unit or Dean 

of the relevant faculty  

$150,000 or more 

Vice-Principal 

(Administration and 

Finance) 

Jointly by vice-principal to 

whom position reports and 

the Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

Non-academic contract of employment of 

administrative and support staff, including 

contracts for the employment of casual 

staff, except for “Management” 

classifications 

Up to $60,000 

Administrator responsible 

for the budget in the 

relevant department, 

faculty or administrative 

unit as delegated by the 

Dean, Director or 

Executive Director of the 

administrative unit 

Manager of staffing or Dean 

of the relevant faculty, 

Executive Director or 

Director of relevant 

administrative unit 

 

 
 

Collective agreements between the 

University and unions representing 

University Staff 

All values See section 8.2. 

Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

and Executive Director of 

Human Resources 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

23. Contracts Relating to the Hiring of Consultants 

Definition  
Any contract under which the University retains or pays for the services of another party, whether an individual or a corporation, for the 

purpose of receiving advice or services from such other party.   

Restrictions  

 

Consulting contracts 

 

   

Up to $500,000  

Dean of the faculty, 

the director of libraries, the 

director or executive 

director of an 

administrative unit, 

an associate vice-principal, 

or an associate provost 

Up to $2,000,000 See section 8.2 

A vice-principal,  Secretary-

General, or Director, Legal 

Services, who has 

jurisdiction over the matter 

Up to $4,000,000 See section 8.2 Principal 

$4,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

Hiring of audit consultants All values 
Nominating and 

Governance Committee 
Chair, Audit Committee 

Hiring or mandating of outside legal counsel All values See section 8.2 Director, Legal Services 

24. Pension Plans, Pension Funds and Benefit Plans 

Definition 
This section applies to administrative contracts relating to the general operation of the benefit and pension plans at McGill University, 

except for matters governed by Pension Administration Committees.  

Restrictions  

 

Contracts with institutions or insurance 

companies for the purpose of managing 

benefit and simplified pension plans 

Up to $500,000  
Executive Director, 

Human Resources  

Up to $2,000,000 See section 8.2 
Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

Up to $4,000,000 See section 8.2 Principal 

$4,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

25. Advertising and Publicity Contracts  

Definition 
“Advertising and publicity contracts” are contracts to provide goods and services for the promotion of the University and include contracts 

for promotional and communications material and activities.   

Restrictions  

  

Up to $100,000  

Deans; or executive 

directors or directors of non-

academic units 

Up to $500,000  
Associate Vice-Principal 

(Communications) 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

Up to $2,000,000 See section 8.2 
Vice-Principal (University 

Advancement) 

Up to $4,000,000 See section 8.2 Principal 

$4,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual so designated by 

the Board of Governors 

26. Advancement, Endowment and Development matters, including receipts for charitable donations  

Definitions 
“Donation Agreement” means any contract evidencing a gift of immovable or movable property, and shall include pledges, deeds of 

donation, memoranda of agreement, annuity agreements and endowment agreements. 

Restrictions Transfer of ownership of an immovable shall be governed by the provisions in these Regulations regarding immovable property. 

 

Issuing receipts for charitable donations or 

gifts-in-kind 
  

Vice-Principal (University 

Advancement)  

Donation agreements All values 

Vice-Principal 

(Administration and 

Finance) if gift is 

endowed, and see section 

8.2 

Vice-Principal (University 

Advancement)  

 
Donor agreements consigning collections to 

the University Archives  
All values See section 8.2 University Archivist  

27. Naming Agreements 

Definition 
“Naming Agreement” is a memoranda of understanding or other contractual agreement regarding the naming of physical property of the 

University or non-physical entities controlled by the University such as Chairs, Professorships, and Scholarships. 

 

Naming of physical entities pursuant to 

Policy on Naming of Physical Entities 
All values See section 8.2 Principal 

Establishment of endowed named chairs All values  

Provost and Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

jointly 

 
Establishment of industrial and other non-

endowed chairs 
All values  

Vice-Principal (Research 

and International Relations) 

and Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

jointly  

28. Athletics Contracts 

Definition 

"Athletics contract" means any contract in relation to sports activities on the property of RIAL or for University purposes involving rental or 

other use of sports facilities, game agreements and team travel, purchase of sports equipment, program sponsorships, sports related 

advertising, and sports staff management. 

Restrictions 
Where the total or cumulative monetary value of an athletics contract exceeds the limits set out below, this section shall be subordinate to 

any other signing section providing for signing authority in matters which may otherwise apply to such contracts. 

 Lease of athletics facilities 

Up to $10,000 and less than 

one year 
 

Director of Athletics, or 

Macdonald Campus Director 

of Athletics 

Up to $50,000 and less than 3 

years 
 Dean of Students 
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Description Contracts Value or  other restriction 
Approval 
requirements, if any 

Signing officer(s) 

Purchase of equipment and team travel 

Up to $15,000 per purchase or 

per trip 
 

Director of Athletics, or 

Macdonald Campus Director 

of Athletics 

Up to $50,000 per purchase or 

per trip 
 Dean of Students 

Employment of referees, part time activity 

supervisors, monitors, coaches, instructors 

and other games support staff not hired on 

a regular basis 

Less than 12 months  

Director of Athletics, or 

Macdonald Campus Director 

of Athletics 

Less than 3 years  Dean of Students 

29. Settlement and Transaction Agreements 

Definition 

A “settlement agreement” is any contract that settles a legal claim or threatened legal claim against the University.  A legal claim includes a 

civil action, a grievance pursuant to a Collective Agreement, a complaint before a judicial or quasi-judicial tribunal or any other action that 

potentially engages the liability of the University. 

Restrictions 
Except in respect of individual grievances, no settlement agreement may be entered into and signed until it has been reviewed by the 

Director, Legal Services. 

 

Settlement agreement concerning 

grievances or labour matters in front of 

judicial or quasi-judicial tribunals  

Up to $50,000  
Associate Director, Human 

Resources 

Up to $300,000  
Executive Director, Human 

Resources 

Up to $2,000,000 See section 8.2 
Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

Up to $4,000,000 See section 8.2 Principal 

$4,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual designated by the 

Board of Governors 

Settlement agreement in respect of insured 

losses 

Up to $100,000  Manager, Risk Management 

Up to $300,000  Treasurer 

Up to $2,000,000 See section 8.2 
Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

Up to $4,000,000 See section 8.2 Principal 

$4,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual designated by the 

Board of Governors 

All other settlement agreements 

Up to $500,000  Director, Legal Services 

Up to $2,000,000 See section 8.2 
Vice-Principal 

(Administration and Finance) 

Up to $4,000,000 See section 8.2 Principal 

$4,000,000 or more Board of Governors 
Individual designated by the 

Board of Governors 

 

 

 

 

 



Regulations Relating to the Approval of Contracts and Signing Authority 21 

 

 

Regulations Relating to the Approval of Contracts and Signing Authority 

Full History 

Source: 

Board of Governors December 13, 2004 Minute 6 

Amendments: 

Executive Committee March 14, 2005 Minute 7 

Executive Committee June 20, 2005 Minute 9 

Board of Governors April 10, 2006 Minute 9 

Executive Committee March 17, 2008 Minute 5.1.3 

Executive Committee March 22, 2010 Minute 8.2 
 
Executive Committee  September 4, 2014 Minute 6 



Regulations Relating to the Approval of Contracts and Signing Authority 22 

30.1  
RESOLUTION “A” 

 

Resolved: 

 

THAT any member of the Executive Committee of the 

Board of Governors of the Royal Institution for the 

Advancement of Learning, together with the Secretary-

General of the said Institution (or, failing the Secretary-

General, another member of the said Committee or the 

Vice-Principal (Administration & Finance) or the 

Treasurer or the Executive Director of Finance) be and 

they are hereby authorized for and on behalf of the 

Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning to 

represent and act for it in connection with the following 

matters and business transactions, that is to say: to 

accept obligations, loans, hypothecs, transfers and 

delegations of payment, both movable and immovable, 

and to bind it to such conditions as may be thought 

necessary or expedient and to the payment of any 

consideration or price; to grant delays of payment for 

sums due under Deeds of Sale or Loan or for other 

debts and to reduce or increase the rate of interest; to 

make transfers of sums due it and give subrogation 

with or without warranty and to receive the price; to 

receive payment of all sums, both capital and interest, 

and in any way and at any time due and for all sums 

received good and sufficient acquittances to give and 

grant; to discharge mortgages, hypothecs, and other 

privileged claims, and to release property therefrom, 

with or without consideration, and to limit or restrict its 

hypothec or privilege upon any immovable property to 

such sum or sums and in such  manner as they may 

think fit and this either by separate instrument or by 

intervention in any deed or document; also to sell, 

assign, and transfer at any time, all or any shares, 

bonds, debentures, debenture stock or other securities 

registered in the name of the Royal Institution for the 

Advancement of Learning and to make, execute and 

sign all necessary acts or assignments and transfer of 

said shares, bonds, debentures, debenture stock or other 

securities and to appoint in their place and stead an 

attorney or attorneys and agreeing to ratify and confirm 

all and whatsoever said attorney or his substitute may 

lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof; also 

to take and authorize to be taken any and all 

proceedings, suits, and actions, legal or otherwise, 

which may be necessary, or which they may deem 

necessary for the enforcement of its claims, the 

preservation of its rights, or the protection of its  

  

DÉCISION “A” 

 

 

Il est décidé que: 

 

Tout membre du Comité exécutif du Conseil des 

gouverneurs de l’Institution royale pour l’avancement 

des sciences, conjointement avec le Secrétaire général 

de ladite Institution (ou, à défaut du Secrétaire général, 

un autre membre dudit Comité, le Vice-Principal 

(administration & finance), le Trésorier, ou bien le 

directeur exécutif de finance) sont autorisés par les 

présentes à représenter l’Institution royale pour 

l’avancement des sciences et à agir en son nom et dans 

son intérêt eu égard aux questions et aux opérations 

commerciales qui suivent, à savoir: accepter des 

obligations, des prêts, des hypothèques, des cessions et 

des subrogations de paiement, des donations, des legs, 

des actes de dation en paiement et du transfert de biens 

meubles et de biens immeubles ainsi qu’assujettir ladite 

institution aux conditions qui pourront être jugées 

nécessaires ou opportunes et au paiement de toute 

considération ou prix; accorder des délais de paiement 

pour les sommes exigibles en vertu des actes de vente 

ou de prêt ou encore pour d’autres dettes et réduire ou 

augmenter le taux d’intérêt, effectuer le transfert des 

sommes qui lui sont dues et accorder une subrogation 

avec ou sans garantie et toucher le prix; recevoir la 

quittance de toute somme, capital et intérêt, sommes 

versées par n’importe quel moyen et échues à 

n’importe quelle date et donner et accorder des 

quittances en bonne et due forme pour toutes les 

sommes reçues; libérer les hypothèques, nantissements 

et autres créances privilégiées ainsi que la propriété qui 

s’y rattache, avec ou sans considération, et limiter ou 

restreindre son hypothèque ou privilège sur tout bien 

immobilier à une somme ou à certaines sommes et 

d’une manière jugée bonne par eux et ce, grâce à un 

document séparé, ou à une intervention dans une acte 

ou document quelconque; les personnes en question 

sont également autorisées à vendre, céder et transférer 

de tout temps la totalité ou une partie des actions, des 

obligations, des débentures, des capital-obligations, ou 

d’autres titres enregistrés au nom de l’Institution royale 

pour l’avancement des sciences, à conclure, souscrire 

et signer tous les actes ou cessions nécessaires et le 

transfert desdites actions, obligations, débentures, 

capital-obligations ou autres titres et à nommer pour les 

remplacer un ou plusieurs fondés de pouvoir et à 

s’engager à ratifier et à confirmer tout ce que ledit  
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interest, and to defend and authorize to be defended all 

suits and actions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I hereby certify the above to be a true copy of 

a resolution passed at a meeting of the Royal 

Institution for the Advancement of Learning on 

September 9th, 1991.  I further certify that this 

resolution is still in full force and effect. 

 

 

 

 

 Secretary-General 

 

 

_____________________ 

Date  

 fondé de pouvoir ou son substitut pourra légalement 

faire exécuter à ce titre; ces mêmes personnes sont 

également autorisées à intenter et à permettre que 

soient intentées toutes actions, poursuites et instances 

en justice ou autrement, qui pourront être nécessaires 

ou jugées telles afin de recouvrer les créances ou de 

pourvoir à la sauvegarde de ses droits ou à la protection 

de ses intérêts et à plaider et à autoriser que soient 

plaidées toutes causes et poursuites. 

 

Je, soussigné, certifie que le texte ci-dessus est 

une copie authentique de la décision ratifiée durant la 

réunion de l’institution royale pour l’avancement des 

sciences tenue le 9 septembre 1991.  Je certifie en 

outre que ladite décision est toujours entièrement en 

vigueur. 

 

 

 

                                  Secrétaire général 

 

 

_____________________ 

Date 

 



Regulations Relating to the Approval of Contracts and Signing Authority 24 

30.2 
RESOLUTION “B” 

 

RESOLVED: 

 

THAT an account or accounts may be opened by the Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning (McGill 

University) in any chartered bank or banks in Canada or elsewhere. 

 

THAT any member of the Executive Committee of the Board of Governors or any Vice-Principal of the Royal 

Institution for the Advancement of Learning (McGill University), together with the Treasurer, or the Executive 

Director of Finance, or the Director of Finance, or the Controller, or the Secretary-General of the said Institution, are 

hereby authorized for and on behalf of the said institution: 

 

Jointly to negotiate with, deposit with, or transfer to the Bank (but for the credit of the Institution’s 

account only) all or any cheques, promissory notes, bills of exchange, orders for the payment of 

money, drafts and other paper negotiable or otherwise signed or endorsed on behalf of the Institution 

by them having the name of the Institution impressed thereon by rubber stamp or otherwise; 

provided, however, that all cheques received by the Institution and made payable to it, to its order, or 

to bearer, may be endorsed with a rubber stamp of the said Institution and deposited to the credit of 

the Institution’s account without signed endorsement; and 

 

Jointly to arrange, settle, balance and certify all books and accounts between the Institution and the 

Bank and to receive all paid cheques and vouchers and to sign and deliver, to the Bank the Bank’s 

form of settlement of balances and release, provided, however, that any member of the Executive 

Committee of the Board of Governors of the said Institution or any Vice-Principal together with the 

Treasurer, or the Executive Director of Finance, or the Director of Finance, or the Controller, or the 

Secretary-General thereof, may jointly in writing appoint from time to time any person or persons for 

the purpose of receiving and signing receipts for all paid cheques and vouchers and for all securities 

and commercial and other paper and of signing and delivering to the Bank the Bank’s form of 

settlement of balances and release; and 

 

THAT any two of the members of the Executive Committee and the Vice-Principals or, any one member of the 

Executive Committee, or any one Vice-Principal, together with either the Treasurer, or the Executive Director of 

Finance, or the Director of Finance, or the Controller, or the Secretary-General of the said Institution, are hereby 

authorized for and on behalf of the said Institution: 

 

Jointly to make, sign, draw, accept or endorse all or any cheques, promissory notes, drafts, 

acceptances, bills of exchange, orders for the payment of money, and other instruments whether 

negotiable or not; also to borrow money and obtain advances from the Bank upon the credit of the 

Institution and to become obligated to the Bank in any manner whatsoever in respect of liabilities or 

obligations incurred by the Bank for the account or benefit of the Institution; 

 

THAT not withstanding the above, 

 

any two of the Vice-Principal (Administration & Finance) and the Treasurer and the Executive 

Director of Finance and the Director of Finance and the Controller and the Secretary-General of the 

said Institution, or any one of them together with an Accountant of the said Institution, may jointly 

sign individual salary cheques on the Payroll Account of the Institution for amounts not exceeding 

$10,000; 

 

any two of the Vice-Principal (Administration & Finance) and the Treasurer and the Executive 

Director of Finance and the Director of Finance and the Controller and the Secretary-General of the 

said Institution, or any one of them together with an Accountant of the said Institution, may sign 
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cheques on the general account of the Institution for amounts not exceeding $500,000, and 

 

The Vice-Principal (Administration & Finance) or the Treasurer or the Executive Director of Finance 

or the Director of Finance or the Controller or the Secretary-General of the said Institution, may 

authorize transfers from the General to the Payroll Account of the Institution , or vice versa. 

 

THAT for banking purposes, all agreements, securities, promises to give security, assignments, transfers, conveyances, 

documents and instruments, whether negotiable or not, signed, made, drawn, accepted, executed or endorsed as 

hereinbefore provided shall be valid and binding upon the Institution, and the Bank is hereby authorized to act thereon 

and give effect thereto. 

 

THAT the Bank or Banks be furnished with a list of the names of those authorized to sign on behalf of the Institution, 

together with specimens of their signatures, and that the Bank be notified in writing of any change in such signing 

Officers.  All of such lists when filed with the Bank shall be binding on the Institution until such notice to the contrary 

shall have been given to the Bank at which the account of the Institution is kept, and receipt of such notice 

acknowledged in writing. 

 

THAT this resolution be communicated to the Bank or Banks concerned and remain in force until written notice to the 

contrary shall have been given to the Bank at which an account of the Institution is kept, and receipt of such notice 

duly acknowledged in writing. 

 

THAT this resolution, as from this date, cancels and supersedes all previous resolutions dealing with the same matters. 

 

 

 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THE ABOVE TO BE A TRUE COPY OF A RESOLUTION PASSED AT A 

MEETING OF THE ROYAL INSTITUTION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF LEARNING (McGILL 

UNIVERSITY) ON THE 24TH OF FEBRUARY 2003. 

 

 

 

 

Secretary-General 
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30.3  
Royal Victoria College 

 

RESOLUTION “C” -  

 

RESOLVED: 

 

THAT any two Governors of the Royal Victoria College who are members of the Executive 

Committee, together with the Secretary of the College for the time being, be and they are hereby authorized for and on 

behalf of the Royal Victoria College to represent and act for it in connection with the following matters and business 

transactions, that is to say: 

 

to accept obligations, loans, hypothecs, transfers and delegations of payment, gifts, bequests, Deeds of Dation 

en Paiement and conveyances of property, both movable and immovable, and to bind it to such conditions as 

may be thought necessary or expedient and to the payment of any consideration or price; 

 

to grant delays of payment for sums due under Deeds of Sale or Loan or for other debts and to reduce or 

increase the rate of interest; 

 

to make transfers of sums due it and give subrogation with or without warranty and to receive the price; 

 

to receive payment of all sums, both capital and interest, in any way and at any time due and for all sums 

received good and sufficient acquittances to give and grant; 

 

to discharge mortgages, hypothecs, and other privileged claims, and to release property therefrom, with or 

without consideration, and to limit or restrict its hypothec or privilege upon any immovable property to such 

sum or sums and in such manner as they may think fit and this either by separate instrument or by 

intervention in any deed or document; 

 

also to sell and convey any and all movable property which may now belong to it or which may be hereafter 

acquired in any manner whatsoever for such price or consideration, and upon such terms and conditions, as 

they may deem proper; to receive such price or consideration and execute valid acknowledgments and 

receipts for the same, also to take and authorize to be taken any and all proceedings, suits and actions, legal or 

otherwise which may be necessary, or which they may deem necessary, for the enforcement of its claims, the 

preservation of its rights, or the protection of its interests, and to defend and authorize to be defended all suits 

and actions. 

 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THE ABOVE TO BE A TRUE COPY OF A RESOLUTION PASSED AT A 

MEETING OF THE ROYAL INSTITUTION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF LEARNING GOVERNORS OF 

MCGILL UNIVERSITY AND THE ROYAL VICTORIA COLLEGE. 

 

 

 

 Secretary-General 

 

_____________________ 

Date 
 



Regulations Relating to the Approval of Contracts and Signing Authority 27 

30.4 

McGill University 

RESOLUTION “M” - 

RESOLVED: 

THAT any member of the Executive Committee of the Board of Governors of the Royal 

Institution for the Advancement of Learning (McGill University) together with the Secretary-General of the said 

Institution be and they are hereby authorized for and on behalf of the said Institution to execute Unitization 

Agreements and Right-of-Way Agreements, Division and Transfer Orders, Sale Contracts affecting oil or gas 

belonging to this Institution and their right and title therein inherited from the Estate of the late Agnes Maud 

McManus so far as such Division and Transfer Orders and Sale Contracts may be necessary to be filed with any 

person, firm or corporation with which this Institution may do business; and such persons hereinabove designated 

are authorized to sell oil or gas in the custody of any person, firm or corporation or which may hereafter be run 

into their custody to the credit of this Institution. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THE ABOVE TO BE A TRUE COPY OF A RESOLUTION PASSED AT A 

MEETING OF THE ROYAL INSTITUTION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF LEARNING ON 

SEPTEMBER 9th, 1991. 

Secretary-General 

I FURTHER CERTIFY THE ABOVE TO STILL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. 

Secretary-General 

_____________________ 

Date 
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